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       Dated: 8
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To 
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The National Stock Exchange of India Limited, 

Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex,  
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Dear Sirs, 
 

Sub: Submission of Annual Report for Financial Year 2019-20. 

 

 

*** 

Pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 

2019-20 along with Notice of 37
th
 Annual General Meeting to be held on Wednesday 30, 2020 at 3:00 

P.M. through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM"). 

 

We have also sent the same through electronic mode on 8
th
 September, 2020 to those shareholders, 

whose e-mail address are registered with the company / Registrar and Share Transfer Agent / 

Depositories and the same is also available on the website of the company at www.inltd.co.in. 

 

Request you to kindly take the above intimation on record. 

 

Thanking You, 
 

Yours faithfully, 

For International Constructions Limited  

 
 

Nitesh Kumar Jain 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

NITESH 
KUMAR JAIN

Digitally signed by 
NITESH KUMAR JAIN 
Date: 2020.09.08 
20:25:34 +05'30'
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NOTICE OF THE 37

th
 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
 

NOTICE 

 
 

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Seventh (37
th

) Annual General Meeting of the Members of M/s International 

Constructions Limited (the “Company”) will be held on Wednesday, September 30, 2020 at 3:00 PM (IST) through Video 

Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means organized by the Company to transact the following businesses.  

 

The venue of the meeting shall be deemed to be the Registered Office at Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower B1, 5
th

 Floor, 

HAL Old Airport Road, Bengaluru – 560 017 (Landmark: Adjacent to HDFC Bank): 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the standalone and consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the 

Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and the 

Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint Mrs. Priti Devi Sethi, Director of the Company who retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General 

Meeting as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and being eligible to offers herself for re-appointment. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

3. To Re-appoint Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi (DIN: 00035800), as Managing Director of the Company: 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as a Special 

Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203, Schedule V and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory modification(s), amendment(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time 

being in force], applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(as amended from time to time), Articles of Association of the Company and the recommendations of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, consent of the Members of the Company be 

and is hereby accorded to the re-appoint Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi (DIN:00035800), as Managing Director of the Company, 

to manage the whole affairs of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a further period of 3 years (Three 

years) with effect from 15
th 

November, 2020, upon such terms and conditions including remuneration, perquisites and 

other benefits as set out herein below:  

 

a. Salary : Rs 7,50,000/- (Rupees Seven Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) per month 

b. Commission : Nil 

c. Medical Reimbursement: Subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary over a period of three years. 

d. Bonus: Subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary over a period of three years which shall be subject to the limits 

laid down under Section 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

a. Apart from the above, he will also be entitled to the following: 

1. Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund to the extent these either singly or put 

together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 
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 2. Gratuity payable at the rate not exceeding half a month’s salary for each completed year of service as per 

company rules. 

3. Encashment of leave at the end of tenure as per Company’s Rules. 

 4. Provision of car for use in Company’s business and telephones and internet at residence for official purpose, 

personal long distance calls on telephones/internet and use of car for private purpose shall be billed to him. 

  5. He shall also be entitled to reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually and properly incurred in the 

course of legitimate business of the company. 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss, absence or inadequacy of profit of the Company in any financial year 

during the term of office of the appointee, the aforesaid remuneration shall be paid as minimum remuneration, 

provided that the total remuneration shall not exceed the ceiling as provided under Section – II of Part – II of Schedule 

V to the Companies Act, 2013 or any statutory Modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof as in force from time to 

time.” 
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (which term shall, unless repugnant to the context or meaning 

thereof, be deemed to include a duly authorized ‘Committee’ viz. Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Audit 

Committee or any other Committee of the Board thereof) shall have liberty to alter and vary the terms and conditions 

of the said reappointment and remuneration as may deem fit in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and proper in the best interest of the Company with requisite approvals and ceiling limits as provided under 

Section 197 / Schedule V of the Act”.  
 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and / or Company Secretary of the Company be 

and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and execute all such documents, instruments 

and writings as may be required, deemed necessary, proper or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this 

resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto." 

 

4. To Re-appoint Mr. Amitava Basu (DIN: 03335477) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company: 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 

Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 

time being in force), and subject to such other requisite approvals as may be required in this regard, the approval of 

the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Amitava Basu (DIN: 03335477) 

and who has submitted the declaration that he meets the criteria for Independence as provided under the Act and the 

Listing Regulations along with a declaration under sub-rule (3) of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and who is eligible for re-appointment for a second term under the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made thereunder and Listing Regulations and whose term shall not be subject to 

retirement by rotation, to hold the office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from September 29, 2020. 
 

Resolved further that any of the Directors of the Company and / or Company Secretary of the Company be and is 

hereby authorized to do and perform all in giving effect to this resolution and to do all such acts, deeds and things as 

may be necessary, proper or expedient for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution”. 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors  
For International Constructions Limited  

 

Sd/- 

Date: 27.08.2020                                Nitesh Kumar Jain   
Place: Bangalore                    Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 
 

Registered Office: 

Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, 

Tower B1, 5
th

 Floor, HAL Old Airport Road, 

Bengaluru – 560 017  
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Notes: 

1. In view of the massive outbreak of COVID-19, COVID-19 pandemic, maintenance of social distancing norms, the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Government of India, has vide its General Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated 8
th

 April 

2020, General Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated 13
th

 April 2020, in relation to “Clarification on passing of ordinary and special 

resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under on account of the threat 

posed by Covid-19” and General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated 5
th

 May 2020, in relation to “Clarification on holding of 

annual general meeting (AGM) through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM)” (collectively 

referred to as “MCA Circulars”) and  Securities and Exchange Board of India vide Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12
th

 May 2020, in relation to “Additional relaxation in relation to compliance 

with certain provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation s, 2015 - Covid-19 

pandemic” (“SEBI Circular”) have permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video 

Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the Members at a common 

venue. 

 

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 

AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 

include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without 

restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 

2. In regular circumstances a Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting” or 

“AGM”) is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not 

be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAV, the 

requirement of Physical Attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, in terms of the MCA and 

SEBI Circular, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available. Accordingly, the facility 

for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for this AGM and hence the Proxy Form and 

Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.  

 

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend/ participate in the AGM through VC / 

OAVM pursuant to Section 113 of the Act, are requested to send to the Company, at least 48 hours prior to the start of 

voting, a certified copy (in PDF/ JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. authorizing its 

representatives to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM, by e-mail to nitesh@addgroup.co.in. 

 

4. In case of Joint Holders attending the AGM, only such Joint Holder whose name appears first in the order of names will 

be entitled to vote. Only one of the members of the Company, whose name appear first on the Register of Members, 

will be permitted to attend the meeting through VC/OAVM. The Company reserves its right to take all necessary steps 

as may be deemed necessary to restrict non-members from attending the meeting 

 

5. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of business(es) to be 

transacted at the Annual General Meeting as set out under Item No(s). 3 and 4 including the relevant details of the 

Directors seeking re-appointment as required by Regulation 26(4) and 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and as required under Secretarial Standards – 

2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is annexed thereto.  

 

6. The Board of Directors have considered and decided to include the Item no. 3 and 4 given above as Special Business in 

the forthcoming AGM, as they are unavoidable in nature. 

 

7. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies act, 2013(as amended), The Register of Members and the 

Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 24/09/2020 to 30/09/2020 (both days inclusive). 
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8. In compliance with the aforementioned MCA and SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report   

2019-20 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the 

Company or the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (the “RTA”), i.e. M/s. Niche Technologies Private Limited or the 

Depository Participant(s). Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2019-20 shall be available on the 

Company’s website at www.inltd.co.in, websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 

www.nseindia.com respectively. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of the agency engaged for 

providing e-Voting facility, i.e., Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL), viz., www.evotingindia.com. 
 

9. Members holding shares in physical form and who have not updated their email addresses with the Company are 

requested to update their email addresses by writing to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent - Niche 

Technologies Private Limited at nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com or to the Company at nitesh@addgroup.co.in along with 

signed request letter to the name, address, folio no. of the Member, self-attested copy of the PAN card, scanned copy 

of the share certificate (front and back) and Self-attested scanned copy of any document (such as AADHAAR card/ 

latest Electricity Bill/ latest Telephone/ Mobile Bill/ Driving License/ Passport/ Voter ID card/ Bank Passbook 

particulars) in support of the postal address of the Member as registered against their shareholding. Members holding 

shares in dematerialized mode are requested to register / update their email addresses with the relevant Depository 

Participants. 
 

10. As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, 

securities of Listed Companies can be transferred only in dematerialised form with effect from 01.04.2019. In view of 

the above and to avail various benefits of dematerialisation, members are advised to dematerialise shares that are held 

by them in physical form and such requests may be made to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents at 

under the ISIN INE845C01016 with the depositories NSDL & CDSL. 
  

M/s. Niche Technologies Private Limited  

Unit: M/s International Constructions Limited 

3A, Auckland Place,,  

Room No. 7A & 7B, 7th Floor, Kolkata-700017 

Phone:  033 – 2280-6616/6617/6618; Fax: 033 – 2215 6823 

E-mail: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com   

 

11. All documents referred to, in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement and Statutory Registers 

including Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of 

the Act and the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained under Section 189 

will be available for inspection in electronic mode. Members can inspect the same by sending an email to the Company 

at nitesh@addgroup.co.in 
 

12. Members seeking any information with regard to any matter to be placed at the AGM are requested to write to the 

Company through an email on nitesh@addgroup.co.in  not later than at least seven days before the date of Annual 

General Meeting so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the Meeting. 
 

13. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be 

entitled to vote. 
 

14. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning 

the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

15. Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all particulars of mandates, nominations, 

power of attorney, change of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc. to their Depository 

Participant (DP). Members who are holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate change in their email 

addresses and other details to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent - Niche Technologies Private Limited 

at nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com or to the Company at nitesh@addgroup.co.in.  
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16. Members holding shares in electronic form may note that bank particulars registered against their respective 

depository accounts will be used by the Company for payment of future dividend, if any. The Company or its Registrars 

and Transfer Agents, cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form 

for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository Participant 

by the Members. 
 

17. Further, as per the RBI instruction/circular, for making payments (i.e. dividend, etc.) to the investors, Companies have 

to use, NEFT / RTGS / ECS facilities. In cases where either the bank details such as MICR, IFSC, etc. for electronic 

transfer are not available or the electronic payment instructions have failed or have been rejected by the bank, 

companies may use physical payment instruments but companies shall mandatorily print the bank account details of 

the investors on such payment instruments. Members, who hold shares in physical form, are requested to notify 

immediately the details of their bank account, to the Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company. 

18. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) 

by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to 

submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members 

holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company or its Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

 

19. Members are requested to note that the venue of the 37
th

 Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing (VC) / 

Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), and hence, the route map is not annexed in this Notice 

 

20. The Company has designated a separate e-mail ID of the grievance redressal division / compliance officer named 

“nitesh@addgroup.co.in” exclusively for the purpose of registering complaints by members/investors Members are 

requested to quote their DPID & Client ID or Folio details respectively in all correspondences. 

 

21. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS: 
 

(i) In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) (the “Listing Regulations”) read 

with the General Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (the “MCA”) bearing Nos. 14/2020, 

17/2020 and 20/2020 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 5, 2020 respectively (hereinafter, 

collectively referred as the “MCA Circulars”) and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 

May 12, 2020, the Company is pleased to facilitate its Members, to transact businesses as mentioned in 

Notice convening the 37
th

 Annual General Meeting (the “AGM” or the “Meeting”), by voting through 

electronic means (e-Voting). For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized 

e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting 

system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 

 
 

(ii) The procedure and instructions for casting your vote electronically are as under:  
 

 
i. The remote e-voting period commences on Sunday, September 27, 2020 (9:00 a.m.) and ends on 

Tuesday, September 29, 2020 (5:00 p.m.). During this period members of the Company, holding 

shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Friday, August 21, 

2020 may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL 

for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be 

allowed to change it subsequently.  

ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting venue. 
 

iii. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website  www.evotingindia.com during the voting 

period.  

iv. Click on “Shareholders” tab.  
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v. Now Enter your User ID  

(a) For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID  

(b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

(c) Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company, excluding the special characters.  
 

OR 
 

Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL‟s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at 

https://www.cdslindia.com from Login – Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully log-in 

to CDSL‟s EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote 

electronically. 

vi. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.  

vii. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an 

earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

viii. If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:  

 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both 

demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

• Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant 

are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits of the 

sequence number in the PAN field. 

• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0’s 

before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If 

your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the 

PAN field. 

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account with the depository or in the 

company records for your folio in dd/mm/yyyy format 

Bank 

Account 

Number 

(DBD) 

Enter the Bank Account Number as recorded in your demat account with the depository or in 

the company records for your folio. 

• Please Enter the DOB or Bank Account Number in order to Login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company then please enter 

the member-id / folio number in the Bank Account Number details field as mentioned 

in above instruction ( iv ). 

 
 

ix. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.  

x. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 

However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein 

they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note 

that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other 

company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 

platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential.  

xi. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice.  

xii. Click on the EVSN for the relevant Company Name i.e. INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED on 

which you choose to vote.  

xiii. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 

to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.  

xiv. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 
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xv. After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will 

be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 

“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.  

xvi. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.  

xvii. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page.  

xviii. If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.  

xix. Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL‟s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can be 

downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app 

while Remote Voting on your mobile. 

 

xx. Note for Institutional Shareholders & Custodians :  
 
 

• Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 

required to log on to  https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.  
 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 

emailed to  helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.  
 

• After receiving the login details they have to create a compliance user which should be 

created using the admin login and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the 

account(s) for which they wish to vote on.  
 

• The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of 

the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  
 

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued 

in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 

scrutinizer to verify the same.  

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board 

Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly 

authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at 

the email address viz; rahul@csra.in, Nitesh@addgroup.co.in, if they have voted from 

individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify 

the same. 

 
 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSES ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH DEPOSITORIES FOR 

OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE: 

 
  

1.      For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to the Company’s email id at nitesh@addgroup.co.in or to 

the RTA’s email id at nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com. 
 

2.       For Demat shareholders - please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 

digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to the Company’s email 

id at nitesh@addgroup.co.in or to the RTA‟s email id at nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. Shareholder will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-

Voting system. Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under 

shareholders/members login by using the remote e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be 

available in shareholder/members login where the EVSN of Company will be displayed. 

2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 

3. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 
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4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is 

therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least five (5 ) days prior to meeting 

mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

nitesh@addgroup.co.in. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may 

send their queries in advance at least five (5 ) days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 

number/folio number, email id, mobile number at nitesh@addgroup.co.in. These queries will be replied by 

the company suitably by email. 

6. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the meeting. 

 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

 
 

1.  The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 

Remote e-voting. 

2.  Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their 

vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 

eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 

3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 

shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such 

shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to 

the shareholders attending the meeting.  

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they 

will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 

22. GENERAL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS 

 
 

(a) The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of 

the Company as on the cut-off date of Friday, August 21, 2020. A person who is not a member as on cut-off 

date should treat this notice for information purpose only. 

(b) Investors, who became members of the Company subsequent to the dispatch of the Notice / Email and 

hold the shares as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, August 21, 2020, are requested to send the written / 

email communication to the Company at “ nitesh@addgroup.co.in” by mentioning their Folio No. / DP ID 

and Client ID to obtain the Login-ID and Password for e-voting. 

(c) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 

(“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at  www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to   

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com  or contact them at 1800 22 5533 or Or contact Mr. Nitin Kunder (022-

23058738) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542). 

(d) All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 

Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, 

Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43 and 1800225533. 

(e) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based 

mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and Windows phone users 

can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store. Please follow the instructions as 

prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile 
 

23. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Rahul Aggarwal, Practicing Company Secretary as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize 

the e-voting process and voting at the venue of the AGM in a fair and transparent manner. The Scrutinizer will submit 

not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in 

favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and 

declare the result of the voting forthwith. 
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23. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website at 

‘www.inltd.co.in’ and on the website of CDSL www.evotingindia.com. The same will be communicated to the listed 

stock exchanges viz. National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). 

23. Institutional Members / Bodies Corporate (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution / Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 

signature of the duly authorized signatory/(ies) who are authorized to vote through e-mail at “nitesh@addgroup.co.in 

” on or before September 29, 2020, upto 5:00 pm without which the vote shall not be treated as valid. 

 

24.  The Notice of Annual General Meeting will be sent to the Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members 

/ Beneficial Owners position list provided by Depositories at closing hours of business, on Friday, August 21, 2020.   

25. The shareholders shall have one vote per equity share held by them as on the cut-off date of August, 21, 2020. The 

facility of e-voting would be provided once for every folio / client id, irrespective of the number of joint holder. 

26.  Subject to receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the 

Meeting, i.e. Wednesday, September 30, 2020. 

29. In case you have any grievance connected with the e-voting, please contact Mr. Nitesh Kumar Jain, Company Secretary, 

International Constructions Limited, Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower B1, 5th Floor, HAL Old Airport Road, 

Bengaluru – 560 017, E-mail:  ‘nitesh@addgroup.co.in’, Phone Number: 080- 49411700. 
 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors  
For International Constructions Limited  

Sd/-xxx                           

Nitesh Kumar Jain    
     Company Secretary & 

Compliance Officer  

Registered Office: 
 
Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower B1,  

5th Floor, HAL Old Airport Road, Bengaluru – 560 017  

(Tele-fax: +91-080-49411701;  

E-mail:  info@addgroup.co.in; Website:  www.inltd.co.in),  

(CIN: L45309KA1983PLC038816) 

Bangalore, August 27, 2020                    

 

 

 

 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

(“THE ACT”) 

The following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to Item No. 1, of the accompanying Notice. 
 

ITEM  - III 
 

Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi (DIN: 00035800) was appointed as Managing Director of the Company, by the General Body on 

15
th

 November, 2017 for a period of three years commencing from w.e.f. 15
th

 November 2017 till 14
th

 November 2020.  

 

Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi (DIN: 00035800) is one of the Promoters of the company and he has been serving as the Chairman 

and Managing Director of the company for the past many years. Considering his rich and varied experience, skills and 

knowledge in the field of Engineering and Infrastructure development and allied industry, the Board of Directors opine 

that his re-appointment as Chairman and Managing Director of the company would be greatly beneficial to the 

company. 
 

Now, it is proposed to re-appoint him, on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the 

Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) at its meeting held on 27.08.2020 had appointed Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi 

(DIN: 00035800), as a Managing Director of the Company, subject to the approval of Members of the Company, for a 

further period of three (3) years w.e.f. from 15
th

 November, 2020 till 14
th

 November 2023 upon such terms and 

conditions including remuneration, perquisites and other benefits as set out in the resolution which are:  

 

a. Salary : Rs 7,50,000/- (Rupees Seven Lakhs Fifty Thousand only) per month 

b. Commission : Nil 
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c. Medical Reimbursement: Subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary over a period of three years. 

d. Bonus: Subject to a ceiling of one month’s salary over a period of three years which shall be subject to the limits 

laid down under Section 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

b. Apart from the above, he will also be entitled to the following: 

1. Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund to the extent these either singly or put 

together are not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

 2. Gratuity payable at the rate not exceeding half a month’s salary for each completed year of service as per 

company rules. 

3. Encashment of leave at the end of tenure as per Company’s Rules. 

 4. Provision of car for use in Company’s business and telephones and internet at residence for official purpose, 

personal long distance calls on telephones/internet and use of car for private purpose shall be billed to him. 

  5. He shall also be entitled to reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually and properly incurred in the 

course of legitimate business of the company. 

Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi, suo moto, has proposed to reduce his remuneration from present 10 L to 7.5 L and have not 

drawn any remuneration since 1
st

 of January, 2020 as Company didn’t have any business and also with the fact that the 

outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic had impact adversely to Company, as it has to bear all fixed costs and other expenses.      
 

Therefore the approval of the Members of the Company is being sought for the re-appointment of Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi 

as Managing Director, not liable to retire by rotation on the terms and conditions and payment of remuneration as set 

out in Resolution under Item no. 3 relating to his re-appointment. Brief profile of Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi is set out in the 

“Information of Director pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015(as amended)” which is annexed with the notice. 
 

The Board considers that his association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to avail his 

services as Managing Director of the Company. 
 

None of the Directors except Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi as appointee and Mrs. Priti Devi Sethi as relative of the appointee 

is interested in this resolution. 
 

The Board recommends the Resolution to be passed as a Special Resolution by the Members of the Company. 
 

ITEM - IV  
 

Mr. Amitava Basu, will complete his initial term as an Independent Director of the Company on 29.092020 and he is 

eligible for re-appointment for one more term.  
 

Mr. Amitava Basu aged 55 years is a Master Degree holder in Electrical Engineering from MANIT, Bhopal. He has also 

completed software development courses from IT institutes including MANIT Bhopal. He has rich expertize in Wind 

farm developments, Project and Contract management in different parts of India. As per the recommendation of the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of the Board of Directors in their respective meetings held on 

August 27, 2020, subject to approval of Members at ensuing Annual General Meeting and pursuant to the provisions of 

Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and the applicable provisions of the 

Listing Regulations (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and 

based on his skills, rich experience, knowledge, contributions, continued valuable guidance to the management made 

by him during his tenure and outcome of performance evaluation of the Independent Directors, the approval of the 

Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for re-appointment of Mr. Amitava Basu (DIN: 03335477) as a 

Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company, for the second term of 5 (five) years w.e.f. September 29, 2020 

upto September 20, 2025, and shall not be liable to retire by rotation as provided under Section 152(6) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Mr. Amitava Basu (DIN: 03335477) is not disqualified from being appointed as Directors in terms of Section 164 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The Company has also received a declaration from Mr. Amitava Basu declaring that he meets the 

criteria of independence as provided under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. 

Amitava Basu fulfills the conditions required to be fulfilled for being appointed as an Independent Director of the 

Company for the as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 

Requirements) Regulation, 2015.  

 

The Board places the above resolution before the Members for their approval as a Special Resolution. 
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STATEMENT CONTAINING INFORMATION TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 

Information as required under Section II of the Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

(1) Nature of industry: International Constructions Limited is mainly engaged in job contract works & financing 

activities. The job contract works are undertaken mainly in infrastructure sector as and when it gets an 

opportunity for the same to add its revenues. The company ceased to be NBFC as the Reserve Bank of India has 

cancelled its registration vide its letter no DNBS (BG) No. 129/01.02.669/2018-19 dated July 17, 2018.  

 

(2) Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production: in the year of 1983 as mentioned in the 

certificate for Commencement of Business.   

 

(3) In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved  by financial 

institutions appearing in the prospectus.: N/A 

 

(4) Financial performance based on given indicators:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(5) Export performance and net foreign exchange collaborations: NIL 

 

(6)  Foreign investments or collaborators, if any: NIL 

 

II. Information about the appointee  

 

(1) Background details: Please Refer Profile 

 

(2) Past remuneration :  

 

Organization Designation Duration TOTAL 

Remuneration 

with perks 
From To 

SPML infra LTD Whole Time 

Director/Chairman 

01/04/2009   31/03/2011 

 

Rs.6 lakh per 

Month plus 

Commission and 

perks 

International 

Constructions 

Limited 

Managing 

Director/Chairman 

15/11/2017 14/11/2020* Rs. 2 Lakh per 

Month plus 

other perks 

SPML 

Infrastructure 

Ltd. 

Managing Director 01/08/2014 31/07/2017 Rs. 7 Lakh per 

Month plus 

other perks 

    * No salary drawn from 01.01.2020 

 

(3) Recognition or awards: Please Refer Profile 

 

(4) Job profile and his suitability: Please Refer Profile 

 

(6)  Remuneration proposed: As set out in Item No.3 of the notice of the 37
th

 AGM 

 

(7)  Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position and 

person:   
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(Amount in '000) 

Parameter 2019-2020 2018-2019 

Total Revenue  - 14,473.00 

Profit/(Loss) before tax (7,692.82) 840.22 

Profit/(Loss) after tax (4,609.34) 760.38 

Paid –up Equity Share 

Capital 

36,339.60 36,339.60 

Reserve and Surplus  78,084.93 98,949.71 

Basic Earnings per Share 

(actual) 

(1.27) 0.21 



 

In SPML infra limited a leading infrastructure Listed Company, he was getting Rs.6 Lakh Per month for a 

period ended 31/03/2011, in SPML Infrastructure Ltd., he was getting Rs.7 Lakh Per month for a period 

ended 31/07/2017 per month as per serial No. 2 above. The remuneration being paid to him is most 

reasonable considering other similar sized companies, the type of industry and his position and profile. 

 

(8) Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with the managerial personnel, 

if any. :  

 

He is one of the promoters of the company holding 3,43,670 equity shares of the Company and Mrs. Priti Devi 

Sethi, another Director of the Company is [wife] relative of Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi. His HUF holds 30,000 equity 

shares of the Company. 

 

III. Other information: 

 

(1) Reasons of loss or inadequate profits:  

 

Acquiring contracts is not feasible for every Year and all the Investments of the Company in its group of 

companies did not yield for the period under review. The Company has incurred significant losses on fair 

valuation of its Investments.  

 

(2) Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:  

 

Having started the trading of shares of the Company on NSE, the Company is hopeful to expand its present 

activities and to explore diversification possibilities by generating more funds for the said purposes and to 

look for good prospects for the Company from the ensuing year under the leadership of Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi 

as Managing Director of the company. 

(3) Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:  

 

The Company has taken necessary initiatives to improve its market position and financial performance. 

 

IV.  Other information: The following disclosures shall be mentioned in the Board of Director’s report under the 

heading “Corporate Governance”, if any, attached to the Financial statement:  
 

The provisions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation 15 (2) of SEBI (Listing and 

Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are not applicable to the Company 

 

i) all elements of remuneration package such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension, etc., of all the 

directors; - as set out in Item No.3 of this notice 
 

(ii) Details of fixed component. and performance linked incentives along with the performance criteria; as set out 

in Item No.3 of this notice. 
 

(iii) service contracts, notice period, severance fees; and – as set out in Item No.3 of this notice 
 

(iv) Stock option details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at a discount as well as the   period over 

which accrued and over which exercisable: Company has not issued any stock options. 
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 37
th

 Annual General Meeting to be held on September 30, 

2020 Vide Item No.3 and 4 of the Notice  

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) & 26(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

applicable secretarial standards – 2 on General Meetings] 

Name of the 

Director 

Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi Mr. Amitava Basu Mrs. Priti Devi Sethi 

DIN 00035800 03335477 00635846 

Designation Managing Director (Executive) Non-Executive, Independent 

Director 

Non-Executive,  Non-

Independent Director 

Date of Birth  07.03.1953 22.08.1965 30.06.1959 

Qualification  Graduated with a Bachelor of 

Commerce degree 

M. Tech, B. Tech Graduated with a Bachelor of 

Commerce degree 

Experience  He Has been in the industry for 

more than 35 years of 

Engineering and Infrastructure 

development experience is 

credited as a leader and 

spokesperson of the fast 

growing Infrastructure Industry 

of India.  

He has been in the industry for 

more than 30 years. He has 

expert knowledge in the field of 

Consultancy Services. He has 

vast experience of handling 

various business transactions 

and taking administrative 

decisions. He is also on board of 

several other Companies 

She is wife of Mr. Anil Kumar 

Sethi, who is Ex-Chairman of M/s 

SPML Infra Limited and is 

Chairman of ADD Group having 

over 30 years of engineering and 

infrastructure development 

experience is credited as a leader 

and spokesperson of the fast 

growing Infrastructure Industry of 

India. 

Directorship 1. Add Realty Ltd  

2. ADD Technologies (India) 

Limited 

3. Leonis Koramangala Complex  

Private Limited 

4. Leonis Hsr Developers Private 

Limited 

5. Leonis Sadashivanagar 

Developers Private Limited 

6. Leonis Austin Town 

Developers Private Limited 

7. Leonis Vijayanagar 

Developers Private Limited 

8. Leonis R T Nagar Developers 

Private Limited 

9. Sanmati Infradevelopers 

Private Limited 

10. SJA Developers Private 

Limited 

11. DWMG Software Private 

Limited 

12. Add Energy Management 

Company Private Limited 

13. Ratnatray Mega Food Park 

Private Limited 

14. Doon Valley Waste 

Management Private Limited 

1. Add Industrial Park (Tamil 

Nadu) Limited 

2. ADD Energy Management 

Company Private Limited 

1. Add Technologies (India) 

Limited 

2. Add-Elcina Electronics Park 

Private Limited 

3. Meena Holdings Private 

Limited 

4. Meena Add Charity Initiative 

Foundation 

 

Membership & 

Chairmanship of 

Committees of 

Listed Entities  

(Including Audit 

Committee & 

Stakeholders 

Relationship 

Committee)  

Nil Nil Nil 

No. of Board 

meetings 

attended  

11 1 11 
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Details of 

Remuneration  

As set out in the Resolution  None  None  

 

 

              For and on Behalf of Board 

Sd/- 

                                                                                                     Nitesh Kumar Jain 

                                                                                                                     Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

 Registered Office: 

                                                                                                                     

Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower B1,  

5
th

 Floor, HAL Old Airport Road, Bengaluru – 560 017  

 (Tele-fax: +91-080-49411701; E-mail:  info@addgroup.co.in; Website:  www.inltd.co.in) (CIN: L45309KA1983PLC038816) 

 

Place: Bangalore,  

Date: August 27, 2020                    
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Brief profile of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the 

                         26
th

 Annual General Meeting to be held on September 30, 2020 

1.   Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi, aged about 67 years, with over 30 years of Engineering and Infrastructure development 

experience is credited as a leader and spokesperson of the fast growing Infrastructure Industry of India. 

 

In his business and domain pursuits, Mr. Sethi has travelled across geographies and interacted with international 

business, industry and political leaders; he has been invited to several leading international forums as a speaker and 

advisor, apart from being an integral and lead member of eminent industry bodies and institutions such as: 

 

� World Economic Forum 

� Confederation of Indian Industry 

� Federation of Indian Chambers of Commerce & Industry 

� Steering Committees of Panels on Water Management and Urban Infrastructure 

 

His Professional Journey includes his position held as Director, Vice Chairman, Chairman and Chairman Emeritus in 

SPML Infra Ltd, a leading Infrastructure Listed Company for over 25 years. Presently he is the Chairman for ADD Group 

of Companies based in Bangalore and holding Directorships in more than 15 Companies. 
 

Honors: 

� Nominated and Empanelled as Eminent Citizen with the NREGA (Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employment 

Guarantee Act) – 2010 

� Outstanding Entrepreneur Award for his contribution as a Business Leader Par Excellence – by Enterprise Asia 

– 2009 (An international panel/jury for Entrepreneurship) 

� The Pride of India Gold star Award, India quality Gold star Award and The Vikas Jyothi Award, amongst others 

 

A diligent industrialist, and a conscientious citizen, Mr. Sethi’s personal interest has evolved around contributing to the 

welfare of the society and community at large. As a social leader he is currently leading community efforts through his 

responsibilities as Acharya Shantisagar Foundation, Shri Khandelwal Digambar Jain Trust, President, Shri Parmagam 

Shravak Trust, Sonagiri,  Founder Trustee, Shri Keshrichand Punamchand Sethi Charitable Trust, Trustee, Shri 

Gnanoday Digambar Jain Trust. 

 

2. Mr. Amitava Basu aged 55 years is  is the Non-Executive, Independent Director of the Company. He holds a Master 

Degree holder in Electrical Engineering. He has also completed software development courses from IT institutes 

including MANIT Bhopal. He has rich expertize in Wind farm developments, Project and Contract management in 

different parts of India. He has been associated with the Company for past five years and has industry related 

functional expertise. He has successfully completed many wind energy projects in many state of the country. He has 

also lead Power T&D Group as Executive Vice President, Power Projects and completed more than 60 projects viz. Sub-

station & Transmission line projects, Rajiv Gandhi Grameen Vidyuti Karan Yojana projects, Re-Conductoring projects, 

Rural load Management Scheme projects, Feeder Separation projects under various Electricity Boards. 

 

 He has jointly published paper on Load profile with the Director of the Consulting Company. Further he was called by 

American Wind Energy Association for Annual Conference at Austin, USA in the year 2000 for his research paper on 

wind technology whereby he was the only author selected from India for Wind Technology paper among 38 authors 

from all other countries on various topics on Wind farm developments. He has developed simplest & rugged HT & LT 

Reactive Power Compensation scheme with capital investment payback period of less than a year and on successful 

implementation of the same in the existing wind farms the supply grid were relieved from previous inductive loading of 

said wind farms. Further he has expertise in project and contract management having successfully commissioned 

several power projects in different part of India and also in West Africa. 

 

3.    Mrs. Priti Devi Sethi, is wife of Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi, who is Ex-Chairman of M/s SPML Infra Limited and is Chairman of 

ADD Group having over 30 years of engineering and infrastructure development experience is credited as a leader and 

spokesperson of the fast growing Infrastructure Industry of India. 

 

She is currently Director in below mentioned companies: 

� ADD TECHNOLOGIES (INDIA) LIMITED  

� MEENA HOLDINGS LIMITED 

� INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 

� MEENA ADD CHARITY INITIATIVE FOUNDATION 

� ADD-ELCINA ELECTRONICS PARK PRIVATE LIMITED 
 

Mrs. Sethi shows enthusiasm in business for its growth and prosperity. 
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BOARDS’ REPORT 

 

To 

 

The Members 

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Thirty Seventh Annual Report and Audited 

statement of accounts of the Company for the year ended 31
st
 March 2020. 

 

1.  FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS, OPERATIONS, STATE OF COMPANY’S 

AFFAIRS 
 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS  

                                                                                                                                              (Rs. In ‘000’) 

Particulars For the year 

ended 31.03.2020 

For the year 

ended 31.03.2019 

Gross Revenue 12,234.80  17,652.81  

Expenditure 19,927.62  16,812.59  

Profit Before Tax  (7,692.82)   840.22  

Less: Tax Expense (3,083.48 )  79.84  

Profit /(Loss)After Tax  (4,609.34)  760.38  

Other Comprehensive Income  (16,255.43)  (44,115.82) 

Total Comprehensive Income  (20,864.78)  (43,355.44) 

         
OPERATIONS, STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

 

During the year under review, Company suffered a loss of Rs. 2.09 Cr. as above due to fair 

value measurement of all the investments of the Company as required by law and also with 

the fact that the revenue of the Company reduced to Rs. 1.22 Cr. for the year against Rs. 1.77 

Cr. in the previous year. However the Management is very positive and looking forward for 

better performance in future.   

 

• After all submissions and follow ups with National Stock Exchange (NSE), the 

suspension of trading of shares of the company on NSE was revoked by NSE vide its 

order no. NSE/CML/58258 dated 6.7.2018 and the shares of the company are being 

trading since then. 

 

• After the above the company approached SEBI for revoking its earlier orders passed 

against the company, promoters and directors of the Company for the non-compliance 

of Minimum Public Shareholding (MPS) and got its Order No. 

WTM/GM.CFD/7/2019-20 dated 24.5.19. 

 

• Company have been issued an adjudication order No. Order/MC/VS/2019-20/6229 

dated 24.12.2019 by the Adjudicating officer of SEBI against Show Cause Notice 
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dated September 19, 2019 under Rule 4(1) of the Securities contracts (Regulation) 

(Procedure for Holding Inquiry and Imposing Penalties by Adjudicating officer) Rules, 

2005 in the matter of Compliance for Minimum Public Shareholding not in time. 

 

• After submitting all the required documents for the revocation on suspension of 

trading of shares of the company on Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE), the suspension 

has been revoked and Shares of the Company admitted for dealing w.e.f 23.07.2019 

vide CSE Ref. No. CSE/LD/14749/2019 dated 22.07.2019. 

 

• Subsequent to the revocation of suspension of dealing as above, Company has applied 

for the Voluntary Delisting of Shares of the Company from CSE and got delisted its 

Shares from The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE) w.e.f. 16
th

 September, 2019 vide 

CSE Ref. No. CSE/LD/14807/2019 dated 13.09.2019. The equity shares of the 

Company shall continue to be listed on the National Stock Exchange Limited (NSE).  

 
 

Having started the trading of shares of the Company on NSE, the Company is hopeful to 

expand its present activities and to explore diversification possibilities by generating more 

funds for the said purposes and to look for good prospects for the Company from the ensuing 

year. 

 
IMPACT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON THE BUSINESS 

 

The Company’s operations at its registered office were closed from March 24, 2020 due to the 

lockdown which impacted its operations during April and May' 2020. The Company 

continued to incur all fixed costs and other expenses. Operations commenced in a phased 

manner from May 11, 2020 with a small portion of the workforce, adhering to the safety 

norms prescribed by Government of India. 
 

However, the Company will keep monitoring the future impact of COVID-19 pandemic on its 

operations, profitability, liquidity position & demand for its services etc. and its management 

are confident to manage the crisis and optimistic that the business situation is expected to 

evolve over a period of time. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

During the year under review, there was no change in the Authorised, issued, subscribed and 

Paid-up capital of the Company.  

 

The present Authorised Capital of the Company is Rs. 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Crores 

Only) divided into 1,00,00,000 (One Crore) Equity Shares. 

 

The paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2020 stands at Rs. 

3,63,39,600/-  (Three Crores Sixty Three Lakh Thirty Nine Thousand Six Hundred only) 

divided into 36,33,960 (Thirty Six Lakh Thirty Three Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixty) 

equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.  

 

During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares, debentures, bonds 

convertible securities or non-convertible securities, shares with differential voting rights nor 

has granted any stock options or sweat equity or warrants, also not made any Provision of 
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money by company for purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the benefit 

of employees. 

 

 

2. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

In accordance with the Accounting Standards AS-21 on Consolidated Financial Statements 

read with Accounting Standard AS-23 on Accounting for investments in Subsidiaries & 

Associates, your Directors provide the Audited consolidated financial statements for the 

financial year ended 31
st 

March, 2020 forming part of the Annual Report and Accounts.  
 
 

3.  DIVIDEND / CARRY FORWARD TO RESERVES: 

 

Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year as the Company reported loss for 

the year under review. Current year loss is added to the ‘retained earnings’ and shown under 

the heading ‘Other Equity’. 

 

4. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE OUTGO 

 

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION 
 

i The steps taken or 

impact on 

conservation of 

energy;  

Energy conservation dictates how efficiently a company can 

conduct its operations.  

Considering the nature of the business of the Company, there are 

no particulars to be disclosed relating to the Conservation of 

Energy as required u/s 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act 2013 

read with relevant Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014, during the year under review 

ii The steps taken by 

the company for 

utilizing alternate 

sources of energy;  

Considering the nature of the business of the Company, no step is 

required to be taken by the Company for utilizing alternate 

sources of energy. 

iii The capital 

investment on 

energy conservation 

equipment’s;  

During year under review, the Company had not made any 

investment on the energy conservation equipment’s as the same 

were not warranted. 

 

5.  PARTICULARS OF TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, RESEARCH AND    DEVELOPMENT 

 

i. The efforts made towards technology absorption;- Nil 

ii. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product - Nil development 

or import substitution;- Nil 
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iii. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the 

beginning of the financial year) 

 

(a) the details of technology imported : NIL 

(b) the year of import; : NIL 

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed : NIL 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has 

not taken place, and the reasons thereof 
: 

NIL 

 

6. PARTICULARS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 

Foreign Exchange Earnings- Nil 

Foreign Exchange Outgo    - Nil 

 

7.  DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Pursuant to provisions of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 

2013, your Directors hereunder state that for the year under review; 

 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had  

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of 

the profit and loss of the company for that period; 

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the 

assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;  

(e) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company 

and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.  

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 

all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE 

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END 

OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATE 

AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT: 

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 

Company except with the fact that the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak has affected almost 
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every country throughout the world, including India, which led to nationwide lockdown from 

March 24, 2020. 

The Company's registered office remained closed during the lockdown and partially re-opened 

w.e.f. May 11, 2020, which impacted its operations during April and June' 2020. 

The situation remains fluid as the duration and scope of COVID-19 continues to evolve. The 

Company continued to incur all fixed costs and other expenses. 

9. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE 

COMPANY U/s 186 DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW:  

The details of Loans / Guarantee given and investment as on 31.03.2020 are as follows:   

Loans given by the Company: Rs. 0.96 Crores /- 

Guarantee given by the Company: Rs. 10.00 Crores in favour of Bankers on behalf of ADD 

Technologies (India) Limited 

Investments made by the Company: Rs. 16.87 Crores/- 

The details of the investments are given under Schedule 4 of Notes to Financial Statements in 

for the year ended 31/03/2020. 

 

10.  PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS/ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

REFERRED TO IN 188(1) IN FORM AOC 2 OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 

2014: 

There are no Contracts/Arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of 

Companies Act, 2013 and hence furnishing details in form AOC II does not arise. 

 

11.  STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS U/s. 

149(6) OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

The Company has received declarations from the Independent Directors namely Mr. Amitava 

Basu, and Mr. Rajesh Kandoi of the company confirming that they meet the criteria of 

independence as prescribed both under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

12. COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 

INCLUDING CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING QUALIFICATIONS, POSITIVE 

ATTRIBUTES, INDEPENDENCE OF A DIRECTOR AND OTHER MATTERS U/s 

178(3)   

 

The Policy on Directors’ appointment & remuneration including of KMP and other employees 

and the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes, and independence of a 
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Director formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee pursuant to Sec 178 (3) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed to this Board Report. (Annexure-1) 
 

 

13. STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK 

MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY: 

The Company has adequate Risk Management Policy during the year under review. 

 
14. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY 

ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES: 

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

initiatives as the provisions for the said CSR are not applicable to it for the year under review. 

 
15. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY: 

There was no change in the nature of business of the company during the financial year ended 

March 31, 2020. 

 

16. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act 2013 & the Rules framed 

thereunder and the applicable provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs. 

Priti Devi Sethi (DIN: 00635846), Director of the Company retires by rotation at the 

forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment 

 

Re-appointment of Mr. Amitava Basu (03335477) as an Independent Director, not liable to 

retire by rotation, (whose tenure will end in ensuing AGM) for a second term pursuant to 

applicable provisions of the Act read with the Rules issued thereunder and Listing 

Regulations. The appointment was based on outcome of performance evaluation exercise, 

experience and contributions made by Mr. Amitava Basu in his previous tenure.  

 

Mr. Rajesh Kandoi (07434686) appointed as an Independent Director of the Company, as 

recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors, at their 

meeting held on 25.7.19 to hold office for a period of five years w.e.f. 11.09.2019, who shall 

not be liable to retire by rotation in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 196, 197 and 198 read with Schedule V and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the Shareholders of the Company at their Extra-

Ordinary General Meeting held on November 15, 2017 appointed Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi 

(DIN: 00035800) as the Managing Director of the Company for a term of 3 consecutive years 

with effect from 15
st
 November, 2017, not liable to retire by rotation, which term is expiring 

on 14
th

 November, 2020. Therefore, the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of 

the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, re-appointed Mr. Anil Kumar Sethi (00035800) 

as Managing Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation for another term of 3 

years with effect from 15
th

 November, 2020, subject to the approval of Shareholders in the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
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Mr. S. Nakkiran has resigned from the post of AGM & Company Secretary of the Company 

w.e.f. 31
st
 March, 2020 and Mr. Nitesh Kumar Jain (ACS – 54402), an Associate Member of 

Institute of Company Secretaries of India appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance 

officer of The Company  w.e.f. 3
rd

 April, 2020. 

 

Mr. Om Prakash Sharma is Chief Financial Officer in the Company after his redesignation 

from Chief Executive Officer on 05.04.2019. 

 

17.  BOARD EVALUATION 

 

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the 

directors on the basis of the criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness 

of board processes, information and functioning, etc. 

 

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the 

committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, 

effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. 

 

In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, 

performance of the board as a whole and performance of the chairman was evaluated, taking 

into account the views of executive directors and non-executive directors. The same was 

discussed in the board meeting that followed the meeting of the independent directors, at 

which the performance of the board, its committees and individual directors was also 

discussed. Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by the entire board, 

excluding the independent director being evaluated. 

 

18.  DEPOSITS: 

 

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year under review within the meaning 

of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 

Rules, 2014. 

 
 

19. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 

Our Company has laid down internal financial controls and that such internal financial 

controls were adequate and was operating effectively during the year under review. 

 

20. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW: 
 

There were Eleven (11) Board meetings held during the year under review as below: 

 

Sr. No Date of Board Meeting 

1. 05.04.2019 

2. 29.05.2019 

3. 06.07.2019 

4. 25.07.2019 

5. 12.08.2019 



INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 
CIN: L45309KA1983PLC038816 

ICL Board’s Report  8 

 

6. 13.08.2019 

7. 13.09.2019 

8. 13.11.2019 

9. 11.02.2020 

10. 05.03.2020 

11. 31.03.2020 

 

• INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETINGS: 
 

Pursuant to the requirements of Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and as in terms 

of Regulation 25 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 a separate meeting of independent directors of the Company has been 

convened on 11
th

 February, 2020 during the financial year 2019-20 to review the matters 

as laid down in the aforesaid Schedule and Regulations. 

 

• BOARD COMMITTEES:  

 

i. AUDIT COMMITTEE  
 

As required under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligation and disclosure Requirements) regulations, 2015, your Company has a 

competent Audit  Committee  consisting  of  majority  of  Independent  Directors  as  its  

members.  The members of Audit Committee are:- 
 

Sl.No Name of the Director Designation 

Independent 

/Non-

Independent 

No of meetings 

attended 

1 Mr. Rajesh Kandoi Chairman Independent  4 

2 
Mr. Anil Kumar 

Sethi  

Managing 

Director 

Non-

Independent  
4 

3 

 

Mr. Amitava Basu 

 

Member Independent 4 

 

ii. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE As required under Section 

178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and 

disclosure Requirements) regulations, 2015, your Company has a competent Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee consisting of 50% of Independent Directors as its members. 

The members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are: 

 

Sl. No Name of the Director Designation 

Independent 

/Non-

Independent 

No of meetings 

attended 
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1 Mr. Rajesh Kandoi Chairman Independent  1 

2 
Mr. Anil Kumar 

Sethi  

Managing 

Director 

Non-

Independent  
1 

3 

 

Mr. Amitava Basu 

 

Member Independent 1 

 

 

21. SHAREHOLDERS MEETINGS: 

 

There was only one (1) annual general meeting of shareholders was held on 11
th

 September, 

2019. 

 

22. DETAILS ABOUT THE HOLDING / SUBSIDIARY / ASSOCIATE COMPANY: 

 

Company does not have any Holding Company. Details of Subsidiary and Associate 

Companies are given as below: 

 

Sl. 

No 
Name of the company CIN/GLN 

Holding/ 

Subsidiary / 

Associate 

1 ADD REALTY LIMITED U70101KA2007PLC042211 SUBSIDIARY  

COMPANY 

2 
ADD INDUSTRIAL PARK 

(TAMIL NADU) LIMITED 
U45209KA2007PLC133412 

SUBSIDIARY  

COMPANY 

3 
ADD ELCINA 

ELECTRONICS PVT LTD 
U31401KA2015PTC080857 

SUBSIDIARY  

COMPANY 

4 

RATNATRAY MEGA 

FOOD PARK PRIVATE 

LIMITED 

U74990WB2014PTC199885 

SUBSIDIARY  

COMPANY 

5 SPM ENGINEERS LIMITED 
L29120WB1984PLC066611 

ASSOCIATE 

COMPANY 

6 DELHI WASTE 

MANAGEMENT LIMITED 
U74999KA2005PLC130126 

ASSOCIATE 

COMPANY 

 

The details for the Subsidiary and Associate Companies in Form AOC-I is forming part of the 

financial statement as Annexure-2. 
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23. AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

� STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT: 

 

The General Body, with due recommendation of the Audit Committee and Board of 

Directors, pursuant to Section 139 & 142 of the Companies Act, 2013, appointed on 

27.09.2018 M/s G L Kothari & Co, Chartered Accountants Bangalore (Firm Registration No. 

001445S) as statutory auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years from the close of 35
th

 

Annual General Meeting (AGM) till the conclusion of the 40
th

 Annual General Meeting 

(AGM) subject to ratification by members every year. As per The Companies (Amendment) 

Act, 2017 dated 03.01.2017 no such annual ratification is required w.e.f 07.05.2018. 

Members may take note of the above. 

The notes on accounts referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and therefore 

do not call for any further comments. 

 

� STATUTORY AUDITORS QUALIFICATION/REMARKS IN AUDITORS 

REPORTS (IF ANY): 

 

There are no qualification/adverse remarks given by the auditors in their report given 

for the year ended 31/03/2020 relating to both standalone and consolidated Balance 

Sheets. 

 

� SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT: 
 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the 

Company had appointed M/s. NAVNEET JHUNJHUNWALA & ASSOCIATES, Practicing 

Company Secretaries, Kolkata, having Certificate of Practice No 5184 and Membership No. 

FCS 6397 of ICSI as Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conducts the Secretarial Audit 

for the Financial Year 2019-20.  

The Secretarial Audit Report as received from M/s. Navneet Jhunjhunwala & Associates is 

appended to this Report as Annexure 3 

 

 

 

� QUALIFICATION/ADVERSE REMARK BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY 

IN PRACTICE IN HIS SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT (IF ANY): 
 

The Secretarial Audit Report is self-explanatory. The Secretarial Auditor's Report 

does not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer.  

 

� INTERNAL AUDITOR AND THEIR REPORT: 
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Pursuant to the provision of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 has mandated the 

appointment of Internal Auditor in the Company. Accordingly, the Board has appointed M/s. 

KSMJ & Associates, Chartered Accountant, as Internal Auditors to conduct Internal Audit 

for the financial year 2019-20. During the year under review, M/s. KSMJ & Associates, 

Internal Auditor’s had submitted their Report for the financial year 2019-20 for various 

quarters/period to the Audit Committee for its review and necessary action. 

� Internal Auditors Observations 

Internal Audit Report was self-explanatory and need no comments. 

� COST AUDITOR: 

The Provision relating to maintaining of Coat record and conducting of cost audit are not 

applicable to the company. Under section 148 (1) of the companies act, 2013. 

 

24. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 

PROTECTION FUND: 

Since there are no unpaid/unclaimed Dividends declared and paid yester years, the provisions 

of Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not apply for the Company during the year 

under review. 

 

25.  DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUD REPORTED BY THE AUDITOR U/s 143(12) OF 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

There are no frauds reported by the Auditor U/s. 143(12) of Companies Act, 2013 during the 

year under review. 
 

26.  EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

The extract of Annual Return made upto 31/03/2020 pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 

read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is 

furnished in Annexure 6 which is attached to this Boards’ Report. The said details, pursuant 

to section 134 (3) (a), are also available on the website of the company www.inltd.co.in.  
 

27. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 

WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013 does not arise as the Company has no woman employees except one 

woman Director.  
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28. STATEMENT INDICATING THE MANNER IN WHICH FORMAL ANNUAL 

EVALUATION HAS BEEN MADE BY THE BOARD OF THE PERFORMANCE OF 

THE COMPANYAND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES AND THE DIRECTORS: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out an annual 

performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the 

evaluation of the working of its Committees.  
 

29. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

Since, the paid- up capital of the Company is less than 10 Crores and Net worth is less than 25 

Crores, the provisions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated under Regulation 15 (2) of 

SEBI (Listing and Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are not 

applicable to the Company. Therefore, the Company is not required to comply with 

requirement of reporting on the Corporate Governance. However, Company emphasizes on 

the broad principles of Corporate Governance. Company’s pursuit towards achieving good 

governance is an ongoing process.  

 

30. PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES  

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details, as required under Section 197(12) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are given in "Annexure - 4" of this 

Report. 

 

31. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 

REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING GOING 

CONCERNSTATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 

There are no significant and material orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunals 

impacting going concern status and company’s operations in future.  

32. COMPLIANCE: 

The Company has complied and continues to comply with all the applicable regulations, 

circulars and guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), Stock 

Exchange(s), Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) etc.  

 

The Company has complied with all applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Listing 

Agreement executed with the Stock Exchanges, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable rules/regulations/guidelines issued 

from time to time.       

33. COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARD OF ICSI 

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings.    
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34.  EMPLOYEES RELATIONS 

During the year under review the relations with the employees has been cordial. Your  

directors place on record their sincere appreciation for services rendered by the employees of 

the Company.        

35. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT  

 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, a detailed Management Discussion and Analysis Report has been 

appended separately, are forming part of this of this Report. 

  

36. VIGIL MECHANISM: 

As per the Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing and Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, the provision of Regulation 22 relating to Vigil Mechanism is not 

applicable to our Company with effect from 1
st
 December 2015.  However in line with the 

requirement u/s 177(9) & (10) of Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Meeting of 

the Board and its powers) Rules 2014, your company has adopted a Whistle Blower polices 

establishing vigil mechanism to provide a formal mechanism to Directors and employees to 

report genuine concerns. The policy provides for adequate safe guards against victimisation of 

persons who use such mechanism and also provide for direct access to the chairman of the 

Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. The functioning of the Vigil Mechanism 

is reviewed by the Audit Committee. It is hereby affirmed that no personnel of the company 

has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower policy is available at 

Company’s website at www.intltd.co.in.  

 

APPRECIATION & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 

The Board of Directors would like to express their sincere thanks to the Shareholders & Investors of 

the Company for the trust reposed on us over the past several years. Your Directors are highly 

grateful for all the guidance, support, assistance and co-operation received from the Banks, 

Departments of Central Government & State Governments, other Government Departments, 

Members, Esteemed Customers and Suppliers during the year under review. Your Directors also wish 

to place on record their sincere appreciation for the dedicated efforts and consistent contribution made 

by all the employees at all levels for their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and dedication during the 

year. 

  

By Order of the Board 

For International Constructions Limited 

Place: Bangalore  

Date:  24.07.2019 

 

  

                                        sd/-xxx 

Anil Kumar Sethi 

Chairman & Managing Director 

(DIN NO: 00035800)  
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The following is the List of Annexures which is attached as a part of Boards’ Report: 

                    

ANNEXURES 

Serial No Particulars 

01 Policy for selection and appointment of 

Directors, KMPs & their remuneration 

02 AOC-1 – Details of Subsidiary & 

Associate Companies 

03 Secretarial Audit Report 

04 Particular Of Employees And Related 

Disclosures 

05 Disclosures Pursuant to Schedule V to SEBI 

(Listing Obligations And Disclosure 

Requirement) LODR Regulations, 2015 

06 Form MGT-9-Extract of Annual Return 
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Annexure-1 to the Boards’ Report  

POLICY FOR SELECTION AND APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS, KMPs AND OTHER 

EMPLOYEES AND THEIR REMUNERATION  

A) Policy for appointment and removal of Director and KMP  
 

Appointment criteria and qualifications  

 

a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and 

experience of the person for appointment as Director or KMP and recommend to the Board 

his / her appointment.  

 

b) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he 

/ she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether 

qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for 

the position concerned.   

 

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time 

Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person 

holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of 

shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to 

the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond 

seventy years.  

 

 Term / Tenure  

a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director:  

 

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing 

Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time.  

 

b) Independent Director:  

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board 

of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by 

the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. No Independent Director 

shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such Independent Director shall be eligible 

for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. Provided 
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that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed in or be 

associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.  
 

Evaluation: 

 

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director and KMP once a year. 

Removal: 

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, 

rules and regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons 

recorded in writing, removal of a Director or KMP subject to the provisions and compliance of the 

said Act, rules and regulations.  

Retirement: 

The Director and KMP shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act and the prevailing 

policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director and KMP in the 

same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of 

the Company, subject to the recommendation of the Committee. 

B) Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Whole-time Director and KMP  

General:   

a) The remuneration / commission to the Whole-time Director and KMP will be 

determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. The 

remuneration / commission shall be subject to the prior/post approval of the 

shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever required.  
 

b) The remuneration / commission to be paid to the Whole-time Director and KMP shall 

be in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and as per the 

provisions of the Act.  

 

c) Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing Director/ 

Directors for indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such 

insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such 

personnel. Provided that if such person is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on 

such insurance shall be treated as part of the remuneration. 
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Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director and KMP: 

a) Fixed pay:  

The Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a 

monthly remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the 

Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites including, employer’s 

contribution to P.F, pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and 

approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the 

shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.  

a) Minimum Remuneration:  
 

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the 

Company shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance with the 

provisions of Schedule V of the Act and if it is not able to comply with such provisions, with 

the previous approval of the Central Government.  

b) Provisions for excess remuneration:  
 

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration 

any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction 

of the Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company 

and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not 

waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government.  

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:  

a) Sitting Fees:  
 

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for 

attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees 

shall not exceed Rs. One Lac per meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may 

be prescribed by the Central Government from time to time. 

***  
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Annexure-2 to the Boards’ Report Form AOC-I 

 (Information in respect of the Subsidiary Companies) Part-A 

                (Rs. In ‘000’) 

Sl. 

No 

Particulars Name of the Subsidiary 

1 Name of the Subsidiary 

Company 

ADD Realty 

Ltd 

ADD-Elcina 

Electronics Pvt 

Ltd 

ADD 

Industrial Park 

(Tamil Nadu) 

Ltd. 

Ratnatray Mega 

Food Park Pvt 

Ltd 

2 Financial Year of the Subsidiary 

Company 

31
st
 March 

2020 

31
st
 March 

2020 

31
st
 March 

2020 

31
st
 March 2020 

3 Reporting period for the Subsidiary 

concerned, if different from the 

holding company’s reporting period 

    

4 Reporting currency and Exchange 

rate as on the last date of the 

relevant FY in case of foreign 

subsidiaries 

NA NA NA NA 

5 Share Capital 147,148.30 2,600.00 146,120.00 100.00 

6 Other Equity 206,142.77 (2,807.14) 25,911.17 (998.96) 

7 Total Assets 5,06,355.05 1.26 199,653.80 8.04 

8 Total Liabilities 
 

1,53,063.99 208.40 27,622.62 907.00 

9 Investments 
 

1,56,504.84 - - - 

10 Turnover 
 

- - - - 

11 Profit/Loss before taxation 
 

(16,191.38) (20.30) (4,4781.13) (8.51) 

12 Provision for Taxation 
 

(17,156.16) - (598.00) - 

13 Profit/Loss after taxation 
 

964.78 (20.30) (4,183.12) (8.51) 

14 Proposed Dividend - - - - 

15 % of shareholding 
 

79.40% 62.96% 63.85% 78.61% 

    Notes: 

     Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - Nil 

     Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year-Nil 
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     Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies  

                                                                                                                    (Rs. In ‘000’) 

Name of associates/Joint Ventures Delhi Waste 

Management 

Limited 

SPM Engineers 

Ltd 

1. Latest audited Balance     Sheet Date 31.03.2020 31.03.2020 

2.  Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held 

by  the company on the year end 
 

 
 

 

No. 6,85,800 12,34,600 

Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint 

Venture 
 

33,995.38 

 

9,861.20 

 Extent of   Holding% 45.46% 45.33% 

3 Description of how there is significant 

influence 
 

Holding more than 

20% of share 

capital 

Holding more than 

20% of share 

capital  

 

4.  Reason why the associate/joint venture is 

not consolidated 

 

It is Consolidated 
It is Consolidated  

 

5.  Net worth attributable to shareholding as 

per latest audited Balance Sheet 

 

3,49,247.93 

 

108509.97  

 

6.  Profit/(Loss) for the year (74,529.66) (10235.39) 

      i.   Considered in Consolidation (74,529.66) (10235.39) 

      ii.   Not Considered in Consolidation - - 

Note: In case of SPM Engineers Ltd., un-audited financial statements were considered as the 

audited statements are not available as of signing date. 

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations-NA 

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year-NA 

 

For G L Kothari & Co                                  For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.001445S 
 

 

        sd/-xxx                          sd/-xxx                                  sd/-xxx                                  sd/-xxx 

C.A G L Kothari          Nitesh Kumar Jain  Anil Kumar Sethi                 Priti Devi Sethi 

Proprietor         Company Secretary                        Director                                Director 

M. No: 025481          ACS54402                    (DIN No: 00035800)               (DIN No: 00635846) 

 

Place: Bangalore                                                           Place: Bangalore  

Date: 24
th

 July 2020                                                  Date: 24
th

 July 2020 
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Annexure-3 
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Annexure-4 
 

PARTICULAR OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH 

RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

i) Ratio of the remuneration of each Director/KMP to the median remuneration of all the 

employees of the Company for the financial year:  

 

Median remuneration of all employees of the Company for Financial Year 

2019-20 

3,14,028 

The percentage increase in median remuneration of employees in the 

Financial Year 

Nil 

The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31
st
  

March, 2020 

8 

 

ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief 

Financial Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year: 

(Rs. In ‘000’) 

Name  Remuneration 

for financial 

Year 2019-20 

Remuneratio

n 

for financial 

Year 2018-19 

% increase in 

remuneration 

in the 

Financial Year 

2018-19 

Ratio of 

Remuneration 

to median 

remuneration of 

all employees 

Mr. Anil Kumar 

Sethi, MD** 

6,300.00 

 

8,400.00 
- - 

Mrs.  

Priti Devi Sethi  
- - - - 

Mr. Rajesh 

Kandoi, 

Independent 

Director* 

- - - - 

Mr. Amitava 

Basu, 

Independent 

Director* 

- - - - 

Mr. Om Prakash 

Sharma 
- - - - 

Mr. S Nakkiran, 

Company 

Secretary*** 

      1,769.11  

 

      2,174.09  

 - - 

Nitesh Kumar 

Jain**** 

- - 
- - 

* No remuneration or commission was paid to independent directors during the year under review. 

**     No commission was paid to Managing directors during the year under review. 

***  Ceased to be Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. March31, 2020 

**** Appointed w.e.f. 3rd April, 2020 
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iii) the number of Permanent employees on the rolls of the company : Eight (8) 

 

iv) The aforesaid details are calculated on the basis of remuneration for the financial year 

2019-20. 

 

v) average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the 

managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 

increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are 

any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: NIL 

 

vi) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company:  

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration 

Policy of the Company and No any Remuneration was paid to any directors during the 

year under review except MD. 
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DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH 

RULE 5 (2) & (3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 
 

A. Names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the financial year 2019-

20:  

                                                         (Amount. in Rs. ‘000’) 

Name Remuner

ation 

Received  

Designation Qualification Age 

Pukhraj 

Jain 

1,156.91 Accounts 

Manager 

Graduate 

Finance  

expert  

57 

S 

Nakkiran 

1,769.11 AGM & 

Company 

Secretary 

CS, CMA and 

B.Com 

 

65 

Chandra 

Mohan 

768.60 Project 

Executive 

Graduate 38 

Sanup 

Nair 

302.39 IT Head Graduate & IT 

Expert 

33 

Prasanth 

C 

325.67 Admin 

Executive 

Graduate and 

office admin 

35 

Manju CP 119.14 Office 

Executive 

Graduate 30 

Nagesh 169.91 Office 

Executive 

Graduate 40 

Francis 167.12 Office 

Executive 

Graduate 33 

Notes: 

i. The nature of employment in all cases is regular. 

ii. None of the employee held any equity shares in the Company as cited in Clause (iii) of Rule 5(2) 

iii. None of the employees mentioned above is a relative of any Director or Manager of the Company. 

 

B. Names of employees who are in receipt of aggregate remuneration of not less than rupees one 

crore and two lakh if employed throughout the financial year 2019-20: 

 

Name & 

Designat

ion 

Age 

(In 

Year

s) 

Remunera

tion 

Received 

 

Nature of 

Employ

ment 

(Contract

ual or 

otherwis

e) 

Qualifica

tion &  

Experien

ce  

Date of 

commence

ment of 

Employme

nt  

Last  

Employ

ment  

%of  

Equi

ty  

Shar

e 

held  

Whet

her 

Relate

d to  

Direct

or or  

Mana

ger  

NIL 
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C. Name of employee whose remuneration in aggregate was not less than eight lakh and fifty 

thousand per month if employed for part of the financial year 2019-20: 

Name & 

Designat

ion 

Age 

(In 

Year

s) 

Remunera

tion 

Received 

 

Nature of 

Employ

ment 

(Contract

ual or 

otherwis

e) 

Qualifica

tion &  

Experien

ce  

Date of 

commence

ment of 

Employme

nt  

Last  

Employ

ment  

%of  

Equi

ty  

Shar

e 

held  

Whet

her 

Relate

d to  

Direct

or or  

Mana

ger  

NIL 

 

  

By Order of the Board 

For International Constructions Limited 

Place: Bangalore  

Date:  24.07.2019 

 

  

                                        sd/-xxx 

Anil Kumar Sethi 

Chairman & Managing Director 

(DIN NO: 00035800)  
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Annexure -5 

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SCHEDULE V TO SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT) LODR REGULATIONS, 2015: 

 

1. Related Party Disclosure: 

      (Amt. in Rs. ‘000’) 

S. 

No.  

Name of the 

Company/Individual 

Relation Nature of 

Transaction 

Disclosures of 

Amounts at the year 

end and maximum 

amount of loans/ 

advances/ 

Investments 

outstanding during 

the year 

1 ADD Realty Limited Subsidiary Company Loan Received 

Loan Paid 

Rs. 8,550.00  

Rs. 500.00 

2 SPML Infra Limited Enterprises in which 

KMP/Relatives of 

KMP having 

significant influence 

or control 

Interest paid 

 

Rs. 4,808.83 

3 Meena Holding Limited Enterprises in which 

KMP/Relatives of 

KMP having 

significant influence 

or control 

Loan Received 

Interest paid 

 

Rs. 1,100.00 

Rs. 3.91 

4 SPM Engineers Limited Enterprises in which 

KMP/Relatives of 

KMP having 

significant influence 

or control 

Loans Paid Rs. 863.70 

5 Subhash Chand Sethi Relative of KMP Loans Paid Rs. 238.04 

6 Suman Sethi Relative of KMP Loans Paid Rs. 825.00 

7 Shipi Sethi Relative of KMP Loans Paid Rs. 550.00 

8 Anil Kumar Sethi Key Managerial 

Person 

Loan Received 

Interest paid 

Remuneration Paid 

Rs. 3,229.35 

Rs. 261.77 

Rs. 6300.00 

9 S. Nakkiran Key Managerial 

Person 

Remuneration Paid Rs. 1,769.11 

* Detailed disclosure of Related Party Transactions has been provided in the Note # 38 of Balance Sheet. 
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OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

 

2. Management Discussion and Analysis: 

I.  This Section includes discussion on the following matters within the limits set by the listed 

entity’s competitive position: 

a) Industry structure and developments. 

b) Opportunities and Treats. 

c) Segment wise performance 

d) Outlook 

e) Risk and concerns 

f) Internal Control Systems and their adequacy – Company has aligned its current 

 systems of internal financial control with the requirement of Companies Act 2013. 

 The company’s Internal Control System is designed to ensure operational efficiency, 

protection and conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial 

reporting and compliance with laws and regulations. The internal control system is 

supported by an internal audit process for reviewing the adequacy and efficiency of the 

Company’s internal controls, including its systems and processes and compliance with 

regulations and procedures. 

a) Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance. 

b) Material developments in Human Resource / Industrial Relations Front including 

 number of people employed. 

 

II. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: Financial Statements of the Company have been 

prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards as prescribed. 

 

3. Corporate Governance Report – Pursuant to Regulation 15 (2) of SEBI LODR Regulations 

2015, Company has been exempted from providing disclosures under regulations 17, 18, 19, 

20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and 

Para C , D and E of Schedule V this Clause as paid up equity share capital not exceeding Rs. 

Ten Crores and net worth not exceeding Rs. Twenty Five Crores as on the last day of the 

previous financial year.    

 

4. Declaration signed by the CEO stating that the members of Board of Directors and 

senior management personnel have affirmed compliances with code of conduct of Board 

of Directors and Senior Management: - Pursuant to Regulation 15 of SEBI LODR 

Regulations 2015, Company has been exempted from providing disclosures under this Clause. 

 

5. Compliance Certificate either from the Auditors or Practicing Company Secretaries 

regarding compliances of conditions of Corporate Governance shall be annexed with the 

Director’s Board: Pursuant to Regulation 15 of SEBI LODR Regulations 2015, Company 

has been exempted from providing disclosures under this Clause. 
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6. Disclosures with respect to Demat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account: 

 

a) Aggregate Number of Shareholders and the outstanding Shares in the Suspense 

account lying at the beginning of the year – Nil 

b) Number of Shareholders who approached listed entity for transfer of Shares from 

Suspense Account during the year - Nil 

c) Number of Shareholders to whom shares were transferred from Suspense Account 

during the year - Nil 

d) Aggregate number of shareholders and their outstanding shares in the Suspense 

Account lying at the end of the year - Nil 

e) That the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of 

such Share claims the Shares- NA 

7. General Shareholder Information:  

 

a) Corporate Identification Number (CIN) : L45309KA1983PLC038816 

b) Registered office of the Company  Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower B1, 

5th Floor, HAL Old Airport Road, Bengaluru 

– 560 017. 

c) 37
th

 Annual General Meeting 

 

Date 

 

Time 

 

Venue 

 

 

: 

 

: 

 

: 

 

 

30
th

 September, 2020  

 

at 3:00 P.M. (IST) 

 

The Company is conducting meeting through 

Video Conference / Other Audio Visual 

Means pursuant to the MCA Circular dated 

May 05, 2020 and as such there is no 

requirement to have a venue for the AGM) 

details please refer to the Notice of this AGM. 

d) Financial Calendar   

 Financial Year : April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021 

 Annual General Meeting : On or before September 30, 2021 

 
First quarter results (Unaudited) : On or before August 14, 2020* 

 
Second quarter results (Unaudited) : On or before November 14, 2020 

 
Third quarter results (Unaudited) : On or before February 14, 2021 

 
Results for the Financial Year (Audited) : On or before May 30, 2021 

  * Pursuant to SEBI circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/140 dated 

July 29, 2020, the time for submission of financial results for the quarter 

ended June 30, 2020 has been extended till September 15, 2020. 
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e) Book Closure Date : 24/09/2020 to 30/09/2020 

(both days inclusive) 

    

f) Listing on Stock Exchanges : National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

(NSE) 

Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, 

Bandra (E), Mumbai 400051 

e) Stock Code (Symbol) : 

 

NSE - SUBCAPCITY 

 

   The Company has paid listing fees to NSE for 

the financial year ended March 31, 2020. 

    

    

f) Registrar & Transfer Agents : 3A, Auckland Place,  

Room No. 7A & 7B, 7th Floor, Kolkata-

700017. 

Phone:  033 – 2280-6616/6617/6618; Fax: 

033 – 2215 6823 

E-mail : nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com 

 

g) Share Transfer System : The share transfers are being affected 

physically by the Company’s share transfer 

agents, M/s Niche Technologies Pvt. Limited, 

Kolkata. 

    

h) Dematerialisation of Shares : The shareholders of the company are free to 

dematerialize their shares and keep them in 

Dematerialized form with depository 

participant. 98.83% of the Company’s Paid-

up Share Capital is in dematerialized form 

and balance 1.17% is in physical form as on 

31st March, 2020. 

 

Company’s ISIN No is ‘INE845C01016’. 

i) Liquidity of Shares : 

 

Shares of the Company are being trading 

freely on the above said Stock Exchanges. 

 

j)  Shareholding Pattern as on 31
st
 March 2020 : 

 CATEGORY No. of Shares 

held 

% age of 

shareholding 

A PROMOTER’S HOLDING:   

1. Promoters 

 - Indian Promoters 

 - Foreign Promoters 

 

27,25,470 

Nil 

 

75.00* 

Nil 
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2. Persons acting in Concert  Nil Nil 

B. NON-PROMOTERS HOLDING   

3. Institutional Investors Nil Nil 

a. Mutual Funds Nil Nil 

b. Banks, Financial Institutions, 

Insurance Companies (Central/ State 

Govt. Institutions / Non-government 

Institutions) 

Nil Nil 

c. FIIs Nil Nil 

4. OTHERS Nil Nil 

a. Private Corporate Bodies Nil Nil 

b. Indian Public 9,08,490 25.00* 

c. NRIs / OCBs Nil Nil 

d. Employees Nil Nil 

d. Clearing Members Nil Nil 

 TOTAL 36,33,960 100.00 

         *After achieving Minimum Public Shareholding on 25.1.2019 
 

k)  Distribution of Shareholding: 
 

Distribution of shareholding of shares of the Company as on March 31, 2020 is as follows:  

 

No of Equity Shares Shareholders Shareholding 

Number % of total Number % of 

total 

1 500 105 65.22 17,847    0.50 

501 1,000 17 10.56 13,513    0.37 

1,001 5,000 21 13.04 47,217    1.30 

5,001 10,000 5 3.11 34,954    0.96 

10,001 50,000 4 2.48 84,330    2.32 

50,001 10,000 3 1.86 2,12,880    5.86 

1,00,001 And 

Above 

6 3.73 32,23,219   88.70 

Total 161 100.00 36,33,960  100.00 
 

 

l) ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE 

 

The Shareholders may address their communication / suggestion / grievances / 

other queries to: 

 

Mr. Nitesh Kumar Jain, 

CS & Compliance Officer 

International Constructions Limited 

Golden Enclave, Corporate Block, Tower B1, 5
th

 Floor,  

HAL Old Airport Road, Bengaluru – 560 017 

Phone: 080 – 49411700; Fax: 080 – 49411701 
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9. CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, as adopted by the Board of Directors is a 

comprehensive code applicable to all Directors, Executive as well as Non-executive and also 

members of Senior Management.  

  

By Order of the Board 

For International Constructions Limited 

Place: Bangalore  

Date:  24.07.2019 

 

                                         sd/-xxx 

Anil Kumar Sethi 

Chairman & Managing Director 

(DIN NO: 00035800)  
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Annexure 6 to Boards Report 

Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on the financial year ended on 31
st
 March, 2020 

 
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS 

 
 

 

i) 

CIN: 

 

L45309KA1983PLC038816 

Foreign Company Registration 

Number/GLN 

 

Nil 

Registration Date [DDMMYY] 

 

01/08/1983 

 

ii)  

Category of the Company  

[Pl. tick] 
Public Company √    

Private Company  

iii) Sub Category of the Company 

[ Please tick whichever are 

applicable] 

 
1.  Government Company                 

2.  Small Company                           

3.  One Person Company                 

4.  Subsidiary of Foreign Company    

5.  NBFC   

6. Guarantee Company   

7.  Limited by shares  √ 

8.  Unlimited Company   

9.  Company having share capital  

10. Company not having share capital 

 

 

11. Company Registered under Section 8  
 

 

 

iv) 

Whether shares listed on recognized 

Stock Exchange(s)  

 

 

If yes, details of stock exchanges where 

shares are listed 

 

 

 

 

     Yes √ 

SN Stock Exchange Name 

1  National Stock of India 

Limited 

 

 

 

 
Vi)  NAME AND REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY: 

Company Name INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 
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Address 

GOLDEN ENCLAVE, CORPORATE 

BLOCK, TOWER B1, 5
TH

 FLOOR, HAL 

OLD AIRPORT ROAD,  

Town / City     BANGALORE 

State    
KARNATAKA 

Pin Code: 560017 

Country Name   :                           
INDIA 

Telephone     (With STD         Area Code             

Number) 

- 

Fax Number   : 

 

- 

Email Address  sindhukeshavan@addgroup.co.in 

Website  www.intld.co.in  

Name of the Police Station having 

jurisdiction where the registered office is 

situated 

HAL POLICE STATION 

Address for correspondence, if different 

from address of registered office: 

 

NA 

Vii) Name and Address of Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA):- Full address and contact details to 

be given. 

 Registrar & Transfer Agents ( RTA ):- NICHE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED 

 
 Address 3A, Auckland Place, Room No. 7A & 7B, 7th 

Floor, 

  Town / City     KOLKATA 

 
State    

WEST BENGAL 

 Pin Code: 700017 

 Telephone     (With STD         Area Code             

Number) 

033 – 2280-6616/6617/6618 

 Fax Number   : 033 – 2215 6823 

 Email Address  nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com  

   

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 

10 %   or   more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated) 

  
SN Name and Description of main products / 

services 

NIC Code of the 

Product/service 

%  to total turnover of the 

company 

  Nil 
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 

 

Sl. 

No 
Name of the company CIN/GLN 

Holding/ Subsidiary / 

Associate 

 

1 

 

ADD REALTY LIMITED 

 

U70101KA2007PLC042211 

 

SUBSIDIARY  

COMPANY 

2 
ADD INDUSTRIAL PARK 

(TAMIL NADU) LIMITED 
U45209KA2007PLC133412 

 

SUBSIDIARY  

COMPANY 

3  
ADD ELCINA ELECTRONICS 

PVT LTD 
U31401KA2015PTC080857 

 

SUBSIDIARY  

COMPANY 

 

4. 

 

RATNATRAY MEGA FOOD 

PARK PVT LTD 

 

U74990WB2014PTC199885 

 

SUBSIDIARY  

COMPANY 

 

5 

 

SPM ENGINEERS LIMITED 

 

L29120WB1984PLC066611 

 

ASSOCIATE 

COMPANY 

 

6` 

 

DELHI WASTE 

MANAGEMENT LIMITED 

 

U74999KA2005PLC130126 

 

ASSOCIATE 

COMPANY 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 

year[As on 1-April-2019] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the 

year[As on 31-March-2020] 

% 

Change 

during 

the year      Demat Physic

al 

Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physic

al 

Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

A.  

Promoters 

    

 

  

  

(1) Indian          

a)Individual/ 

HUF 
2211770 0 2211770 60.864 2211770 0 2211770 60.864 Nil 

b) Central 

Govt 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

c) State 

Govt(s) 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

d) Bodies 

Corp. 
513700 Nil 513700 14.136 513700 Nil 513700 14.136 0 

e) Banks / FI 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

f) Any other 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

 

Nil 

Total 

shareholding 

of Promoter 

(A) 

2725470 Nil 2725470 75.00 2725470 Nil 2725470 75.00 Nil 

B. Public 

Shareholding 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

1. Institutions 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

a) Mutual 

Funds 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

b) Banks / FI 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

c) Central 

Govt 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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d) State 

Govt(s) 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

e) Venture 

Capital Funds 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

f) Insurance 

Companies 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

g) FIIs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 h) Foreign 

Venture 

Capital 

Funds 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

i) Others 

(specify) 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Sub-total 

(B)(1):- 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

2. Non-

Institution 
         

a) Bodies 

Corp. 
435560 500 436060 12.00 435560 500 436060 12.00 Nil 

i) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

ii) Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

b) 

Individuals 
         

i) Individual 

shareholders 

holding 

nominal 

share capital 

upto Rs. 1 

lakh 

65708 42060 107768 2.966 62835 42060 104895 2.887 -0.079 

ii) Individual 

shareholders 

holding 

nominal 

share capital 

in excess of 

Rs 1 lakh 

361628 Nil 361628 9.951 357169 Nil 357169 9.829 -0.102 

c) Others 

(specify) 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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Non 

Resident 

Indians 

1000 Nil 1000 0.028 Nil Nil Nil Nil -0.028 

Overseas 

Corporate 

Bodies 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Foreign 

Nationals 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Clearing 

Members 
2034 Nil 2034 0.056 10366 Nil 10366 0.285 +0.229 

Trusts Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Foreign 

Bodies - D R 
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Sub-total 

(B)(2):- 
865930 42560 908490 25.00 865930 42560 908490 25.00 Nil 

Total Public 

Shareholdin

g 

(B)=(B)(1)+ 

(B)(2) 

865930 42560 908490 25.00 865930 42560 908490 25.00 Nil 

C. Shares 

held by 

Custodian 

for GDRs & 

ADRs 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Grand Total 

(A+B+C) 3591400 42560 3633960 100 3591400 42560 3633960 100 0 

 

  



INTERNATIONAL CONSTRUCTIONS LIMITED 
CIN: L45309KA1983PLC038816 

ICL Board’s Report  40 

 

 

B) Shareholding of Promoters- 

SN Shareholder’s 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year 

(01.04.2019) 

Shareholding at the end of the year 

(31.03.2020) 

% 

change 

in share 

holding 

during 

the year 

  

  No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

 

1 

Zoom 

Industrial 

Services Ltd 

 

513700 14.136 Nil 513700 14.136 Nil Nil 

 
Anil Kumar 

Sethi 

       

2 
343670 9.457 Nil 343670 9.457 Nil Nil 

3 Anil Kumar 

Sethi (HUF) 

 

30000 0.826 Nil 30000 0.826 Nil Nil 

4 Deepak Sethi  

 
887100 24.411 Nil 887100 24.411 Nil Nil 

5 Priti Devi 

Sethi 

 

951000 26.170 Nil 951000 26.170 Nil Nil 

  

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) – Change as above 

 

SN Shareholder’s 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of 

the year 

Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 

shareholding 

during the 

year 

  

  No. of 

Shares 

% of 

total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 
 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 
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D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:  
 

       (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

 

Sl 

No. 

Top 10  Shareholders M/s / M/r/ M/s No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company 

At the beginning of the year   

1 
TECHNO MECHANICAL SERVICES PVT 

LTD 
427460 11.763 

2 NIRMALA JAIN 65000 1.789 

3 SURBHI JAIN 63000 1.734 

4 ANITA JAIN 62000 1.706 

5 SEEMA JAIN 60000 1.651 

6 UMANG AGARWAL 47500 1.307 

7 SUBHASH KUMAR JAIN        25879 0.712 

8 MAMTA DEVI JAIN 24101 0.663 

9 ARUN KUMAR GOYAL 14148 0.389 

10 HITESH KUMAR MAHAWAR 7550 0.208 

 
At the end of the year   

1 
TECHNO MECHANICAL SERVICES PVT 

LTD 
427460 11.763 

2 SUSHILA DEVI PATNI 100289 2.760 

3 VIMAL KUMAR PATNI 90880 2.501 

4 ANITA JAIN 62000 1.706 

5 SEEMA JAIN 60000 1.651 

6 NIRMALA JAIN 30000 0.826 

7 SURBHI JAIN 14000 0.385 

8 
ANAND RATHI SHARE STOCK BROKERS 

LIMITED 
10330 0.284 

9 ARUN KUMAR GOYAL 9019 0.248 

10 HEMLATA 8007 0.220 

11 MAMTA DEVI JAIN 2880 0.079 
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E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:  

 

SN 

Shareholding of each Directors and 

each Key Managerial Personnel 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

 Cumulative 

Shareholding during 

the 

year 

No. of shares % of 

total 

shares of 

the 

company 

 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

At the beginning of the year     

Anil Kumar Sethi 

 

343670 9.46 343670 9.46 

                   Priti Devi Sethi 

 

951000 26.17 951000 26.17 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the 

year specifying the reasons for 

Increase / 

  Decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 

bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 
 

    

At the end of the year  

Anil Kumar Sethi 

 

343670 9.46 343670 9.46 

             Priti Devi Sethi 

 

951000 26.17 951000 26.17 

 Rajesh Kandoi 60 0.00 60 0.00 
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F) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for 

payment:  individual          

         (Rs. In ‘000’) 

Details 

Secured 

Loans 

excluding 

deposits 

Unsecured 

Loans  
 Deposits  

 Total 

Indebtedness  

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 

financial year 2019-20 
        

i) Principal Amount Nil 64634.30 Nil 64634.30 

ii) Interest due but not paid Nil - Nil - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil - Nil - 

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 64,634.30 0.00 64,634.30 

Change in Indebtedness during the 

financial year 2019-20 
        

* Addition Nil 9,445.85  Nil  9.445.85 

* Reduction Nil 27,237.78  Nil  27,237.78 

Net Change Nil 17,791.94 Nil 17,791.94 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial 

year 2019-20 
        

i) Principal Amount Nil 46,842.36 Nil 46,842.36 

ii) Interest due but not paid Nil - Nil - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil - Nil - 

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 46,842.36 Nil 46,842.36 

 

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

1. Remuneration to managing director, whole-time directors and/or manager: Rs. 63,00,000/- 
 

2. Remuneration to other Directors : Nil 

 

3. Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than : MD/Manager/WTD 

 

S Nakkiran, Company Secretary – Rs. 17,69,110/- 
 

VI.  PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:   

 

No penalties/punishment is imposed on the Company during the year and neither any Compounding of 

offences is made by the Company. 
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Type Section of 

the 

Companies 

Act 

Brief 

Description 

Details of 

Penalty / 

Punishment/ 

Compounding 

fees imposed 

Authority 

[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT] 

Appeal 

made, 

if any (give 

Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty           

Punishment    NIL       

Compounding           

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty           

Punishment    NIL       

Compounding           

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty           

Punishment    NIL       

Compounding           

  

 

By Order of the Board 

For International Constructions Limited 

 

 

 

Place: Bangalore 

Date:  24.07.2020           

 
                                            

 

 

                                          sd/-xxx 

                           Anil Kumar Sethi  

         Chairman 

   (DIN NO: 00035800) 

  
 



G. L. Kothor i & Co
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of INTERNATIONAL coNsrRUCTIoNs LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the standalone Financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of International
Constructions Limited ("the Company") which includes joint operations, which comprise the
Balance sheet as at March 3l , 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of
Qther Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a surmary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the informition requiied by thetompanies
Act,20l3, as amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformit-v with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March3l,2A20, its profit including othe. cornprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on thit date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified wtder Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the 'Auditors' Responsibilities foi the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Stafe.ments' section of our reporf. We arl independent of the Company in
accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Managemen/s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial StatementsT6

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 1,g4(S)
of the Companies Act, 20lg ("the Act") with respect to the preparation and
presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a true arrd fair view of
the financial positioru financial performan.g Ad cash hows of the Company in

,'. -)' -. -- .

,i', .',,'€.,".
r i\.*'-' , | .\r - I
\.\ .:.1 .r

't{J--,'--

No. 23, Arrhant Complex
3"' Floor, A M. Road, J. C. Road Cross

Bangalore _ 560 002
Phone: +91 80 22236978,41608884

Mob. : 53412 20928, 98867 0.1321
e-mail : glk@glkothari.com



accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 201,4. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making jucigments anci estimates ihai are reasonabie anci prudenf anci design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatements, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements
based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
anci the ciisciosures in ihe financiai statements. The proceciures seiected ciepenti on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company' as at 3L llarch 2020 and its lcss and its cash flo-"v for thc i,'car cndcd cn that

.]

date.



Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issuecl
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the Annexrne " A" a statement on the matters specifierJ in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by section 1a3(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our auclit.

b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and cash flow statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) in our opiniory the aforesaid standalone financial statements
Accorrnting standards specified under section 133 of the Act-
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20L4;

comply with the
read with Rule 7

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2020, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2020 fuombeing appointed as a director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act; and

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in "Annexure B" and

g) with respect to the other to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules,201.4, in our opinion
and to the best of our information anci according to the expianations given to
US:

i. the company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements;

The comoanv has made provision, as required under the aoolicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term
contracts including derivative contracts.



iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and protection Fund by the Company

For G.L.KOTHAR| & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 0014455

CA G.L.KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No.: 025481

Ptace: Bangatore
Date: 24th JuIy ZO2O
UD|N: 2002548i AAAAAT3T 62



Annexure - " 6" to the Independent Auditors'Report

The Annexure referred to in our independent Auclitors' report to the members of the
comPany on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020,
we report that:

i.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

A substantial portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by
the management during the year and in our opinion ir"q.r.ncy of
verification is reasonable havine resard to the size of the Companv ancl
the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
physical verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds
of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

There is no inventory during the year, hence the said disclosure is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
disclosed details required to be disclosed for the grant ofloans, secured or unsecured
to companies, firms and other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Cornpanies Act.

In Our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans and investments made.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year
under coi rsider.atiorr.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records
under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the activities rendered by the
Company

Accordine to the records of the Companv and information and explanations
given to us, the Company has been regular in clepositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Emproyee's state Insurance,
Income tax, sales Tax, wealth Tax, service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty,
Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities during the year. According to the information and expianations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of above were in
arrears as at iviarch 3i, 2A2A for a period of more than six months from the
date
The company has not defaulted in payment of any loan installment or interest
in respect of term loans from bank. The company has not issued any
debentures and ,?k",ryloan from financial institution.

,., i q:.
\,, ,.. \,!
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a)

b)

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.



9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loan during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or
reporteci ciuring the course of our auciit.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/ provided
for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of sectionlg7 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In Our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of
the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related
pariies are in compiiance wiih seciionsiT7 arui. i88 of the Act where
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fullv or oartlv
convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered in
to non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Accordingly, parugraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act1934.

1.4.

15.

1.6.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 0014455

#--- ]-.
CA G.L.KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No.: 025481

Ptace: Bangalore
Date: 24th JuIy 2O2O
UD|N: 2002548i MAAAT3TIZ



Annexure -,,8,, to the IndependentAuditors, Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under (i) of sub-sectio n 143 of theCompanies Act, 20-1,3 ("the Act,)

we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting ofI|ITER|'IATICIJAL CC|ISTRUCTIO|.IS LII"fITED ("the Coii.^,pany ") as or,31 l"fai.cl-,2020 in conjuednction with our auclit of the standalone financiai ,tut"*"rrts of theCompany for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial contrors

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaininginternal financial contrJls based ." jh; i;i"r""r ..";;;-;;"r"riiu,.,.ial reportingcriteria established by the Company considering the essential components ofinternal control stated in the Guidince Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controlsover Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.('ICAI').
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance ofaciequate internai financiai controis that irere 

-f"rutir,g 
effectiveiy for ensuring theorderly and efficient conduct of its businerr,'irr"lrrdiig adherence to company,spolices, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds anderrors' the accurlcy-and completeness of ih" u..o,rnting records, and the timelyPreParation of reliable financial informatiory as required under the Companies Act,

Auditor's Responsibility

our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financialcontrols over financial reporting based on our audit. we'conducted our audit inaccordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls overFinancial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the standards on Auditing, issuedby iCAi and cieemed to be prescribeci uncier section i43 (i0) of the Companies Act,20'l'3' to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, bothapplicable to an audit of internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Instituteof Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the Guidance Note requirethat we-comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtainreasonable assurance about whether udeq,rai" internal financial controls overfinancial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operatedeffectively in all material respects.

our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about theadequacy of the internal financiil controls system over financial reporting and theiroperating effectiveness. our audit of internal financial controls over financialreporting included obtaining an uldergtgnding of internal financial controls overfinancial reporting assessing the risk thdt;;1"t"',liriweakness exists, and testing andevaluating the design and tperatitth Wrr"rr"r, of internal control based on thei:'i''*-
\.i'..

.i{



assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, inclucling
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the company's internal financial controls
system over financiai reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance resardins the reliability of financial reoorting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately
anci fairiy refieci the transactions anci dispositions of the assets of the
comPany

provide reasonable assurance that truncations are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
comDanv are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company, and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisitiory use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, Projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financiai reporiing to future periods are subject to the risk that ihe internai financiai
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the polices or procedures may
deteriorate.

2.

a
J.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an
financial contrqls ,system over financial reporting and such

adequate internal
internal financial

at 3'1. March 2020.controls ou ev+"hiiancral' reportin g were operating effectively as



based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control statecl in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Inclia.

Fo;' G.L.KOTHAP.I & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 0014455

'- rJ
I

CA G.L.KOTHARI
Proprietor
Membership No.: 025481

Ptace: Bangalore
Date: 24th JuIy ZOZO

UDIN : 20025481 AAAMT3T 62



International Constructions Limiteo
Balance Sheet as at 31st l{arch 2020

(Amount in 000)

Particulars Note Ho- | As at

I 3'tst March, 2O2O

Ar at 31st
l4arch,2019

j

jo,,,,,

I 
Non-current assets

| 
(a) Propeny. plant and equipment

I 

(b) Financiat assets

I - Investments

j

I

j Current assets

l(u)tlul.'l ur:",:.
I I raoe Kecervaotes

I 
- Casn anA Cash Equivalents

| - Loans

| - Other current financial Assets

| 
(b) Other current assets

I 

t.) Cur"n, Income tax ReceivabLe (Net)

I

I

lroul 
rssrrs

Itq,n ono LraBrLrtEs

l,o,n,
I 

(a) Equity share capitat

| 

(b) Other Equity

t_.
I 

I orar equrry

lr-narr-rrrrs
I 
Non-current liabilities

j (a) Financiat tiabitities
t^
| -borrowrngs

| - Other Financiat Liabitities

| 
(b) Provisions

I (c) Deffered Tax Liabitities

| {a) O,h", Hon Current Liabitities

I

I 
Current liabilities
(a) Financiat tiabitities

- Eorrowings

- Trade payables

Totat outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small
enterprise

TotaI outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprise and smalt enterprise

(b) Other current habitities
(c) Provisions

Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUIW AND LIABILTIES

5

6

7

8

9

27

'10

l1

11

13

14

15

16

19

20

't7

18

9.41

1,68,651 .61

1 58,661l.'

42.41

1,89,244.74

| ,89,287.14

574.73

1 ,07 4.63

9,580.53

25.00

6,657.27

14,485.96

16,231.20

117.65
r't 571 r'q

25.00

8.80

12,905.79

32,398.12 72,861.93

2,O1,O59.14 2,62.149.Oa

36,339.60

78,084.93

36,339.60

98,949.71

1,14,424.53 't ,3 5,289.31

42,247.33

10,566.34

148.a4
'190.91

21,424.50

37,438.51

1 1 ,668.08
125.40

7,51 1.03

21,474.50

74.577.91 78,167.52

4,595.03

160.92

7,298.90

1.84

27,195.79

9,641.66

11,852.54

2.26

t 2,056.59 44,692.25

86,634.61
2,O1,O59.14

1,26,459.77
2,62,'t49.OA

The notes are an integral part of these financial statement

5ummary of Significant accounting policies

Contigencies & Commitments

As per our Repot of even date.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.001445 5

s.-- '-f-
CA G.L.KOTHARI

Proprietor
Membership No. 025481

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 24 JuLy 20?0

7

28&19

For and on behalf of the board

ll
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\ \ r-' ,'''
\ ,Y'

1/Kmarsettriy

il11h,,,,,

'Y Ll,.-..-
(Om Prakash Sharma)

Chief Financial Officer

/4r l .."",\

,##,",",
Company Secretary

ACS:54402

esh J(andoi)

Direclar

DIN : 07,134686

Ptace: Bengaluru

Date: 24 July 2020



(Amount in'000)

Particu lars Notes
For the year ended 31

st March 2020
For the year ended
31st March 201 9

llncome

I n"u"nr" from operations

lotn". 
ln.or"

I

I 
total Income

I 
rtp"nr.,

lfmptoyee 
benefits expense

lFinance 
Cost

lDepreciation 
and Amortisation expenses

jutner 
LXpenses

I rotal Expenses

I

LI

22

23

74

25

26

30

12,234.80

14,473.00

3,179.81

12,?34.80 17,652.81

11,314.50

5,127.66

11.24

3,474.22

1 0,965.35

4,391.23

14.98

1,441.04

19,927.62 16,812.59

before exceptional items and tax from continuing operations

ExceDtionaI ltems
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations

ax Expenses

Current tax

Mat Credit entittement
Net Current Tax

Income tax for eartier year

Deferred tax
Income Tax Expense

for the year from Continuing Operations

lOther 
Comprehensive Income (OCl)

lOther comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss

lsubsequent periods:
I

lRe-Measurement gains on defined benefit plans

Income Tax effect
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:

Remeasurement of Investments at Fair Value

Income Tax effect

tn

Other Comprehensive lncome for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Earnings per share - Basic and Diluted (NominaI value Rs. 10 per share)

(7,692.82) 840.27

17,692.82. 840.22

228.27

306.03

170.40

(3,2s3.88)

534.75

(454.41\

(3,083.48) 79.84

(4,609.34) 760.38

73.33

(19.07

(20,593.05)

4,283.35

1.25

(0.33

(5s,702.9s

11,586.21

(16,?55.43) (44,115.821

(2O,864.78)

(1.17\

(43,355.44)

0.21

International Constructions Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 3 1 st March 2020

The notes are an integral part of these financial statement

Summary of Significant accounting poticies

As per our Report of even date.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.001445 5

r *t_l=
I

CA G.L.KOTHARI

Proprietor

Membership No. 025481

Ptace: Bengaturu

Date: 24 Juty 2020

For and on behatf of the
"*t;

I 'I
itr-' .,\v_'

(lniMiriir settri)
Direiior

t,rV^. ri
$[ (-.'
\Rtfgsh Kandoi)

Direc:tor

DIN : 07434686

,/1, 
F->*l-

1Ni*n'Ru6i7luin1
Company Secretary
ACS :54402

DIN : 00035800

€_LLr,...'.
(Om Prakash Sharma)

Chief FinanciaI Officer

Ptace: Bengaturu

Date: 24 Juty 2020



International Constructions Limiteo
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended J.l st 

^{arch 
2O2O

For the year ended
31 st llarch 2O2O

For the year ended
31st fiarch 2019flow from operating actjvities

Profit before tax from Conttnuing Operat,ons

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and Amorttsation Expenses
Finance Expenses

5undry Balances W/off
Loss/(profit) on Sale of Assets

Interest Received
Dividend Received
Re-/r,teasurement gains on defined benefit plans

(Decrease)/lncrease in Other Current Financial assets
(Decrease)/lncrease in Trade ReceivaDte
(Decrease)/lncrease in Other Current assets
(Decrease )/lncrease in Trade payables
(Decrease )/lncrease in Other Financral tiabilities
(Decrease )/lncrease in Other Current liabilities
(Decrease )/lncrease in provisions

(Decrease )/lncrease in Other Non Current tiabilities

Income tax paid / (Refund)
Net cash flows from operating activities

flow from investing actiyities
Purchase / Sale of Assets
Sale of Investments

Movement in Loans & Advances (Long Term)
DiYidend Received
Interest Received

Net cash flows used in investing activitjes

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from Borrowings
A,lovement in Specjal Reserve
Finance Expense (Net)

cash flows froml(used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivarents
and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

ash and cash equivalents at the end of the

(7,692.82

11.24

5,127.66

1,015.69

(238.24

(1,074.49

840.22

14.98

66.95

103.00

(2,054.81

1.15
(2,758.16)

14.620.78

81.51

10,912.28

(65.24)

(9,972.29

1,479,21

(1O,419.33

250.01

4,409.20

2,054.81

714.O2

(17,791.94)

in Liability arrising from Borrowings,or the year ended 31st March
particulars

2020

'lst April 2019 Proceedsq"":::,:!s'' N"" c,,'. 't-- Repayment Fair vatue Changes | 3lst li;;2020
27,195.79

4.808.82 j 42,247.33
4,595.03 27.195.79

64,634.30
4Jos.a2T--4----6J42J64,595.03 27.195.79

in Liability arrising from Borrowines tor tne ended 31st li{arch 20l9
Particulars

Repayment Fair Value Changes 31st ltarch 2019
/)

27,195.79

61,300.43
lTotal

As Der

611 .7 6

1,545.48 4,267.59 37,438.51

1,545.48 4,267.59

27,195.79

64,634.30

For and on behalf of the board
As per our Report of even date

For G.L.KOTHARt & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.001445 s

Membership No. 02548i

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 24 July 2020

.4' \t Lgl2-
(NitqeJl fd-.T94.ird
Company Secretary
ACS : 54402

Iri),r
|\"r"\v

ar Sethi)

DIN : 00035800

Gl!-l*lr>-
(om Prakash3Fii6Ej

\ Fi'-
i*

CA G.L.KOTHARt

Proprietor

Place: Eengaturu

Date: 24 JuIy 2O2O

ii\e+ xanaoi)
Direc

DIN : 07+34686

Chief Financial Officer



International Constructions Limited
statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31st tr{arch 2o2o

A) Eguity Share CaDital

B) Other Equity

For the year ended 31st l,tarch 2O2O

particulars

-

Equlty shares of Rs 1O ca.h j<<,,-d .,.R.

(Amount in
As at

Jlst rvlarch, 2O2O
As at

1st March- zoi9
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period

;'ils.: 
i? 

::''::h#:f ":
16,339.60 36,339.60

36,3 39.60 36,3 39.60

Retained earnings
Equity Component

of Financial
Instrument

Capital Reserues

on
Amalgamation

(Amount in 000)

Special
Reserve

Other
comprehensive

income
Total

lProfit for the year
Adjustments

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ]Total comprehcnqiva i^-^-^ |

Balanceasat 3lstMaF

16,531.55

(20,864..78,

16,?55.43

(4,609.3 5)

72,920.59 33,636.08 (24,138.-51

('t6,255.43

98,949.71

(20,864..78)

(2O.864.78\11 ,922.20 72,920.59 33,636.08 | _ T

-

For the 78,O84.93
year ended 3lst rvlarch 2019

I particulars Capital Reserve:
on

Amalpamation

Special
Reserye

in 000)
Retained earnings of Financial

Other
comprehensive

income
Total

Profit for the year
Adjustments

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Igglcomprehensive income
Balance as at 31st March 2oi-

(43,355.44

9,731 .55

44,115.82

10,491 .93

/t,920.59 31,6t6.08 9,619.49

(9,619.491

{9.51 9.49r

19,9/7.31

(44,115.82)

(44,115.821.

1,47,193.09

(43,3s5.44)

112.Q6

(43,243.38)16,5 31 .5 5 72,920.59 33,636.08
The notes

(24,138.51 98,949.71
I ne notes are an integral part of these financiat statement

As per our Report of even date.

For G.L.KOTHAR| & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.001445 S

.q_r

CA G.L.XOTHARI

Proprietor
Membership No. 025481

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 24 Juty 2020

For and on behalt of the board

I
I' t,
t_)lltlivv -..,.,(Anjrr(umar Sethi)

Director
DIN : 00035800

lV.Lr, (tF'
[)l$i!i r"naorr

Dire\
DIN : 07434686

,1 ^,^' ^,,*fi#*,
Company Secretary
ACS : 5.1402

Ptace: Bengaluru
Date: 24 Juty 2020

(3:-}\^.
(Om Prakash'

Chief Financial Officer



International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 3 1 st 

^{arch 
2020

Company background
The Company is a listed Company with its shares listed on National Stock Exchange and Kotkata Stock Exchange. lts main
business is execution of job work contracts and investment in securities and other avenues.

Significant accounting policies

2.0'l Basis of preparation and presentation
(a) Statement of compliance
These financiaI statements are prepared in accordance with Indian
Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 201 5.

Accounting Standards (lnd AS) notified under the

Accounting poticies have been consistently apptied except where a newty issued accounting standard is initially adopted or
a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting poticy hitherto in use.

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrua( basis, except for the
following material items that have been measured at fair vatue as required by retevant lnd AS:

i. Certain financial assets and tiabitities measured at fair value (refer accounting poticy on financial
instruments) and

ii.Defined benefit and other long-term emptoyee benefits.

(c) Going Concern Concept and its impact on the company
Considering the unpresidented gtobat pendamic of covid 19 and the stow down of business druing the 23rd Marcn
2020 to 17th May 2020, the management had made the assessment of going concern abitity of the company.
Based on the management assessment on its business impact during the tock down, which was common across
the industry and had no specific impact to the company's operation as such. Accordingty in view of management
the going concern assumption of the company is unaffected and the financial statements have been prepared on
going concern basis.

(d) Use of estimates and judgement
The preparation of financiat statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates ano
assumptions that affect the apptication of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, tiabitities, income and
expenses' Actual resutts may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a
periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.

(e) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-,19):
The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID - 19 on
the carrying amounts of receivables, payables and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions
retating to the possibte future uncertainties in the globat economic conditions because of this Dandemic, the
Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of
information. The impact of COVID -19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimateo as
at the date of approval of these financial statements.

(f) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and tiabitities in the batance sheet based on current/ non-current ctassification. An asser rs
treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be reatised or intended to be sotd or consumed in normat operating cycte,
- Hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be realjsed within twetve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equjvatent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settte a llabitity for at teast twelve months
after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A tiabitity is current when:
- lt is expected to be settted in normal operating cycle,
- lt is hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- lt is due to be settted within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditionat right to defer the setttement of the tiabitity for at least twe{ve months after the reporting
period.
The Company ctassifies atI other liabitities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are classified as non-current assets and tiabitities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their reatisation in cash and casn
equivatents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2020

7.02 Property, plant and equipment.

Under the previous GAAP (lndian GAAP), property, plant and equipment were carried in the batance sheet at their carryingvalue being the cost of acquisition or construction tess accumurated depreciation.
The cost of property, plant and equipment incrudes freight, duties, taxes and other incidentaI expenses retating to theacquisition and instatlation of the respective assets, The present vatue of the expected cost for the decommissioning of anasset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those assets which necessarity take a substantiatperiod of time to get ready for their intended use are capitatized.

Advance paid towards the acquisition of assets outstanding at each barance sheet are shown under capitat advances. Thecost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use before such date, are disctosed as capitat work inprogress.

The management has identified usefut life of the assets (tangibte), based on the tife as prescribed jn Schedute il to thecompanies Act, 2013. Further the residual vatue is is estimated to be 5% of cost of asset.

2.03 lmpairment of non-financial assets
The company assesses at each batance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assetscomprising a cash-generating unit may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, or when annuat impairment testing for anasset is required, the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset,s recoverable amount is the higher ofan asset's or cash-generating unit's (cGU) fair value tess costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverabte amount isdetermined for an individuat asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are targely independent of thosefrom other assets or groups of assets. when the carrying amount of an asset or cGU exceeds its recoverabte amount, theasset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vatue using a pre-tax discountrate that reflects current market assessments of the time vatue of money and the risks specific to the asset. lndetermining fair value less costs of disposat, recent market transactions are taken into account. lf no such transac.ons canbe identified' an appropriate vatuation modet is used. These calcutations are corroborated by valuation muttiptes, quotedshare prices for pubLicty traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detaited budgets and forecast catculations, which are prepareoseparately for each of the cGUs to which the individuat assets are attocated, These budgets and forecast catcutatjonsgeneratty cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a tong-term growth rate is catculated and apptied to pro,ectfuture cash ftows after the fifth year. To estimate cash ftow projections beyond periods covered by the mosr recentudgets/forecasts' the Group extrapolates cash ftow projections in the budget using a steady or dectining growth rate forsubsequent years' unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, tlis growth rate does not exceed the long-termaverage growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market inwhich the asset is used.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indicationthat previousty recognised impairment tosses no longer exist or have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Groupestimates the asset's or cGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment toss is reversed onty if there hasbeen a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverabte amount since the tast impairment loss wasrecognised' The reversaI is timited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, norexceed the carrying amount that woutd have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment toss beenrecognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss untess the asset iscarried at a revatued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revatuation Increase.

2.04 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benetits witl ftow to the Company and therevenue can be retiabty measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the tair valueof the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractuarty defrneo terms of payment, net of taxes orduties cottected on behatf of the government. Further, The company uses significant judgments while determining thetransaction price altocated to performance obligations .



International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 3lst rrlarch 2020

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is estabtished, which is generatly when
sharehotders aDDrove the dividend.

2.05 Leases

The Company evatuates if an arrangement quatifies to be a tease as per the requirements of Ind A5 116. ldentification of a
tease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (inctuding
anticipated renewals) and the applicabte discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-canceltabte period of a lease, together with both periods coverec oy
an option to extend the tease if the Company is reasonabty certain to exercise that option; and periods covereo Dy an
option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the
Company is reasonabty certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a tease, it
considers atl retevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option
to extend the lease, or not to exercise the optjon to terminate the tease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a
change in the non-cancetlabte period of a lease.

The discount rate is generatty based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evatuated or for a
portfolio of teases with simi[ar characteristics.

2.05 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financiat asset of one entity and a financiaI tiabitity or equity
instrument of another entitv.

A Financial Assets

a) Classification

The company ctassifies its financiat assets in the fottowing measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair vatue (either through other comprehensive income, or through
profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractuaI terms of
the cash ftows,

For assets measured at fair value, gains and tosses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in debt instruments, this witt depend on the business modet in which the investment is hetd. For
investments in equity instruments, this wilt depend on whether the company has made an irrevocabte etection at the time
of initiat recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

b) Initial recognition and measurement
Alt financiat assets are recognised initialty at fair vatue ptus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair vatue
through profit or [oss, transaction costs that are attributabte to the acquisition of the financiat asset. Purchases or sates of
financiat assets that require detivery of assets within a time frame estabtished by regutation or convention in the market
ptace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the GrouD commits to Durchase or sett the
asset.

t '.)
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International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 31st lrtarch 2020

c) Subsequent measurement
Financial assets carried at amortised cost: A financial assets is measured at amortised cost if it is hetd within a business
model whose objective is to hotd asset in order to cottect contractual cash flows and the contractual cash terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash ftows that are solety payments of principal and interest on the principat
amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is accounted in proflt or toss using the effective interest
rate method. lmpairment losses, forex gain / loss and gain / loss on derecognition of financiat asset in this category is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair vatue throueh other comprehensive income (FWOCI): A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI, if it
is hetd withing a business model whose objective is achieved by both from cottection of contractual cash ftows and setting
the financiat assets, where the assets' cash ftows represent sotety payments of principat and interest. Further equity
instruments where the company has made an irrevocable etection based on its business modet, to classify as instruments
measured at FVTOCI, are measured subsequentty at fair vatue through other comprehensive income.

Debt instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCl), except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
profit and loss. When the financiat asset is derecognised, the cumutative gain or toss previousty recognised in OCI is
rectassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised. Interest income from these financial assets is inctuded ln other
income using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken to OCI and there is no subsequent reclassificatjon of fair
vatue gains and tosses to profit or loss. Dividend from such investments are recoqnised in Drofit or loss.

FinanciaI assets at fair vatue throueh profit or loss (FWpL): A financiat asset which is not classified in any of the above
categories are subsequentty fair valued through profit or toss. Att gains and losses are recognised in profit or toss.

d) lmpairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward tooking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised
cost and FVTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology apptied depends on whether there has been a sienifjcant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the company appties the simptified approach specified by Ind AS 109 Financiat Instruments, which
requires expected tifetime tosses to be recognised from initiat recognition of the receivables,

e) Derecognition of financial assets

A financiat asset is primarity derecognised when:
- The rights to receive cash ftows from the asset have expired, or
' The company has transferred its rights to receive cash ftows from the asset or has assumed an obtigation to pay rne
received cash ftows in futt without material detay to a third party under a'pass-through'arrangement; and either (a) the
company has transferred substantiatly atl the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred
nor retained substantiatty atl the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred controt of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash ftows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownershio. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantiatty att of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred controt of the asset, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing invotvement. ln that case,
the company atso recognises an associated tiabitity. The transferred asset and the associated tiabititv are measureo on a
basis that reftects the rights and obtigations that the company has retained.

B Financial liabitities
a) Classification

The company ctassifies its financial tiabitities in the fottowing measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequentty at fair value through profit or toss, and
- those measured at amortised cost.
The ctassification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of
the cash ftows.

b) Initial recognition and measurement
The company recognises financiat tiabitities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Att
financial liabitities are recognized at fair vatue on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directtv attributable to the

I
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International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 31st |{arch 2020

c) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financiaI tiabitities depends on their classification, as described below:

Amortised cost: After initial recognition, interest-bearing toans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the Effective interest rate (ElR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabitities are
derecognised as welt as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is catcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integrat part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of Drofit and toss.

Financial tiabitities at fair vatue throueh profit or loss: Financiat tiabitities at fair vatue through profit or toss inctude
financiat tiabilities hetd for trading and financiat tiabitities designated upon initiat recognition as at fair vatue through
profit or toss. Financiat tiabitities are ctassifjed as hetd for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasrng rn
the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge retationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatlves are
also ctassified as hetd for trading untess they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on tiabitities hetd for trading are recognised in the profit or toss.

Financiat tiabitities designated upon initiat recognition at fair vatue through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and onty if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For tiabitities designated as FWpL, fair vatue
gains/ losses attributabte to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequenrty
transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer the cumutative gain or loss within equity.
Alt other changes in fair vatue of such tiabitity are recognised in the statement of profit or [oss. The company has not
designated any financiat tiability as at fair vatue through profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial Liabilities
A financial tiabitity is derecognised when the obligation under the tiabitity is discharged or cancelted or expires. When an
existing financiat tiability is reptaced by another from the same tender on substantiatty different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantialty modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
originat tiabitity and the recognition of a new tiabitity. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit or toss.

C Financial guarantee contracts
The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present vatue of the difference in net cash flows between the
contractual payments under the debt instrument and the payments that woutd be required without the guarantee or the
estimated amount that woutd be payabte to a third party for assuming the obligations.
(i) as Guarantor
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financiaI tiabitity at the time the guarantee is issued. The tiabitity is
initialty measured at fair vatue and subsequentty at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind A5 109
and the amount initialty recognised less cumutative amortisation, where appropriate.

where guarantees in relation to toans or other payabtes of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair vatues are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

(ii) as Beneficiary
Financiat guarantee contracts are recognised as a financiaI asset at the time the guarantee is taken. The asset is initia[v
measured at fair vatue and subsequentty amortised over the guarantee period.

Where guarantees jn relation to toans or other payabtes are provided by group companies for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of equity.

D Offsetting financial instruments
Financiat assets and tiabitities are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance sheet where there is a tegalty
enforceabte right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settte on a net basis or realise the asset
and settte the tiabitity simuttaneously. The legatty enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceabte in the normat course of business and in the event of defautt, insotvency or bankruptcy of the comapany or the
counrerparty.

2.07 Borrowings

Borrowings are initiatly recognised at fair vatue, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequentty measured
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transactjon costs) and the redemption amount rs
recognised in profit or toss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees Daid on the
establishment of loan facitities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probabte that some
or atI of the facitity witl be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred untit the draw down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probabte that someoi.3f!"oJ:the facitity witt be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for tiquidity services and uror2#oa'or)"ri# e+;oq "i 
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lnternational Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 3 1 st |{arch 2020

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obtigation specified in the contract is discharged, cancetted or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financiat tiabitity that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or tiabitities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as other gains/(tosses),

Borrowings are ctassified as current tiabitities unless the company has an unconditionat right to defer setttement of the
tiabitity for at teast 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a materiat provision of a long-term
loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the tiabitity becomes payabte on
demand on the reporting date, the entity does not ctassify the tiabitity as current, if the lender agreed, after the repolrng
period and before the approval of the financiat statements for issue, not to demano paymenr as a consequence of the
breach.

2.08 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisjtion, constructjon or production of an asset that necessarity takes a
substantiat period of time to get ready for its intended use or sate are capitatised as part of the cost of the asset. ALt other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost atso includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.09 Taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and tiabitities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax taws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantivetv
enacted' at the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable income.

'Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in corretation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodicatty evatuates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in

which appticabte tax regutations are subject to interpretation and estabLishes provislons wnere approplate.

Minimum alternate tax ('lv1AT') paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company
recognizes MAT credit availabte as an asset onty to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company witt pay
normaI income tax during the specified period, i.e,, the period for which MAT credit is attowed to be carried forward. tn
the year in which the company recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for
Credit Avaitabte in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income tax Act, 1 961, the said asset is created by way of
credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as 'MAT Credit Entittement'. The company reviews the ,MAT credit
entittement' asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing
evidence that it witt pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax asset is defined in Ind AS 12 to inctude the
carry forward of unused tax credits. MAT Credits are in the form of unused tax credits that are carried forward by the
company for a specified period of time. Accordingty, MAT Credit Entitlement is grouped with Deferred Tax Asset (net) in
the Batance sheet.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is Provided using the tiabitity method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabitities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

'Deferred tax tiabitities are recognised for att taxabte temporary differences, except:
- when the deferred tax tiabitity arises from the initial recognition of goodwitt or an asset or tiabitity in a transaction

that is not a business combination and, at the tjme of the transaction, affects nejther the accountinq profit nor taxabte
orofit or Ioss:

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsjdiaries, associates and jnterests ln
joint ventures, when the timing of the reversat of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is orobable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeabte future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for att deductibte temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxabte profit witt be
avaitabte against which the deductibte temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
tosses can be utitised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset retating to the deductibte temporary difference arises from the initiat recognition of an
asset or Uabitity in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxabte profit or toss:

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated wjth investments in subsjdiaries, associates and interesrs ln
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised onty to the extent that it is probabte that the temporary differences wilt



International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 31st |{arch 2020

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probabte that sufficient taxable profit wilt be avaitabte to attow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utitised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that tt has
become probabte that future taxabte profits witt attow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appty in the year when the asset is
reatised or the tiabitity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax taws) that have been enacted or substantivety enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax retating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or toss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the undertying transaction either
in OCI or directty in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax tiabitities are offset if a tegatty enforceabte right exists to set off current tax assers
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes retate to the same taxabte entity and the same taxation authorlv.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that
date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferreo tax
benefits recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwitt related to that acquisition if they resutt from new
information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date, lf the carrying amount of goodwiu is
zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capitat reserve depending on the principte exptained for
bargain purchase gains. Alt other acquired tax benefits reatised are recognised in profit or toss.

2,10 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obtigation (tegat or constructive) as a result of a past event, lt
is probabte that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits witl be required to settte the oblieatjon and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obtieation.

lf the effect of the time vatue of money is materiat, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reftects,
when appropriate, the risks specifjc to the tiabitity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination
A contingent tiability recognised in a business combination is initiatty measured at its fair vatue. Subsequentty, it is
measured at the higher of the amount that woutd be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above
or the amount initiatty recognised less, when appropriate, cumutative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
requirements for revenue recoqnition.

2,1 1 Cash and cash eouivalents
Cash and cash equivatent in the batance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deDosits with an orieinat
maturity of three months or [ess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vatue.

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (toss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruats of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash ftows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated.

2.12 Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the parent
The Company recognises a tiabitity to make cash or non-cash distrjbutjons to equity hotders of the parent when the
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the djscretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the sharehoLders. A corresponding amount is recognised directty
in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair vatue of the assets to be distributed with fair vatue re-measurement
recognised directty in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the tiabitity and the carrying amount
of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of Drofit and [oss. \
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Notes to financial statements as at 31st l{arch 2020

2.1 3 Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (toss) attributabte to owner's of the company for the
year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during reporting period.

The number of shares used in computing dituted earnings/ (loss) per share comprises the weighted average snares
considered for deriving basic earnings/ (loss) per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares which
coutd have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Ditutive potentiat equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been
issued at a tater date. ln computing dituted earnings per share, onty potential equity shares that are ditutive and which
either reduces earnings per share or jncrease toss per share are included.

2.14 Segment reporting
Based on the "management approach" as defined in lnd AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker
evaluates the company performance and attocates resources based on an anatysis of various performance indicarors oy
busjness segments.

2.15 Recent Accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such
notification which would have been appticabte from Aprit 1, 2020.
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Amount in'000)

Particulars
Furniture &

Fixture
Vehicle Computer Total

GROSS BLOCK

As at April 1, 2018 7.31 69.76 2.10 79.17
Additions

Disposats

Exchenge Differennce
As at March 31, 2019 7.31 69.7 6 2.10 79.17
Additions

Disposats

Exchenge Differennce
69.76 69.76

As at March 31,2O2O 7.31 2.10 9.41

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As at April 1, 2018 21.78 21.78
Depreciation Charge for the year

lmpairment
Disoosats

Exchange Differennce

14.98 14.98

As at March 31,2019 36.76 36.76
Charge for the year

lmpairment
Disposats

Exchange Differennce

11.24

48.00

11.74

48.00

As at March 31 ,2O2O

NET BLOCK

As at March 31,2019 7.31 33.00 2.10 42.41
As at March 31,2O2O 7.31 2.10 9.41



Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019
Non Trade lnvestments (Valued at cost unless stated otherwise (Refer A below)
(a) lnvestment in Equity instruments
Investment in subsidiaries:

(valued at cost)
'11,68,32,562 (March 31, 2019: 11,68,32,562) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, futty paid up of
ADD Reatty Limited.

Investment in Associates:

Unquoted (valued at cost)
6,85,800 (March 31, 2019: 6,85,800 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each, futty paid up of Dethi
Waste Management Limited-

Quoted (valued at cost)
12,34,600 (March31,2019:12,34,600) Equity Sharesof Rs'10/-Each,futtypaidupof SPM

Limited.

Financials assets carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

Investment in others:

80,945(March31 ,2019:8,80,945) Equity Sharesof Rs10/-Each,futtypaidupof SPMLtnfra
Limited

11,04,000(March 31, 2019: 1,04,000 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each, futty paid up of SPML

llndia Limited

lFinancials assets carried at fair value through Profit And Loss (FVTPL)

Unquoted

6,00,000(March 31,2019:6,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each, futty paid up of Bharat
Hydro Power Corporation Limited

46,000(March31 ,2019i46,000)Equity Sharesof Rs10/-Each,futtypaidupof Zoom
Industria[ Service Limited

97,000(March31 ,2019:97,000) Equity Sharesof Rs10/-Each,fullypaidupof Suraksha
Insurance Brokers Private Limited

1,000(March 31,2019: 1,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each, futty paid up of Mathura Nagar
Waste Processing Company Limited
'1 ,000(March 31 ,20'19:1,000) Equity Sharesof Rs 10/- Each, futtypaidupof AttahabadWaste
Processing Company Limited

71 (March 31, 2019: 71 ) Equity Shares of Rs 10/- Each, futty paid up of SPML Infrastructre
Limited (beneficial Interest transferred in favour of SPML Infra Ltd)

1,04,328.37

33,995.38

9.861.20

4,536.87

?,126.80

8,670.00

477.00

4,656.00

0.00

0.00

1,04,378.37

33,99s.38

9,861.20

26,752.16

1,407.00

"arr.a,I

":::l

'*l
0.07 |

Total 1,68,651.61 1,89,244.74

International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2020

FINANCIAL ASSETS

4 INVESTMENTS (Amount in'000)

* Investment in equity shares of Subsidiaries and Associates have been vatued at fair value as at 1st Aorit 2017 and the fair vatue has been
adopted as deemed cost. Subsequentty carried at same deemed cost.
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u rrent

1 ,89,244,74
1,89,244.74

36, 1 1 3.36

1 ,53,1 31 .37

-Current 1,68,651 .61

1,68,651 .61

14,398.06

1,54,253.55

TotaI Investments

Aggregate vatue of quoted investments
Aggregate vatue of unquoted investments

amount of impai in vatue of investments
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Particulars As at
31st lr{arch, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

Unsecured

considered good

considered doubtful
574.73 16,231.20

Total 574.73 16,231.20

International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2020

5 TRADE RECEIVABLES

6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

7 LOANS

' Loan and advances due from companies in which Company's director(s) is / are director(s) / member(s)

8 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Break up of financial assets

9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount in '000)

(Amount in '000)

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in 000)

(Amount in '000)

t
\l

Particu lars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Ealances with banks:

On current accounts

Cash on hand
1,072.79

1.84

1 1 5.85

1 .80

Total 1,O74.63 117 .65

Particulars
As at

31st Alarch, 2020
As at

3'l st March, 201 9

Unsecured considered good unless stated
Loans to retated party'
Loan to Others

7,080.53
2,500.00

14,163.49

29,410.00

fotal 9,580. 53 43,57 3.49

Particulars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

ADD Reatty Limited 7,080.53 14,163.49

Total 7,080.53 14,163.49

Particulars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 20'19

Security Deposit 25.00 25.00

Total 25.00 25.00

Particu lars
As at

31st March. 2020
As at

31 st lv{arch, 201 9

Investments

Trade Recievables

Cash and cash equivatents
LOans

Other current financiaI Assets

1,68,651 .61

574.73

1,074.63

9,580.53

25.00

1 ,89 ,244.74
16,231.20

117.66

43,573.49

25.00

Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 1 ,79,906.50 7,49,192.O9

Particulars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31 st March, 20'l 9

Unsecured consider good

Advance to Employees

Advance oaid to vendors
Balance Recoverable f rom"Sf"a{UfQW, Authority

6, 1 80.00
477.27

8.80

fotal 6,657 .27 8.80
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1O SHARE CAPITAL

(Amount in'000)

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
Equity Shares: The company has one ctass of equity shares having a par vatue of Rs.10/- per share. Each sharehotder is etigib{e for one vote per share
hetd. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approvat of the sharehotders in the ensuing Annual Generat Meeting, except ln
case of interim dividend. In the event of tiquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of alt preferentiaI amounts, in proportion to their sharehotding.

(c) Shares held by holding company and subsidiary of holding companies:
The company Does not have any hotding Company.

(e) The Company has not attotted any futty paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any ctass of equity shares during the period
of five years immediatety preceding the balance sheet date nor has issued shares for consideration other than cash.f '\,
(f) There are no unpaid catts from director & officers of the company | )

ll t'
(g) There are no buy back of shares during the year by the company. \ \ /

\ f\l
r \ ; ."'I , V.-'
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4,, f,.
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Particulars
As at 31st lvtarch 2020 As at 31st March 20'19

Number Amount (Rs) Number Amount (Rs)

Authorised

Equity shares of Re.10/- each

lssued, Subscribed & Paid-up
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fulty paid'

1,00,00,000 1,00,000.00 1,00,00,000 1,00,000.00
1,00,00,000 1,00,000.00 1,00,00,000 1,00,000.00

36,33,960 36,339.60 36,33,960 36,339.60

Total 36,33,960 36,339.60 3 6,3 3,960 36,339.60

Particulars
Equity Shares Equity Shares

As at 3 1 st March 2020 As at 3 1st lr{arch 201 9

Number Rs Number Rs

ihares outstanding at the beqinninq of the year 36,33,960 35,339.60 36,33,960 36,3 39.60
jhares lssued durinq the vear

Shares bought back during the year

Shares outstandinq at the end of the vear 36,33,960 36,339.60 36,33,960 36,3 39.60

(d) uetalls ot shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of Shareholder
As at 31st lvtarch 2020 As at 31st March 2019

No. of Shares
held

% of Holding
No. of Shares

held
% of Holding

Zoom Industrial Services Limited 5,1 3,700 14.14% 5,1 3,700 14.14%
\ni[ Kumar Sethi 3,43,670 9.46% 3,43,670 9.462
)eepak Sethi 8,87,1 00 74.41y, 8,87,1 00 24.41%
)riti Devi Sethi 9,51,000 26.17% 9,51,000 76.17%
fechnomechanical Services Private Limited 4,27,460 11.76% 4,27,460 11.76%
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11 OTHER EQUITY

Nature and purpose of other reseryes:

Capital Reserves: The excess of tiabitities over the assets on amalgamation has been accounted as capital reseryes.

Special Reserves:As per the provision of NBFC act the special reserye was required to be created and accordingty the
company had created this special reserves.The same has been reversed during the year consequent to deregistration of
company from NBFC provisions.

Equity ComPonent of Financial Instrument: The Company had the Loan Instruments , which has been fair valueo as on

trasition date and the same has been ctassified into the equity component and the financia[ tiabitity and financial asset

based on the terms of contract . The equity component has been shown under the head other equity.

Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings comprise of the company's accumutated undistributed earnings / (losses).

12 BORROWINGS

(Amount in'000)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

U nsecured
Loans & Advances from retated parties

SPML Infra Limited 42,247.33 37,438.51

Total 42,247.33 37,438.51

-'L9-An received from SPML Infra Ltd of Rs 1,01 ,496.82 is interest free loan and the said interest free loan has been
actounfil.as the financiat tiabitity at the fair value on the transition date under lnd AS. The difference between the fair
vqlue,,fd book,Vatue as at 1st October 2017 has been accounted as equity contribution and accordingty thf same!a1s been

ii ieiauCteo-rromthe'borrowings. f-'^, I t
"r \ | t !,.,.,,,.r,' '" '' ---:=-*.--*\--- l'l--'-"'
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(Amount in'000)

Capital Reserve on Amalgmation

Opening balance
(+) Additions
(-) Deductions

Special Reserve

Opening Batance

(+)Additions
(-) Deductions

Ctosing Balance

Equity Component of Financial Instrument
Opening Batance

Addition
Ctosing Balance

Retained Earnings

Opening batance
(+) Adjustment on account of ReversaI of Special

(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year

Closine Batance

33,636.08

9,619.49

112.06

9,731 .55

(7,606.96)

(20,864.78\

26,016.93

9,731.55
(43,355.441

(28,471.73) (7,606.961

Total - Other equity 78,O84.93
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Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2020

13 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st Aitarch, 2019

Advance received for Sale of Investments 10,566.34 1 '1,669.09

fotal 10,566.34 1 1,668.09

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in '000)

(Amount in '000)

(Amount in '000)

14 PROVTSTONS

15 DEFFEREDTAX

16 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITY

Particulars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note - 37) 148.84 125.40

Total 148.84 125.40

Particulars
As at

3'lst March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019
lDeffered Tax Asset

I

lProperty Ptant And Equipment

lProvisions and Disaltowance

lBrought Forward Loss
I

I

Deffered Tax Liability
On account Fair Vatue Measurements

Loan Fair Valuation

MAT Credit Entitlements

3.41

37.92

10,667.47

114.79

12.50

8,597.49

1 0,708.80 8,724.28

1,447.03

16.097.45
5,730.39

17,342.74

17,539.48 23,073,12

(6,830.68) (14,348.841
6,639.77 6,837.81

Total (1e0.91) (7,51 1 .03)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Advance for Sale of Land

Total

21,424.50 21,424.50

21,424.s0 21,424.50



International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31, 2020

17 BORROWINGS

-The Loan is repayble on demand carrying an interest of 'l2o/"p.a

TRADE PAYABLES

Terms and conditions of the above financial tiabitities:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms
- Other payabtes are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months
- Interest payabte is normally settled quarterly throughout the financiat year
- For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 38

For explanations on the Company's credit risk management processes, refer to Note 41

19 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

20 PROV|S|ONS

18

(Amount in'000)

Particulars
As at

31st March. 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Unsecured

Loans from Retated Parties. 4,595.03 27,195.79

Total 4,595.03 27 ,1 95.79

(Amount in '000)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2O19

Trade Payables :

Total outstanding dues of micro and smatl enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and smatl
enterprises 160.92 9,64't .66

Total 160.92 9,641.66

Break uo of cost (Amount rn 000

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2O19

Borrowings

Other financial asset

Trade Payables

46,842.36

25.00

160.92

64,634.30

25.00

9,641 .66

Total 47,028.28 74,3OO.96

(Amount

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Statutory dues inctuding Provident Fund, Tax deducted at source and
Service Tax Payable

Audit Fees Payable

Employee Related payables

Advance received against suppty of goods

247.46

162.00

1,889.44

5,000.00

5,054.3g

6,798.16

Total 7,298.90 11,852.54

(Amount

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer Note - 37) ii 1.84 2.26

Total .';:' r a') 1.84 12.?6

(€ \L1.r^,(:--__



Particu lars For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st lilarch 2019

Consultancy Charges 14,473.00

Total 14,473.OO

International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31, ZOZO

21 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

22 OTHER INCOME

23 EAAPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

24 FINANCE COSTS

DEPRECIATION

OTHER EXPENSES

(Amount in '000)

(Amount in '000)

(Amount in '000)

(Amount in '000)

t.
\t

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

Long term Capitat Gain

Interest Income on lT Refund

Dividend Received

Profit on Sate of Fixed fusets
Interest Income

Sundry Batance written back

1,445.08

0.53

238.24

1,074.49

9,476.46

1,125.00

2,054-.81

Total 17,234.80 3,179.81

Particu lars For the year ended
3lst rrlarch 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

;ataries, Wages and Bonus

3ratuity (Refer Note - 37)

;taff Welfare Expenses

't 1,181 .01

96.34

37.15

10,917.28

48.06

Total 11,314.50 1 0,96 5.3 5

(Amount in

Particu lars For the year ended
3 1 st March 2020

For the year ended
3 1 st ,ilarch 201 9

Interest Expenses on Eorrowings

lnterest expenses on financia[ liabitity
Interest on Statutorv Dues

295.19

4,808.83

23.64

66.95

4,267.59

56.69

Total 5,127 .66 4,391.23

in'000

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st A arch 201 9

Depreciation 't1 24 14.98

Total 11.74 14.98

Particulars For the year ended
31st A arch 2020

For the year ended
31st March 201 9

lAudit 
Fees'

Eank Chagres

Conveyance Expenses

Advertisement

Consuttancy & Professionat Charges

Rates & Taxes

Demat Expenses

Misc Expenses

Repairs & Maintenance- Vehictes

Penatty

Bad debts and Advances

59.00

1.70

146.U
1 58.05

606.95

827.59

1.19

74.42

62.78

500.01

1,035.69

59.00

7.44

17.77

96.01

497.36

607.52

1.U
7.26

49.34

1 03.00

Total 3,474.22 1,441.O4



International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31, ZO2O

' Payment to Auditors (Amount in '000)

27

r)

INCO/IIE TAX ASSETS (NET)

The following table provides the details of income tax assets and tiabilities as at 31st tr{arch 2O2O and 31st
lr{arch 2019:

(Amount in '000)

ii) The gross movement in the currebt tax asset/ ( Liability) for the years ended 31 t{arch 2o2O and 31 March
2019 is as follows:

(Amount in '000)

(Amount in '000)

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount
rate to the profit before income taxes is as below

computed by applying the statutory income tax

iir )

tv)

ll :

{$f\
I \, -)
i \r--tP-

Particu lars
For the year ended

31st l'larch 2020
For the year ended

31st March 2019
As Auditors
- Audit fees
-Tax Audit fees

59.00 59.00

Total 59.O0 59.00

Particulars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 201 9

Income Tax Assets

Current Income Tax Liabitities
Net Balance

14,541.14

55.1 8

13,467.75

556.96
14,485.96 12,905.79

Particu lars As at
3 1 st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

Net current income tax asset at the beginning
Income Tax paid

Current Income tax exoense
Income tax for eartier year

Income tax on other comprehensive income
Net current income tax asset at the end

12,905.79

1,750.57

(170.40

11,481.23

1,958.81

534.25

14,485.96 12,905.79

Particulars As at
31st rr{arch. 2020

As at
3 1 st |{arch, 201 9

Income Tax expense in the Statement of profit and Loss
Comprises:

Current income taxes
Deferred income taxes
Income tax for eartier year

Deferred income tax on other comprehensive income
Income tax expenses (net)

(3,253.88)

170.40

4,264.29

534.25

(454._41)

1 1 ,585.89
1 ,1 80.81 11,665.73

Particu lars As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st lr{arch, 201 9

t tn

Profit before income tax
Appticabte income tax rate
Computed expected tax expense

Effect of expenses not altowed for tax purDoses

Effect of income not allowed for tax purposes

Effect of carry forward tosses attowed for tax purposes

Income tax expense charges to the statement of profit and loss

76.00%

1,6U.02
1 AAA \7

(4,148.58

u0.22
26.00%

718.46

1,128.69

(95.76)

(498.67)

534.27



International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31, ZOZO

28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Capital and Other Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capitaI account and not provided for: as at 31stMarch 2020 - Rs. Nil, as at 3lstMarch 2019 _ Rs. Nit.

Earning Per Share
Basic EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit for the year attributabte to equity hol.ders of the parentby the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during tne year.

Dituted EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit attributable to equity hotders of the parent (afteradjusting for interest on the convertibte preference shares) by the weighted average number of Equity sharesoutstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that woutd be issued onconversion of alr the dilutive potentiaI Equity shares into Equity shares.

The fotlowing reftects the income and share data used in the basic and dituted Eps computations:

29

30

As at
31st March, 2020

Claims against Companies n@
a) Corporate Guarantee given to punjab Nationat Bank for
financial assistance sanctioned to ADD Technotogies (lndia) Ltd as

term of sanction

b) Disputed tax demands for Asst. year 201 1-12 f or which the
company has preferred Appeat

c) Disputed tax demands for Asst. year 200g_09 for which the

d) Disputed tax demands for Asst. year 2013-14 for which the
company has preferred Appeat

) Disputed tax demands for Asst. year 2016_17 for which the

(e) 8,80,945 equity shares of SpML Infra Limited have been
ptedged in favour of rFCr Limited (previous year : rFCr Limited)
against the loan taken by SpML Infra Limited as per terms of
sanction.

4,00,000.00

1,O0,000.00

5,521.27

2,308.23

6,909.97

3,292.42

Particulars

Net nrnfit rrrrilrhl

n'O0O
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019
, vr LvurLy Jilot gilutugl5

-

weigntedAvera@

-

Racirrnrl 6;1,,1ffi

(4,609.34) 760.38
3,633.96 3,63 3.96

5) e (1.27\ 0.21

31 significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates anoassumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and tiabitities, and theaccompanying disctosures, and the disclosure of contingent tiabitities. Uncertainty about these assumptions anoestimates could result in orrtcomp< rhar ranrri.o - h^+^-i^r )

..'.,,.
' i,.

*.r.w"F*'------ * -



Judgements: In the process of apptying the company's accounting policies, management has made the
fotlowing judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

lnternational Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31 , 2O2O

Estimates and assumptions: The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabitities within the next financiaI year, are described betow. The company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters avaitabte when the financiat statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future devetopments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

lmpairment of non-financial assets: lmpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposat and its vatue in
use. The fair vatue less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sates transactions,
conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices tess incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. The vatue in use catculation is based on a DCF modet. The cash flows are derived from the budget for
the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the company is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that witt enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The
recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF modet as well as the expected future
cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant ro
goodwitt and other intangibles with indefinite usefu[ lives recognised by the company.

Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probabte that taxable

profit witt be avaitabte against which the losses can be utitised. Significant management judgement is required

to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the tikety timing and the

level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Fair vatue measurement of financiaI instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and financial
tiabilities recorded in the batance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their
fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF modet. The inputs to these modets are
taken from observabte markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair vatues. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as tiquidity risk, credit
risk and votatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reDorted fair vatue of financial
instruments.

32 A disclosure with respect to segment reporting is not appticabte, since the Company operates in the simitar
economic characteristics for both the sale of products and for the sale of services and does not have more than
one reportable segment.

33 Foreign Currency Earnings And Outgo Rs. Nit, (PY - Rs. Nit)

34 There are no reported foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or
otherwise, hence the disclosure of the same is not made.

35 CIF value of imports Rs. Nit (PY - Rs. Nit).

36

no lease transaction carried out by the company
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lnternationaI Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31,2020

EAAPLOYEE BENEFITS

Defined contribution scheme: The company does not have any emptoyee contribution scheme expenses.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: ln accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, the Company contributes to a defined benefit ptan (the
"Gratuity Ptan") covering certain categories of emptoyees. The Gratuity Ptan provides a lump sum payment to vested
emptoyees at retirement, disabitity or termination of emptoyment being an amount based on the respective employee's last
drawn salary and the number of years of emptoyment with the Company.

The financial and demographic assumptions on annual basis used for valuation as at the Vatuation Date are shown betow. The
assumDtions as at the Valuation Date are used to determine the Present Vatue of Defined Benefit Obtieation at that date:

of financial

Particulars
As at

31st l{arch 2020
As at

3 1st March 201 9

)iscount rate 7.43% 7.43%

Expected rate of increase in compensation tevel of covered
emptoyees

5.00% 5.00%

A

D

of

Particu lars
As at

3'lst March 2020
As at

31st lv{arch 2019
vlortatity Rate (as % of lAl,rrl (2006-08) (Mod.) Utt. Mortatity Tabte)

1 00.00% 1 00.00%

)isabitity Rate (as % of above mortality rate) 0.00% 0.00%

WithdrawaI Rate

Upto 30 Years 1.00% 3.00%

31 to 44 Years 2.00% 2.00%

Above 44 Years 1.00% '1 .00%

lormat Retirement Age 70 years 70 years

\djusted Averaqe Future Service 26.75 Years 7 Years

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows :

ln

Particu lars Amount

Defined benefit oblieation at 1 Aprit 2018 80.85

lnterest cost 6.27

:urrent service cost 41.80

lenefits paid

lemeasurement (eain)/ toss (1.25

lemeasurement (gain)/ loss- Fjnanciat 2.38

lemeasurement (qain)/ loss " Demoqraphic

Remeasurement (gain)/ Loss- Experience -J-OJ

Return on Plan Assets

Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2019 127.66

lnterest cost 9.49

:urrent service cost 86.86

Senefits paid

lemeasurement (gain )/ toss (73.33 )

Remeasurement (eain)/ loss- FinancjaI 7 .41

Remeasurement (gain)/ loss - Demographic

Remeasurement (gain)/ toss- Experience (80.74)

Return on P[an Assets

Defined benefit obtieation at 31 March 2019 150.67

tl



in the defined benefit (Amount in'000)

Particulars As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 127.66 80.85
Current service cost 86.86 41 .80
)ast service coat

',let Interest cost 9.49 6.27
Sub-total included in profit or toss 96.34 48.06
Benefits pajd

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts inctuded in net interest
expense)

\ctuariaI changes arising from changes in financiaI assumptions 7.41 2.38
Actqqriat changes arising from changes in demographic assumprlons
Experience adjustments -80.74 3.63
iubtotat inctuded in OCI -73.33 1.25
:ontributions by emptoyer
Defined benefit obtigation at the end of the year 150.67 127.66

International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31, 2OZO

(Amount

The sensitivity anatyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapotates the impact on defined benefit obtigation as a resutt o{
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The foltowing payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future vears:
(Amount in'000)

Particulars As at
31st i arch 2020

As at
31st March 2019

/Vithin the next 12 months (next annuat reportinq period) 1.84 7.26
letween2and5years 1 5.28 16.57
Between 5 years 364.11 183.26
Total expected payments 381.22 202.09

The average duration of the defined benefit ptan obtigation at the end of the reporting period is 1 1 years (3.1 March 2019: 7 years)

,. 1

Irtt

i.lll-"Ii.,
V -.u"

in the fair value of plan assets: (Amount in'000)

Particulars As at
3'1st March 2020

As at
31st Aarch 2019

:air Vatue of Plan Assets at the beeinnine NA NA
nterest Income NA NA
:ontributions by emptoyer NA NA
Eenefit Payments from Ptan Assets NA NA
lemeasurements - Return on Assets (Exctudjnq Interest Income) NA NA
=air Vatue of Ptan Assets at the end NA NA

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption for defined benefit oblieations are as shown below:

Particu lars
As at 31st March. 2020 As at 31st March. 201 9

0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease
)iscount rate 143.67 1 58.33 123.97 131.48
lxpected rate of increase in compensation tevet of covered emotovee 1 66.89 1 36.90 1 15.56 170.18
Withdrawat Rate 1 49.13 151 .82 125.57 179.98

'-*ffi
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International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31, ZOZO

39 Fair values
The carrying value and fair value of financiat instrumenrs Dy category:

Assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost

(Amount in 000)

The details of assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through the other comprehensive income.

(Amount

Particulars As at
3'tst March, 2020

As at
31st lilarch, 2019

As at
31st }{arch, 2020

As at
31st A{arch. 2019

Financial assets
Investments 70,466.67 26,257.16 20,466.67 26,252.16

Total 70,466.67 76,257.16 20,466.67 26,252.16

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivabtes, trade payabtes, and other current tiabitities approximate theircarrying amounts targety due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

certain investments are not hetd for trading, instead they are hetd for medium or tong-term strategic purpose. upon the apptication of INDAS 109' the company has choosen to designate these investments in equity instruments as at FWocl as the directors betieve this provides asafior€ meaningful presentation for medium and long term strategic investment, then reftecting changes in fair vatue immediatety in profit

40 Fair value hierarchy
Level 'l: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or tiabilities
Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than quoted prices inctuded in levet 1 tnat are oDservable for the asser or
Level 3: significant unobservabte inputs for the assets or tiabilities that are not based on observabte market data
(unobservabte inputs).

J \.(-u --. -\
L_-__-

1., '|

\t"
V -'-'

Particulars
Value Fair Value

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

Financial assets

Invesments

Trade Recievabtes

Cash and cash equivalents
Loans

Other current financia( Assets

1,54,849

574.73

1,074.63

9, s80.53

25.00

1,75,844

16,231.70

117.66

43,573.49

25.00

1,54,849

574.73

1,074.63

9,580.53

25.00

1,75,844

16,231 .20

1 17 .66

43,573.49

25.00

Total
1 ,66, 1 03.50 2,35,791.46 11,254.89 2,35,791.46

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Trade Payabtes
46,842.36

160.92

64,634.30

9,641 .66

46,842.36

160.92

64,634.30

9,641.66

Total 47,OO3.28 74,275.97 47,OO3 28 74,275.97

The details of assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through profit And Loss.
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41 Financial risk management objectives and policies
The company's principal financiat liabitities, other than derivatives, comprise toans and borrowings, trade and other payabtes, and fjnanciat guarantee
contracts The main purpose of these financiat tiabitities is to finance the Group's operations and to provide guarantees to support rts operations. The
company principal financial assets inctude loans, trade and other receivabtes, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directty from its operatjons.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and hquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
company's senior management is supported by a financiat risk committee that advises on financiat risks and the appropriate financial risk governance
framework for the company. The financiat risk commjttee provides assurance to the company's senior management that the company,s financiat risK
activities are governed by appropriate poticies and procedures and that financiat risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
company's policies and risk objectives.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financiat instrument wiI fluctuate because of changes rn market prices. Market risK
comprlses three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk inctude toans and borrowings, deposits, FVToCI investments and derivative financiat instruments.

The following assumptions have been made in carcutating the sensitivity anatyses:
i' The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financiat assets
and financial tiabitities hetd at l1 March2O7o,31 March 2019 inctuding the effect of hedge accounting.
ii' The sensitivity of equity is calculated by considering the effect of any associated cash flow hedges and hedges of a net rnvestment in a subsidjary at
31 March 2020 for the effects of the assumed changes of the underlying risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ftows of a financial instrument witt fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates retates primarity to the company,s long-term debt obtigations with ftoating
interest rates' The company manages its interest rate risk by having a batanced portfotio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

The company's poticy is to keep between 40% and 60% of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest, exctuding borrowings that retate to discontinued
operations' To manage this, the company enters into interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervats, the difference between
fixed and variable rate interest amounts catcutated by reference to an agreed-upon notjonal principal amount.

The company's poticy is to keep between 40% and 60% of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest, exctuding borrowings that retate to discontinued
oPerations' To manage this, the company enters into interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified interva(s, the difference between
fixed and variabte rate interest amounts catculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount.

Interest rate sensitivity

The fottowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonabty possibte change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after
the impact of hedge accounting. with att other variabtes hetd constant, the company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate
borrowings, as fotlows:

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March 2020

(Amount
For the year ended

31st ,\ arch 201 9

/decreas
etn

Effect on profit
before tax

(Amount in Rs,)

Increase/decrease
in basis points

Effect on profit
before tax (Amount

in Rs.)

Indian Rupees

Indian Rupees

*50

-50
212.67

212.67

*50

-50
1 80.61

-180.61

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity anatysis is based on the currentty observabte market enuronment, showing asignificantly higher votatiLity than in pr ior years.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty witt not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, teading to a financial toss. The
company ls exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarity trade receivables) and from its financing activities, jnctuding deposits with
banks and financial institutions and other financiat instruments,
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International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31 , 2OZO

Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a tiquidjty ptanning too[.

The company's objective is to maintain a batance between continuity of funding and ftexibitity through the use of bank loans and group company loans.The company's poticy is that not more than 25% of borrowings should mature in the next 12-month period. Att the borrowrngs are from group companiesand they are payable on demand' As on date no loan has been demanded for repayment, accordingty the % of borrowing to be repaid during the year hasnot been provided. The company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be medium.

The table below summarises the maturity profite of the company's financiat tiabitities based on contractuaI undiscounteo payments:

(Amount

As at 31st March 2020 On Demand Less than 3 months
Less than 3 months

to 12 months
More than 1 year Total

3orrowings

Trade Payable
4,595.03

160.92
42.247.33 46,842.36

160.92

'000)

As at 31st March 2019 Less than 3 months
to 12 months

37 ,438.51 64,634.30

9,641 .66

Excessive risk concentration
concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical. region, or haveeconomic features that woutd cause their ability to meet contractuat obligations to be similarty affected by changes in economic, pol.itica( or otherconditions' concentrations indicate the retative sensitivity of the company's performance to devetopments affecting a particul.ar industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the company's poticies and procedures inctude specific guidetines to focus on the maintenance of adiversified portfotio' Identified concentrations of credit risks are controtled and managed accordingty. setective hedging is used within the Group tomanage nst( concentratjons at both the retationship and industry levels.

Capital management
For the purpose of the company's capital management, capitat inctudes issued equity capitat and alt other equity reserves attributabte to the equityholders of the parent' The primary objective of the company's capital management is to maximise the sharehotder vatue. The company manages itscapital structure and makes adjustments in tight of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain oradjust the capitat structure' the Gcompany may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. Thecompany monitors capitat using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by totat capitat plus net debt. The company,s policy is to keep the gearingratio between 20% and 50%' The company inctudes within net debt, interest bearing loans and Dorrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cashequrvatents.

(Amount '000)

Particulars As at
31st March 2020

As at
31st March 2019

tsorrowtngs

Trade payabtes

Other Financial Liabitities
Other Non current Liabilty
other current liabitity
Provisions

Less: cash and cash equivalents

46,842.36

160.92

10,566.34

21 ,424.50
7,298.90

150.67

(1 ,074.631

64,634.30

9,641 .66

1 1 ,668.08
21 ,424.50
11 ,852.54

127.66

(117.651
85,369.06 1 ,19,231 .09

Equity

0ther equity
36,339.60

78,084.93
36,339.60

98,949.71
I oLdt EqulIy I 14.424.53 1 ,3 5,28 9.3 1

43/, 47%

In order to achieve this overatl objective, the company's capitat management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets fjnanciat covenantsattached to the interest-bearing toans and borrowings that define capitat structure r-equirements. Breaches in meeting the financiat covenants wouldpermit the bank to immediatety cail toans and borrowings.

No changes were made in the objectives, poticies or processes for managing capitat during the years ended j1 March 2020 and jl March 2019.
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International Constructions Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ending march 31, ZOZO

43 The amounts and disctosures included in the financiat statements of the
necessary.

As per our Report of even date.

For G.L.KOTHAR| & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.001445 S

previous year have been rectassified and regrouped whereever

For and on behatf of the board

t..| '\It- \
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lnternational Constructions Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at fiarch 31. 2020

The notes are an integral part of these financial statement

Summary of Significant accounting poLicies 2

Contigencies & Commitments 29 & 30

As per our Report of even date. For and on behalf of the board

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.001445 5

-,.VL -<J -i'J
cA G.L.xoTHARr (Om Prakash Sharma) (Priti Devi Sethi) (Anit Kumar Sethi)
Proprietor Chief Financiat Officer Director Director
Membership No. 025481 DIN : 00635846 DIN : 00035800

(Nitesh Kumar Jain)
Company Secretary

Ptace: Bengaturu FCS:54402 Place: Bengaturu

Date: 24th Juty 2020 Date: 24th Juty 2020

(Amount in '000)

Partic ulars
Note
No.

As at
31st i{arch, 2020

As at 3'l st

March, 201 9

lo*.rt
I 
Non-current assets

l(a) 
Property, ptant and equipment

| 
(b) FinanciaL assets

| 
- Investments

| - Loans

| - Other non current financiat Assets

l(c) 
Other Non Current Assets

I

lCurrent 
assets

| 
(a) Financiat assets

| - Trade Receivabtes

| 
-Cash and Cash Equivalents

| - Loans

| 
- Other current financial Assets

| 
(b) Other current assets

| 

(c) Curent Income tax Receivabte (Net)

I

I

lrorr- 
msrrs

lEaurY 
AND LrABrLrrEs

I 
Equity

| 
(a) Equity Share capitat

l(b) 
Other Equity

l-Equity 
Components of FinanciaI instrument

l-Retained 
Earning

I

lEquity 
attributable to equity holders of the parent

I

| 
(a) Non-controtting interests

I

lTotal 
Equity

lr-rnarr-rrrrs
I Non-current liabilities

| 
{a) financlaL liabitities

| - Borrowinqst-
| (b) Provisions

l{c) 
oetf"reC Tax Liabitities

(d) Other Non Current LiabiLities

current liabilities
(a) Financiat tiabitities

- Borrowings
- Trade payabtes

TotaI outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprise
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and

smalt enterprise
(b) Other current tiabitities
(c) Provisions

Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUIry AND LIABILTIES

l

4

5

o

7

8

9

10

1',!

't2

28

IJ

14

15

16

28

17

18

19

70

71

5,34,907 .16

1,78,045.71

4,144.18

6,04,1 90.3 3

2,66,453.02

1,358.68

8 1 5.01

7,893.78

7,17,O97.O4 8,75,710.34

574.73

1 ,477 .10

2,500.00

8,441 .37

6,88?.27

1 5,759.50

32,665.20

429.34

29,410.00

7,651.37

12.35

14,691.10

35,634.97 84,859.36

52,732.O2 9,60,569.70

36,339.60

77,920.59
't ,57,577.42

36,339.60

72,920.59

2,71 ,831.17

2,66,837.61 3,81,091.36

2,57,393.90 2,78,562.48

5,24,231.51 6,59,653.84

42,247.33

209.05

31 ,707.90
59 .116.77

37,438.5'l

168.94

58,728.99

72,7't8.01

1,32,780.55 1,69,054.45

47,406.67

35,137.22

13,173.44

2.63

65,034.1 9

48,088.43

18,715.89

2.90

95.719.96 1 ,31 .8 6'l 4'l

2,28,500.5 1 3,00,91 5.86
7,57,732.O2 9,60,569.7O



lnternational Constructions Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amou nt in '000)

The notes are an integrat part of these financial statement

Summary of Significant accounting poticies

As per our Report of even date.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.00'1445 S

" )rl \..J * \.,J .i.. .\ <:{

CA G.L.KOTHARI (Om Prakash Sharma) (Nitesh Kumar Jain) (Anil Kumar Sethi) (Priti Devi Sethi)

Proprietor Chief Financiat Officer Company Secretary Director Director

Membership No. 025481 FCS:54402 DIN : 00035800 DIN : 00635846

Ptace: Bengaluru Ptace: Bengaluru

Date: 24th Jutv 2020 Date: 24th Jutv 2020

For and on behatf of the board

Particulars Notes
For the year ended 31

st March 2020
For the year ended 31

st March 2019

lncome

Revenue from Operations

Other Income

Total lncome

Expenses

benefits expense

Finance Cost

Depreciation and Amortisation expenses

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Prolit / (Loss) before share of (profit) / loss of associate and joint venture,
exceptional items and tax

Share of profit / (toss) from investment in associates and joint ventures
justment for Non-controtling interests

eptionaI ltems

itl(loss) before tax from continuing operations

lTax Expenses
II Current tax
I uat Credit entittement

Net Current Tax

Income tax for earlier year

Deferred tax
Income Tax Expense

Profit for the year from Continuing Operations

Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)

Other comprehensive income not

Re-Measurement ga'ins on defined benefit ptans

lncome Tax effect
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in

Remeasurement of Investments at Fair Value

Income Tax effect

Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Earnings per share - Basic and Dituted (Nominal vatue Rs. 10 per share)

22

23

24

25

76

27

28

31

't3,684.46
24,708.00

2,2 50.08

13,684.46 26.958.08

16,496.78

11,5't4.23

5,707.89

8.533.47

13,409.52

9,278.17

5,711 .63

7,25't.75

42,251.86 35,651.07

(28,567.41)

(62,432.84)
2,156.53

(8,6e2.9e)

(5 ,945.47)
7,729.02

(88,843.71 ) (11 ,909 .441

3,01s.89 703.37

306.03

3,01 5.89

552.15

(24,405.67\

1,009.40

88.1 0

485.04

(2O,837.621 1,582.54

(68,006.09) (1 3,49 1.98 )

1 20.03

(30.82

(25,774.41

5,367.54

1.25

(0.33)

( 55,656.1 9)

11,576.49

(20,317.66 (44,078.78

(88,323.7s

(18.71

(s7,570.76)

(3.71)



in

Particulars For the year ended
31 st March 2020

For the year ended 3 I
st ,rlarch 2O'19

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax from Continuing Operations

s to reconcile Drofit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Finance Expenses

Interest expenses on financiat tiability
8ad debts and Advances

Provision for lmpairement
Long Term Capital Gain on Share

LonS Term Capitat Gain on Assets

Sundry Batance Written back

lnterest lncome

Dividend lncome

Finance lncome on FinanciaI Assets

Remeasurement of lnvestments at Fair
Value

Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit plans

ing capital adjustments;
(Decrease)/lncrease in Other Current Financial assets

lDecreasel /lncrease in Trade Receivable
(Decrease)/lncrease in Other Current assets
(Decrease )/lncrease in Trade Payables
(Decrease )/lncrease in Other Current liabitities
(Decrease )/lncrease in Provisions
(Decrease )/lncrease in Other Non Current tiabitities

Income tax paid / (Refund)

Net cash flows from operating activities

flow from investinS activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets

Sales of Fixed Assets

Sate of lnvestments

Movement in Loans & Advances

lnterest Received

Dividend Received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from BorrowinSs
Movement in Reseryes

^,lovement 
in Non Controlting interest

Movement in Equity component of Financiat Instrument
Finance Expense (Net)

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year( Refer Note No 9)

(28,567.41

5,707.89

3,042.27

8,403.18

3,166.07

2'10.00

(1,1U.71)

\9,476.46)
(3/8.16)

(0.53)

1211.37)

\25,774.41)
1 20.03

(8,692.e9)

5,711.63

817.61

4,37416
103.00

2,564.00

(1,308.60)

(81.33)

(671.ee)

1 7(188

(5s,655.19)

1.75
(44,863.461

25.O2

28,924.45
(3,976.64)

(12,951.211

3,914.00

39.85
(13,601.74J

(49,023.62)

1 01.00

11,425.33
(10.23)

573.21

11,541.27

\21.071
1,482.11

\41,489.73
(2,815.51

(23,930.00)

1 1,825.40

145,326.241 (35,755.40

64,580.00

75,974.47

24,335.86

589.53

0.53

1,066.40

33,425.29

5,136.9'l

671.99

't,15,580.38 40,300. 59

(1 2,81 8.69)

(25,930.00)

(19,012.U)

\1 I ,445.65)

38,894.43

117.06

(35,126.19)

(9,195.77)

(69,206.38) (5,315.47)

1 ,047.76
419.34

(770 291

1,199.63

1 ,477.10 429.34

lnternational Constructions Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash flows for the vear ended 31st l,tarch 2020

from Eorrowines for the year ended 3 1 5t March 2020

As per our Report of even date. For and on behalf of the board

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.001445 5 ..\.J - \c-l '-'\.{ -\, l

CA G.L.KOTHARI (Om Prakash Sharma) (Nitesh Kumar Jain) (Anil Kumar Sethi) (Priti Devi Sethi)

Proprietor Chief Financiat Officer Company Secretary Director Director

l,^embership No. 025481 FCS:54402 DIN : 00035800 DIN : 00035800

PLace: Bengaluru Ptace: Bengaluru

Date: 24th July 2020 Date: 24th July 2020

the year I st March

Interest expenses on financial liability 1st April 2019 Proceed5 Repayment
Fair Value

Changes
3 1 st March 2020

,orrowings - Non Current (Refer Note-15) 37,438.51 4.808.82 42.247.33
jorrowinqs - Current (Refer Note-18) 65,034. 1 9 ]8,513.77 56,141.30 41,406.67

Total 1,O2,472.70 38,513.77 56,141.30 4,808.82 89,6 54.00

Interest expenses on financial liability 'lst April 2018 Proceeds Repayment
Fair Value
chanees

31st March 2019

Jorrowinqs Non Current (Refer Note.15) 34,1U.64 611.76 1,545.48 4,267.59 37.438.51

lorrowings ' Current (Refer Note.'18) 29.473.67 35.560.57 65.034.19

I otal 63,578.26 35, 172 I,545.48 4,267 .59 't,02,472.70
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International Constructions Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2020

1 Company background

The Consotidated FinanciaI Statements comprised FinanciaI Statements of lnternationat Constructions Limtied (the 'Company') and its Subsidiaries, for
the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Company is a pubtic limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. lts equity shares are
listed on the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. in India. The Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure devetopment which inter'atia
includes water management, water infrastructure development, and other civiI infrastructures. Information about the Group structure and other
detaits is given in Note no 44 and 45.

2 Significant accounting policies

A Basis of preparation and compliance with IND AS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rute 3

of the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rutes, 2015, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") (to the extent notified). The
Consotidated Financial Statements comprises of Internat'ional Constructions L'imited and att its subsidiaries, being the entities that it controls. Control
'is assessed in accordance with the reouirement of lnd AS 110 - Consotidated Financiat Statements.

B Basis of measuremenl

These Consotidated Ind AS Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention, except for certain
investments measured at fair value, Freehold Land measured at Fair value and defined benefit ptans which have been measured at actuarial valuation
as required by retevant Ind AS (refer accounting policies for financial instruments, Property, plant and Equipment and employee benefits).

C Going Concern Concept and its impact on the company

Considering the unpresidented global pendamic of covid 19 and the slow down of business druing the 23rd March 2020 to 17th May 2020, the
management had made the assessment of going concern abitity of the company. Based on the management assessment on its business impact during
the lock down, which was common across the industry and had no specific impact to the company's operation as such. Accordingty in view of
management the going concern assumption of the company is unaffected and the financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

D Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the apptication of accounting poticies and the reported amounts of assets, tiabitities, income and expenses. Actual resutts may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in
which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

E Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:

The Company has considered the possibte effects that may result from the pandemic retating to COVID - 19 on the carrying amounts of receivables,
payabtes and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions retating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions

because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of
information. The impact of COVID -19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
financiaI statements.

F Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and tiabitities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
- Expected to be reatised or intended to be sotd or consumed in normal operating cycte,
- Hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- Expected to be realised within twetve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivatent untess restricted from being exchanged or used to settte a tiabitity for at least twetve months after the reporting period.

At[ other assets are ctassified as non-current.

A tiabitity is current when:
- lt is expected to be settled in normaI operating cycte,
- lt is hetd primarity for the purpose of trading,
- lt is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditionat right to defer the settlement of the tiabitity for at teast twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies a[[ other tiabitities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabitities are classified as non-current assets and liabitities.

The operating cycte is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivatents. The Company has

identified twetve months as its operating cycle.

G Functional and presentation currency
These lnd AS Financial Statements are prepared in lndian Rupee which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.



lnternational Constructions Limited
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2.1 Basis of Consolidation
The consotidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company, Joint operations and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020.

Contro[ is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variabte returns from its invotvement with the investee and has the abitity to affect
those returns through its power over the'investee. Specificatty, the Group controts an investee if and onty if the Group has:

a. Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the retevant activities of the investee)

b. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

c. The abitity to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or rnore of the three
elements of controt. Consotidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary.

Consotidated financiaI statements are prepared using uniform accounting poticies for like transactions and other events in similar ci rcumstances. lf a
member of the group uses accounting poticies other than those adopted in the consotidated financial statements for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the group's accounting poticies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consotidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company, r.e.,
year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of any entity, the entity prepares, for consotidation
purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enabte the parent to consotidate the
financiaI information of the entitv.

In term of Ind AS I 10- " Consolidated Financial Statements", the financiaI statements of the Group are consolidated on a [ine- by- tine basis by adding

together the book/ fair vatue of tike items of assets, liabitities, income and expenditure, after fut[y etiminating intra group batances, intra group

transactions and any unrealized Profit/ Loss inctuded therein. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCl) are attributed
to the equity hotders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controtling interests, even if this results in the non-control[ing interests having a

deficit batance.

The excess/shortfatt of the cost to the Company of its investments in Subsidiaries over its proportionate share in the equity of the respective investee

companies as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognised in the Financial Statement as Goodwitl /Capitat Reserve, as the case may be.

Subsidiaries are entities over which the group has control. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a toss of controt, is accounted

for as an equity transaction. lf the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
. Derecognises the assets (inctuding goodwitt) and liabitities of the subsidiary
. Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
. Derecognises the cumulative transtation differences recorded in equity
. Recognises the fair value of the consideration received
. Recognises the fair vatue of any investment retained
. Recognises any surptus or deficit in profit or loss

. Rectassifies the parent's share of components previousty recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as woutd be

required if the Group had directty disposed of the related assets or tiabitities

Investments in associates and Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initiauy being recognised at cost. Under

the equity method of accounting, the investments are initiatly recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-

acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and [oss, and the Group's share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income (""OC1"").

When the Group's share of losses in an equity accounted investment equats or exceeds its interest in the entity, inctuding any other unsecured [ong-

term receivabtes, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obtigations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.
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2.2 The Consolidated Financiat Statements are based on the audited financiat statements of subsidiaries and associates exceot in the fottowins cases

where figures have been incorporated based on unaudited financial statements as certified by the management:

Nature of Entity Name of Entity

Associates 5PM Engineers Limited

Leonis Austin Town Devlooers Private Limited
Leonis HSR Devtooers Private Limited
Leonis Kormaneata Comotex Private Limited

Leonis R T Nasar Devtooers Private Limited

-eonis Sadashivanagar Devlopers Private Limited

-eonis Viiaynaqar Devtopers Private Limited

5ummary of significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment.
Under the previous GAAP (lndian GAAP), property, ptant and equipment were carried in the balance sheet at their carrying value being the cost of

acquisition or construction less accumutated deDreciation.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses retating to the acquisition and instattation
of the respective assets. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Borrowing costs direct[y attributable to acquisition or construction of those

assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalized.
Advance paid towards the acquisition of assets outstanding at each batance sheet are shown under capital advances. The cost of property, ptant and

equipment not ready for theirintended use before such date, are disctosed as capital work in progress.

The management has identified useful life of the assets (tangible), based on the life as prescribed in Schedute ll to the Companies Act, 2013.

Further the residual value is is estimated to be 5% of cost of asset.

lmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets comprising a cash-generating
unit may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's

recoverabte amount. An asset's recoverab[e amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair vatue less costs of disposat and

its vatue in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, untess the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largety
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverabte amount, the asset

is considered imoaired and is written down to its recoverabte amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash ftows are discounted to their present vatue using a pre-tax discount rate that reftects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair vatue tess costs of disposat, recent market
transactions are taken into account. lf no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate vatuation modet 'is used. These calcutations are
corroborated by vatuation multiples, quoted share prices for pubticty traded companies or other avaitable fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calcutation on detaited budgets and forecast catculations, which are prepared separatety for each of the CGUs to
which the individual assets are altocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generatly cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a [ong-

term growth rate is calcutated and apptied to project future cash ftows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods

covered by the most recent udgets/forecasts, the Group extrapotates cash ftow projections in the budget using a steady or dectinjng growth rate for
subsequent years, untess an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For assets exctuding goodwitt, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previousty recognised

impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. lf such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverabte amount. A

previousty recognised impairment loss is reversed onty if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverabte

amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverabte amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or toss unless the asset is carried at a revatued amount,
in which case, the reversaI is treated as a revaluation increase.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probabte that the economic benefits witl ftow to the Company and the revenue can be retiably
measured, regardtess of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractuauy defined terms of payment, net of taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. Further, The Company uses

significant judgments white determining the transaction price altocated to performance obligations .

Other Income - The specific recognition criteria described betow must atso be met before revenue is recognised.

Interest income'is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactty discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected tife of the financial 'instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortised cost of a financial tiab'itity. When catculating the effective 'interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash ftows by
considering atl the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for exampte, prepayment, extension, catl and simitar options) but does not
consider the exDected credit losses. lnterest income is included in finance income in the statement of orofit and [oss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generatly when sharehotders approve the dividend.
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D Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The

arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys

a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not expticitty specified in an arrangement.

a) As a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating tease. A lease that transfers substantiatly all the risks and rewards
'incidental to ownership to the Company is ctassified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitatised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair vatue of the leased property or, if lower, at the present

vatue of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease tiabitity so as to achieve a

constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the tiabitity. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

untess they are directty attributable to quatifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company's general poticy on the
borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
A teased asset is depreciated over the useful tife of the asset. However, if there is no reasonabte certainty that the Company wit[ obtain ownership by

the end of the lease term, the asset is deDreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful tife of the asset and the lease term.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terrn.

E Financiallnstruments
A financiat instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financiat tiabitity or equity instrument of another entity.

F Financial Assets

a) Classification
The company ctassifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through
profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost.

The ctassification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash ftows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses witl either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this witt depend on the business model in which the investment is hetd. For investments in equity instruments, this witt depend on

whether the company has made an irrevocable etection at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair vatue through

other comDrehensive income.

b) lnitial recognition and measurement

Att financial assets are recognised initiatty at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair vatue through profit or [oss,

transaction costs that are attributabte to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sates of financial assets that require detivery of assets

within a time frame estabtished by regutation or convention in the market ptace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the GrouD commits to purchase or sett the asset.

c) Subsequent measurement

FinanciaI assets carried at amortised cost: A financiaI assets is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business mode[ whose objective is to
hotd asset in order to coltect contractual cash flows and the contractual cash terms of the financiat asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are sotety payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is accounted in
profit or loss using the effective interest rate method. lmpairment losses, forex gain / loss and gain / loss on derecognition of financial asset in this
category is recognised in profit or [oss.

Financiat assets at fair vatue throuqh other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI, if it is hetd withing a business

model whose objective is achieved by both from coltection of contractuat cash ftows and selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash ftows

represent sotety payments of principal and interest. Further equity instruments where the company has made an irrevocable etection based on its
business model, to ctassify as instruments measured at FVTOCI, are measured subsequentty at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Debt instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCl), except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is

derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised. Interest income from
these financial assets is inctuded in otherincome usinq the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken to OCI and there is no subsequent reclassification of fair vatue gains and losses to
profit or loss. Dividend from such investments are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair vatue throueh profit or toss (FVTPL): A financial asset which is not ctassified in any of the above categories are subseguently

fair vatued through profit or toss. Att gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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d) lmpairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVTOCI debt
instruments. The impairment methodology apptied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivabtes, the company appties the simptified approach specified by Ind AS 109 FinanciaI Instruments, which requires expected [ifetirne
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivabtes.

e) Derecognition of financial assets

A financiat asset is primarily derecognised when:
- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash ftows from the asset or has assumed an obtigation to pay the received <ash ftows in full
without material detay to a th'ird party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantiatty atl the risks and

rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantiatty atI the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
contro[ of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash ftows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evatuates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantialty atl of the risks and rewards

of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the cornpany's cont'inuing

invotvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated tiabitity. The transferred asset and the associated tiabitity are measured on a

basis that reftects the rights and obtigations that the company has retained.

G Financialliabilities
a) Classification

The company ctassifies its financial tiabitities in the foltowing measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair vatue through profit or [oss, and
- those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

b) Initial recognition and measurement

The company recognises financial liabitities when it becomes a party to the contractuaI provisions of the instrument. AlI financial liabitities are

recognized at fair value on initiaI recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributabte to the issue of financiaI tiabitities, that are not at fair
value through profit or [oss, are reduced from the fair vatue on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directty attributabte to the issue of
financial liabitities at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

c) Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financiaI tiabitities depends on their classification, as described betow:

Amortised cost: After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequent(y measured at amortised cost using the Effective
interest rate (ElR) method. Ga'ins and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as we[[ as through the EIR

amortisation process,

Amortised cost is catcutated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The

EIR amortisation is inctuded as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financia[ liabitities at fair vatue throuqh profit or loss: FinanciaI liabitities at fair vatue through profit or loss include financiaI tiabitities held for
trading and financiat tiabitities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or [oss. Financial tiabitities are classified as hetd for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category atso includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are

atso ctassified as held for trading untess they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on tiabitities hetd for trading are recognised in the profit or [oss.

Financial tiabitities designated upon initial recognition at fair vatue through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and

onty if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabitities designated as FVTPL, fair vatue gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are

recognized in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subseguently transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer the
cumutative gain or toss within equity. Al[ other changes in fair vatue of such tiabitity are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company

has not designated any financiat tiabitity as at fair value through profit and [oss.

Derecognition of financial Liabilities
A financial tiabitity is derecognised when the obligation under the tiabitity is discharged or cancetted or expires. When an existing financial tiabitity is

replaced by another from the same lender on substantiatly different terms, or the terms of an existing tiabitity are substantiatty modified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liabitity and the recognition of a new tiabitity. The difference in the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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H Financial guarantee contracts

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present vatue of the difference in net cash flows between the contractuat pa yments under

the debt instrument and the payments that woutd be required without the guarantee or the estimated amount that woutd be payabte to a third party
for assuminq the oblisations.

(i) as Guarantor
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial tiabitity at the time the guarantee is issued. The tiabitity is initiatty measured at fair vatue

and subsequentty at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 109 and the amount initiatty recognised tess cumutative

amortisation, where appropriate.

Where guarantees in retation to loans or other payabtes of associates are provided

contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

(ii) as Beneficiary

for no comoensation. the fair vatues are accounted for as

FinanciaI guarantee contracts are recognised as a financia[ asset at the time the guarantee is taken. The asset is initiatty measured at fair vatue and

subsequentty amortised over the guarantee period.

Where guarantees in retation to loans or other payabtes are provided by group companies for no compensation, the fair vatues are accounted for as

contributions and recognised as part of equity.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financiat assets and tiabitities are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance sheet where there is a legatty enforceabte right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settte on a net basis or realise the asset and settte the tiabitity simultaneousty. The tegatty enforceabte

right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceabte in the normal course of business and in the event of defautt, insotvency or
bankruptcy of the comapany or the counterparty.

Borrowings
Borrowings are initiatty recognised at fair vatue, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequentty measured at amortised cost. Any

difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings

using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the estabtishment of toan facitities are recognised as transaction costs of the toan to the extent that
it is probabte that some or atI of the facitity witI be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred untiI the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no

evidence that it is probabte that some or atl of the facitity wi[[ be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and

amortised over the period of the facitity to which it retates.

Borrowings are removed from the batance sheet when the obtigation specified in the contract is discharged, cancetted or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial tiabitity that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, inctuding

any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(tosses).

Eorrowings are classified as current tiabitities untess the company has an unconditional right to defer setttement of the tiabitity for at least 12 months

after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term toan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting
period with the effect that the liabitity becomes payabte on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not ctassify the tiabitity as current, if the
lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financiat statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of
the breach.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directty attributabte to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarity takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sate are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. At[ other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost atso inctudes

exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabitities are measured at the amount exDected to be recovered from or Daid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates

and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantivety enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the
company operates and generates taxabte income.
'Current income tax retating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the undertying transaction either in OCI or directty in equity. Management periodicatty

evatuates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which appticable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and estabtishes
provisions where appropriate.

Minimum alternate tax ('MAT') paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit
avaitabte as an asset onty to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company witt pay normat income tax during the specified period,

i.e., the period for which MAT credit is altowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company recognises MAT credit as an asset in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Availabte in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income tax Act, 1 961 , the said

asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as 'MAT Credit Entittement'. The company reviews the 'MAT credit
entittement' asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing evidence that it witt pay

normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax asset is defined in Ind AS 12 to inctude the carry forward of unused tax credits. MAT Credits are in

the form of unused tax credits that are carried forward by the company for a specified period of time. Accordingty, l'{AT Credit Entitlement is grouped

with Deferred Tax Asset (net) in the Balance Sheet.
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Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the tiabitity method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

'Deferred tax liabitities are recognised for atl taxabte temporary differences, except:
- when the deferred tax tiabitity arises from the initial recognition of goodwitt or an asset or tiabitity in a transaction that is not a business

combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabte profit or loss;
- in respect of taxabte temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controtled and it is probabte that the temporary differences wi[[ not reverse in the
foreseeabte future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for a[[ deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxabte profit witI be avaitabte against which the deductibte temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax asset retating to the deductibte temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabte profit or toss;

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint v€ntures, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probabte that the temporary differences wi[[ reverse in the foreseeabte future and taxable profit
will be avaitabte against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxabte profit wi[[ be available to altow alt or part of the deferred tax asset to be utitised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each

reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probabte that future taxable profits wi[[ a[[ow the deferred tax asset to be

recovereo.

Deferred tax assets and tiabitities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appty in the year when the asset is realised or the tiabitity is

settted, based on tax rates (and tax [aws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax retating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or toss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognised in corretation to the undertying transaction either in OCI or directty in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabitities are offset if a tegatty enforceabte right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax tiabitities
and the deferred taxes retate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combinat'ion, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition at that date, are recognised

subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement penod

reduce goodwitt retated to that acquisition if they resutt from new information obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition
date. lf the carrying amount of goodwitt is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in OCI/ capitat reserve depending on the principte

explained for bargain purchase gains. At[ other acquired tax benefits reatised are recognised in profit or loss.

M Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (tegal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probabte that an outftow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obtigation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obtigation.

lf the effect of the time vatue of money is materiat, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks

specific to the liabitity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination
A contingent liabitity recognised in a business combination is initiatly measured at its fair vatue. Subsequentty, it is measured at the higher of the
amount that woutd be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initiatty recognised less, when appropriate,
cumutative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition.

N Cash and cash eouivalents

Cash and cash equivatent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months

or [ess, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ ([oss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash

nature and any deferrals or accruats of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash ftows from operating, investing and financing activities of
the company are segregated.



International Constructions Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2020

O Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders of the
The Company recognises a tiabitity to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the distribut'ion is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directty in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair vatue of the assets to be distributed with fair vatue re'measurement recognised directty in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the tiabitity and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is

recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

P Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (toss) attributable to owner's of the company for the year by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during reporting period.

The number of shares used in computing dituted earnings/ (toss) per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic

earnings/ (toss) per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares which coutd have been issued on the conversion of atl ditutive
potentiaI equity shares.

Ditutive potentiat equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, untess they have been issued at a later date. In

computing diluted earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per share or increase loss per

share are included.

a Segment reporting
Based on the "management approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the company
performance and atlocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments.

R RecentAccountingpronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notificat'ion which woutd have

been appticabte from Apri[ 1,2020.
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3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Amount in 'O00)

Particulars Land
Furniture I

Fixture
Vehicle Computer Goodwill Total

SROSS BLOCK

As at March 31, 2018 5,93,289.37 118.41 70.91 6.26 23,701 .84 6 ,16,686.79
Additions

Disposats

Exchenee Differennce
566.40 500.00 1,066.40

As at March 31, 2019 5,92,722.97 118.41 70.91 6,26 27,701.84 6,15,620.39
Additions

)isposals

ixchenge Differennce
63,553.53 69.76 63,623.79

As at March 31. 2O2O 5,29,169.44 118.41 1.',l6 6.26 22,701.84 5,51,997.10

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As at March 31. 2018 21 22 5,67 5 5,718.43
Depreciation Charge for the year

lmpairment

Disposals

Exchange Differennce

11 19 14.98 5,675.46 5,711.63

As at March 31, 2019 42.37 36.76 1 1,350.92 11 ,430.06
3harge for the year

mparrment

)isposals

:xchange Differennce

21.19 11.24

48.00

5,675.46 5,707.-88

48.00

As at March 31 ,2OZO 63 57 -0.00 17,026.38 17 ,O89.94

NET BLOCK

s at March 31. 2019 5,92,722.97 76.O4 34.15 6.26 1 1,350.92 6,04,1 90.33
As at March 31. 2O2O 5,29 ,169.44 54.84 1.16 6.26 5,675.46 5 ,34,907 .16
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FINANCIAL ASSETS

4 INVESTMENTSINVESTMENTS tn

Particulars
As at

l'lst March, 2O2O

As at
31st March,2019

in Associates:

ed (valued at cost)
7,73,300(March31,2019:7,73,000) Equity SharesofRel0/-Each,futlypaidupofDethiwaste
Management Limited'

Add: - Share in Profit /(loss) of the Associate Company

2500 (March 31, 2019: 2500) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, futty paid up ofALcamey Venture Private

' Share in Profit /(toss) of the Associate Company

69,695.375

47,485.79

74,620.38

99,683.68

200.00

(200.00

200.00

(200.001

|47,500(March31,2019:47,500J Equity SharesofRe1/-Each,fuLtypaidupofLeonisAustinTown
I Devlooers Private I imited
I

ladd:- 
Share in Profit /(toss) of the Associate Companv

147,500 (March 31, 2019: 47,500) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, futty paid up of Leonis HSR

I DevtoDers Private Limited

laaa:- Snare in Profit /(toss) of the Associate Company

47.50

147.50)

47.50

(47.50,,

47.50

(47.50)

47.50

(47.50)

7,500(March31,?019:47,500)Equity SharesofRel/-Each,futtypaidupofLeonisKormangala
omplex Private Limited

Add:- Share in Profit /(loss) of the Associate Company

47,500(March31,7019:47,50o)Equity Sharesof Re1/-Each,futlypaidupof LeonisRTNagar
Devtope6 Private Limited
Add:- Share in Profit /(toss) of the Associate Company

47,500(March31,2019:47,500)Equity SharesofRel/-Each,fultypaidupofLeonis
Devtope6 Private Limited

- Share in Profit /(loss) of the associate Company

47.50

(47.50)

47.50

(47.50)

47.50

(47.50

47.50

(47.50

47.50

t47.50

47.50

(47.50)

500 (March 3'1, 2019: 47 ,5001 Equity Shares of Re 1 / - Each, fulty paid up of Leonis Vijaynagar

Private Limited
' share in Profit /(loss) of the Asstriate Company

Quoted (valued at cost)
12,34,600 (MarchS'1,?019:12,34,600 )Equity SharesofRel0/-Each,futlypaidupofSPM
EngineeB Limited'

:- Profit /toss for the year

s assets carried at fair vatue through Other Comprehensive Income (ryTOCl)

in others:

152,000(March31,2019:52,000)Equity SharesofRel0/-Each,futlypaidupofSPMLlndia
I Limited'

la,ao,XSrt"tarcn3l,20l9: 8,80,945)Equity Sharesof RelO/-Each,fultypaidupof SPMLlnfra

lLimited'
I Unouoted

l+O,OOO {t*arcn 31,201gi 46,000 ) Equity Shares of Re 1Ol- Each, fulLy paid up of Zoom Industriat

lSeryice Limited*

97,000 (March 31,1019:97,O00) Equity Shares of Re 10/- Each, futty paid up of Suraksha lnsurance

Broke6 private Limited

6,00,000 (March 31, 2019: 6,00,000 ) Equity Shares of Re 10/- Each, fulty paid up of Bharat Hydro

Power Limited*

Nit(March31,2019:70 )Equity SharesofRel0/-Each,fuLlypaidupofSPMLlnfrastructreLimited.

Financials assets carried at fair value through Profit And Loss (FVTPL)

Unouoted

2,000(March3'1,2019:2,000 )Equity SharesofRel/-Each,futtypaidupofMathuraNagarwaste
Processing Co Limited

2,000 (March 31, 2019: 2,000 ) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fulty paid up of Atlahabad waste
Processing Co Ljmjted

2,000 (March 31,2019:2,000 ) Equity SharesofRe 1/- Each, futtypaid upofSptendorRealtors
Private Limited

2,000 (March 31, 2019: 2,000 ) Equity Shares of Re 1 /- Each, fulty paid up of Sunview Enclave

Private Limited

lnvestement in l{utual Fund

Financials assets carried at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FWOCI)
Canara Robeco Large Cap Fund( No of units 77 ,920,(March 31 , 2019177 ,920 ')

Provision for Diminution in the value of the investements

47.50

47.50'

47.50

A7.50

9,861.70

29.708.90

9,861.70

39.943.85

2,126.80

4,536.87

477.00

4,656.00

8,670.00

0.00

0.00

6,000.00

6,000.00

't,027.77

(1 2,200.00)

1,407.O0

76,757.16

477.00

970.00

1 1,951.55

0.07

0.00

0.00

6,000.00

6.000.00

1,284.13

(1 2,000.00)

lotal 1,7a,O45.71 2,66,453.O2

Current
Non-Current

TotaI lnvestments

1,78,045.71

1,78,0/.5.71

46,710.76

1,31,334.94

7,66,453.O7

2,66,453.O2

77,941.71

1,88,51 1.81

vatue of quoted investments

vatue of unquoted investments

amount of in value of investments 12.200 1 2.000.
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5 LOANS

* Loan and advances due from companies in which Company's director(s) is / are director(s) / member(s).

(Amount in '000)

6 OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

7 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

8 TRADE RECEIVABLES

9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(Amount in '000)

Particulars
As at

3'tst March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Unsecured considered good untess stated

Loans to retated party " 4,144.18 1,358.68

Total 4,144.18 1,358.68

Particu lars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Upskitt Management Services Pvt Ltd

ADD Energy Management Company Private Limited

1,505.41

2,638.77

1 ,358.68

Total 4,144.18 1,358.68

(Amount in '000)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Security Deposit

Other advances recoverabte in cash or kind

15.03

800.00

Total 815.03

(Amount in '000)

Particu lars
As at

31st Ailarch, 2020
As at

31st Aitarch, 2019

Advances recoverable in cash or kind 2,893.28

fotal 2,893.28

(Amount in '000)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Unsecured

considered good

considered doubtfuI
574.73 37,665.20

Total 574.73 32,665.20

(Amount in '000)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Balances with banks:

On current accounts

Cash on hand

'1,385.85

91 .24

258.71

170.63

fotal 1,477.O9 429.34



11

International Constructions Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2020

1O LOANS

** Advance Against Investment made eartier which is receivabte as proposal was cancetled.

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Amount in '000)

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

12 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Amount in '000)

Particu lars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Unsecured considered good unless stated
Loan to Otherst* 2,500.00 29,410.00

Iotal 2,500.00 29.410.OO

Particu lars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Security Deposit

Other advances recoverabte in cash or kind

1'15.00

8,326.37

1 25.00

7,526.37

fotal 8,441 .37 7,651.37

(Amount in '000)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

lnvestments

Trade Recievabtes

Cash and cash equivatents

LOans

0ther current financiaI Assets

't ,78,045 .71

574.73

1,477.09

6,644.18

8,441.37

2,66,453.02

32,665.20

429.34

29,410.00

7.651.37

lotal financial assets carried at amortised cost 1,95,183.08 3,36,608.92

(Amount in '000)

Particu lars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Unsecured consider good

Advance to Employees

Batance with Government authorities
Advance oaid to vendors

702.27

6,1 80.00

8.80

3.55

Iotal 6,882.27 12.35
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13 SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Reconciliation of number of shares

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

Equity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having a par vatue of Rs.10/- per share. Each shareholder is etigibte for one vote per share

hetd. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharehotders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in
case of interim dividend. In the event of tiquidation, the equity sharehotders are etigibte to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of a[[ preferentiaI amounts, in proportion to their sharehotding.

(c) Shares held by holding company and subsidiary of holding companies:

The company Doesnot have any holding Company.

(e) The Company has not auotted any futty paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period

of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date nor has issued shares for consideration other than cash.

(f) There are no unpaid catls from director & officers of the company

(g) There are no buy back of shares during the year by the company.

(Amount in '00O)

Particu lars
As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

Number Amount (Rs) Number Amount (Rs)

Authorised
Equity shares of Re.'10l- each

lssued. Subscribed & Paid-up

Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each, fully paid

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each issued as Bonus Shares.

1,00,00,000 10,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 1 0,00,00,000

1,00,00,000 1 0,00,00,000 1,00,00,000 1 0,00,00,000

1 8,1 6,980

1 8,1 6,980

1 8,1 69.80

1 8,1 69.80

1 8,1 6,980

1 8,1 6,980

1 8,1 69.80

1 8,1 69.80

Total 36,33,960 36,3 39.60 36,33,960 36,339.60

Particu lars

Equity Shares Equity Shares

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

Number Rs Number Rs

;hares outstanding at the beginning of the year 36,33,960 36,340 36,33,960 36,340

ihares lssued durinq the year

;hares bought back during the year

ihares outstandins at the end of the vear 36,33,960 36,340 36,33,960 36.340

Details of shares held bv shareholders holdins more than 5% of the assresate shares in the

Name of Shareholder

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

No. of Shares
held

% of Holding
No. of Shares

held
% of Holding

Zoom lndustrial Services Limited 5,1 3,700 14.14% 5,1 3,700 14.147,

\niI Kumar Sethi 3,43,670 9.46% 3,43,670 9.467,

Deepak Sethi 8,87, 1 00 24.41% 8,87,1 00 24.41%

Priti Devi Sethi 9,51 ,000 26.17% 9,51,000 76.177.

Technomechanicat Services Private Limited 4,27,460 11.76% 4,77,460 11.76%
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14 OTHER EQUtry

Nature and purpose of other reseryes:

Capital Reseryes: The excess of tiabitities over the assets on amatgamation has been accounted as capital reserves.

Securities premium reserye: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of shares by the
Company. The reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provision of sec 52(2) of Companies Act, 201 3.

Special Reserues:As per the provision of NBFC act the special reserue was required to be created and accordingty the
company had created this special reserves.The same has been reversed during the year consequent to deregistration of
company from NBFC provisions.

Equity Component of Financial Instrument: The Company had the Loan Instruments , which has been fair valued as on

trasition date and the same has been ctassified into the equity component and the financial tiabitity and financial asset

based on the terms of contract . The equity component has been shown under the head other equity.

Capital Redemption reserye: This reserves is created out of the free reserves which was utitised towards the redumption of
oreference shares, to the extent of nominat value of the shares so redeemed.

Revaluation Reserye: Revaluation reserves is created on account of revaluation of assets of the company. This reserves may

be utilised or transferred to geral reserves or statement of profit and loss upon the sale of assets or the depreciation of such

assets,

General Reserye: This is the free reserves created as per the provisions of companies act, the reserves may be utitsed as

free reseryes of the company for dectaration of dividend.

Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings comprise of the company's accumutated undistributed earnings / (tosses).

(Amount in '000)

Particula rs
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

al Reserve on Amalgmation

Opening balance

(+) Additions
(-) Deductions

Closing Batance

Reserye

Opening Batance

(+) Additions
(-) Deductions (Refer Note

ing Batance

1)

Redemption Reserye

Opening Batance

(+) Additions
(-) Deductions (Refer Note

Ctosing Ba[ance

Securities Premium Reserve

1)

ing Batance

:Securities premium credited on account upon Merger
Adjusted with non controtting interest

Balance

Reserye
Balance

Add: On account upon Merger
Less: Reversal of Revatuation Reserve
Less: Transfer to General Reserves

ing Balance

Reserye

Balance

Add: On account upon Merger
Add: Additions During the year
Less: Detetion during the year
Closing Balance
Retained Earnings

Opening balance

(+) Adjustment on account of Reversal of Special Reserves (Refer Note

1)

(+) Share of profit / (loss) from investment in associates and joint
ventures

(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year

Closing Balance

Equity Component of Financial Instrument
Opening Batance

Addition
Less Adjustments

Closing Batance

99,802.64 99,802.64

99,802.64 99,802.64

9,619.49

11?.06
o 711 5q

70,075.00

1 1 ,1 50.00 20,075.00

3 I ,22s.00 20,075.00

2,09,622.84 2,09,622.84

z,o9,622.84 z,o9,622.84

48,827.25

48,030.43

49,218.81

391 .56
796.82 48.827.25

1 4,033.01

72,100.43
1 1 ,1 50.00

33,716.45

39'1.56
20,075.00

4.943.44 1 4.03 3.01

('t,20,579.58

(88,321.75)

(72,690.36)

O 7?1 EE

(57,s70.761

(2,08,853.33) (1 ,20,529.581

72,920.59 7?,920.59

72.920.59 72.970.59

Total - Other equity 2.30.498.01 3,44,751.76



lnternational Constructions Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements as at 31st March 2020

15 BORROWINGS

Loan from related

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

SPML Infra Limited . 42,247.33 37,438.51

Total 42,247.33 37,438.51

* Loan received from SPML Infra Ltd of Rs. 10,149.68 is interest free loan and the said interest free loan has been accounted
as the financiat tiabitity at the fair value on the transition date under Ind AS. The difference between the fair vatue and book

Value as at 1 st October 7017 has been accounted as equity contribution and accordingty the same has been reduced from the
borrowings.

16 PROVTSTONS

(Amount in '000)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity ( Refer Note - 38) 209.05 168.94

Iotal 209.05 168.94

17 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITY

* As per the terms of the agreement to sale of [and, entered with the parties during the prior years, the company was

obtigated to get the approvats and required permissions from atl the [oca[ body as well as Authorities from the Government.

However the company was unable to futfitt the said obtigations and accordingty the parties requested for refund of advances

given. As the company was unable to refund their advances due to lack of funds, the management has entered into

settlement agreement with the parties dated 1st May 2017.

(Amount in'000)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Unsecured
Loans & Advances from related parties** 42,247.33 37,438.5 1

Total 42,247.33 37,438.51

(Amount in '000)

Particulars
As at

31st March,2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Advance Received

Advance received against sale of Land *

Form Related party

Form Others

Advance received against sate of Share

Total

10,566.34

21,424.50

25,125._43

2.000.00

33,092.58

25,125.43

1 2,500.00

2,000.00

59,116.27 72,718.O',!
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18 BORROWINGS

'Repayabte on demand with a notice period of 30 days along with Interest at the rate of 12% per annum.

TRADE PAYABLES

(Amount in '000)

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
- Trade payabtes are non-interest bearing and are normalty settled on 60-day terms
- Other payabtes are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months
- Interest payabte is normally settted quarterty throughout the financiat year
- For terms and conditions with related oarties. refer to Note 39

For explanations on the Company's credit risk management processes, refer to Note 42

Break up of financial Liabilities carried at amortised cost (Amount in '000)

20 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

21 PROVTSTONS

(Amount in '000)

Particulars
As at

31st March,2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Unsecured

Loan from Related Party'
Loans and advances from Director'

Loans from other parties
38,859. 1 7

8,547.50

4,889.12

30,056.87

30,088.20

l'otal 47,406.67 65,O34.19

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Trade Payables :

Total outstanding dues of micro and sma[[ enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small
enteronses

35,137.22 48,088.43

Total 35,137.22 48,088.43

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Bor rowrngs

Trade Payabtes

89,654.00

35,137.77

1,07,472.69
48,088.43

Total 1,24,791.22 1,50,561.12

(Amount in '000)

As at
3'lst March, 2O2O

As at
31st March, 2O19

Statutory dues includinq Provident Fund, Tax deducted at source and
Audit fees Pavabte
Salaries and other employee benefit payabte

Advance received against supply of goods

0ther Payabtes

Stamp Duty Payabte

4,698.74
296.90

3,177.80
5,000.00

9,591.16
177.10

7,696.72

4.86
1,766.05

Total 13173.44 | 8735.89

(Amount in '000)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

3'lst March, 2019
erovision for employee benefits
3ratuity (Refer Note - 38) 2.63 2.90

Total 2.63 2.90
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22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (Amount in'O00)

(Amou nt in '000)

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in'000)

(Amount in '000)

Particulars
For the year ended

31st March 2020
For the year ended

31st March 2019

Revenue from Services 24,708.00

Total 24.708.O0

23 OTHER INCOME

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

25 FINANCE COSTS

26 DEPRECIATION

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

Long term Capitat Gain - Shares

Long term Capital Gain - Assets

Sate of standing Crops at land

Dividend lncome

lnterest lncome

Interest Received on lT Refund

Finance Income on FinanciaI Assets

Sundry Batance Written back

1,425.62

705.00

0.53

378.16

1,487.32

211,37

9,476.46

1,308.60

671.99

188.17

81.33

Total 13,684.46 2,250.08

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 201 9

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Gratuity (Refer Note - 38)

Staff welfare Expenses

16,289.15

1 59.88

47.26

13,317.28

92.24

Total 16,496.28 13,409.52

Particu lars For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

Interest Expenses on Borrowings

Interest expenses on financiaI tiabitity
Interest on Statutory Dues

3,042.27

8,403.38

68.58

817.61

8,378. 1 6

82.40

Total 11,514.23 9,278.17

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 201 9

Depreciation 5,707.89 5,711.63

Total 5,707.89 5,711.63
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27 OTHER EXpENSES (Amou nt in ,000)

Particulars For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
3lstMarch 2019

I

lardit r""r.
I

lJob 
work expenses

lBank 
Chagres

lBrokerage 
Charges

lConveyance 
Expenses

lAdvertisement
Printing & Stationery
Communication

Consuttancy &. ProfessionaI Charges

Rates & Taxes

Rent (Refer Note - 37)

Travetting & Conveyance

Demat Expenses

Misc Expenses

Provision for lmpairement

Security Charges

Sundry Batance Written Off
Loss on sate of Land

PenaLty

Repairs & Maintenance- Vehicles

Bad debts and Advances

1 66.30

228.03

25.67

800.00

146.84

158.05

5.37

14.69

920.25

1,054.59

209.34

308.1 7

1.19

171.25

210.00

64.00

2,1 30.33

370.91

s00.01

62.78

1,035.69

1 66.30

389.68

23.1 8

17.27

96.01

6.02

15.65

590.75

1,278.96

228.00

95.01

1.84

68.41

7,564.00

384.00

773.67

1 03 .00

Total 8,533.47 7,251.75

* Payment to Auditors (Amount in '000)

Particu lars

For the year ended
31st March 2020

For the year ended
31st March 2019

As Auditors
- Audit fees
- Tax Audit fees

In other capacity:
- Other services (certification fees)

1 66.30 1 66.30

Total 1 66.30 166.30
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28 TNCOME TAX AssETS (NET)

i) The following table provides the details of income tax assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2020 and 3'l March
2019:

(Amount in '0O0)

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

3'lst March, 20'1 9

lncome Tax Assets

Current lncome Tax Liabitities
Net Balance

17,313.69

1,554.19

15,723.21

1,032.11

15,759.50 14,691-1O

ii) The gross movement in the currebt tax asset/ ( Liability) for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019
is as follows:

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

Net current income tax asset at the beginning
Income Tax paid

Provision Reversed

Current Income tax expense

Income tax for eartier year

Net current income tax asset at the end

14,691 .10

4,636.44

3,397.64
-170.40

12,016.94

3,683 .55

'l ,009.40

15,759.50 14,691.O9

lnternational Constructions Limited
(Amount in '0O0)

iii )

iv) Components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities arising on account of Temporary differences are:

Particu lars

As at
3'tst March, 2020

As at
3'lst March, 2019

Income Tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss Comprises:

Current income taxes

Deferred income taxes

Income tax for eartier year

Deferred income tax on other comorehensive income

Income tax expenses (net)

3,015.89
-24,405.67

552.1 5

5,336.72

1,009

485

88.1 0

't't,576.16

-15,500.91 1 3,1 58.70

Particulars
As at 31st

March 2O2O

As at 31st
March 2019

Deferred income tax Liability
Timing difference on tangibte and intangible assets depreciation and

amortisation

Others

Fair Value Changes- INDA5 Adjustment
On account of Provision for lmoairement and fair vatuation of
investments

Deferred income tax asset

On account of Financial Instrument

Business loss/unabsorbed depreciation
Others

lvlAT Credit entitlement

1,415.10
(51.86)

57,443.22

1,447.03

60,253.49
4,156.73

1 8,091 .88

6,796.98

(121.93)

(1 2.50)

78,024.41

5,730.38

83,620.36

'1 5,873

9,018.26
Total deferred tax liabilities/ (assets) (net) 31 ,207.90 58,728.99
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29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Capital and Other Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: as at 31st

March 2020 - Rs. Ni[, as at 31st March 2019 - Rs. Nit.

Earning Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calcutated by dividing the profit for the year attributabte to equity hotders of the parent
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

The foltowine reftects the i and dat used the basic and dituted EPS omput tions:ncome are d ln a

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019
Net profit avaitabte for Equity Sharehotders (68,006) (13,492)

Weighted Average number of Equity shares 3,633.96 ? A?? AA

Basic and Dituted Earninqs Per Share (18.71) (3.71)

32 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disctosure of contingent tiabitities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and

estimates coutd resutt in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or

Judgements: In the process of apptying the company's accounting poticies, management has made the
fottowing judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financ'ial

Estimates and assumptions: The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and tiabitities within the next financial year, are described betow. The company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters avaitable when the financial statements were prepared. Existing

circumstances and assumptions about future devetopments, however, may change due to market changes or

circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the company. Such changes are reftected in the
assumptions when they occur.

sh

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2O19

lCtaims against Companies not acknowtedged as debt

l1u; Corporute Guarantee given for related co company

lCorporate Guarantee given to Punjab NationaI Bank for financial

lassistance sanctioned to ADD Technotogies (lndia) Ltd as per

Iterm of sanction
I

lb) Disputed tax demands for Asst. Year 2011-12 f or which the

lcompany has preferred Appeat

c) Disputed tax demands for Asst. Year 2008-09 for which the
company has preferred Appeat

d) Disputed tax demands for Asst. Year 2013-14 for which the
company has preferred Appeat

(e) 8,80,945 equity shares of SPML lnfra Limited have been
ptedged in favour of lFCl Limited against the [oan taken by SPML

Infra Limited as per terms of sanction.

1,00,000

5,521.27

2,308.23

6,908.97

4,00,000.00

1,00,000

5.521.27

2,3C,9.23

6,9o,9.97

4,00,0o0.00
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lmpairment of non-financial assets: lmpairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating

unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposaI and its value in

use. The fair value less costs of disposal calcutation is based on available data from binding sales transactions,

conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs fo r disposing

of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget

for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the company is not yet committed to or

significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The

recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as wetl as the expected future

cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most r€tevant to

goodwitt and other intangibtes with indefinite usefu[ lives recognised by the company.

Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable

profit witt be available against which the tosses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required

to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likety timing and the

level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Fair vatue measurement of financial instruments: When the fair values of financial assets and financial
tiabitities recorded in the batance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their
fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are

taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasibte, a degree of judgement is

required in estabtishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as tiquidity risk, credit
risk and volatitity. Changes in assumptions about these factors coutd affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments.

A disclosure with respect to segment reporting is not applicable, since the Company operates in the similar

economic characteristics for both the sate of products and for the sale of services and does not have more

than one reportable segment.

Foreign Currency Earnings And Outgo Rs. Ni[, (PY - Rs. Nit)

There are no reported foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or

otherwise. hence the disclosure of the same is not made.

36 CIF value of imports Rs. Nit (PY - Rs. Nit).

37 Leases

Lease commitments - Company as lessee

The Company has taken Site Office on lease. This leases and a licence agreement is for a period not exceeding
1 1 months and is renewabte by mutual consent, on mutually agreeable terms. There are no restrictions
imposed by lease agreements. There are no subteases.

The Company has incurred Rs. 209.34 (31 march 2019: Rs. 228.00) during the year towards minimum lease
payment.The Company is availing the excemption available for short-term and low value lease under IND AS

1 16.

33

34

35
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38 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A Defined contribution scheme: The company does not have any emptoyee contribution scheme expenses.

B Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, the Company contributes to a defined benefit ptan (the "Gratuity Ptan") covering

certain categories of emptoyees, The Gratuity Plan provides a tump sum payment to vested emptoyees at retirement, disabitity or t€rmination of

emptoyment being an amount based on the respective emptoyee's last drawn salary and the number of years of emptoyment with the Compan;.

The financial and demographic assumptions on annuat basis used for vatuation as at the Vatuation Date are shown betow. The assumptions as at the

Vatuation Date are used to determine the Present Vatue of Defined Benefit Obtigation at that date:

Summary of financial assumptions

Particulars
As at

3 1 st ,ilarch
zo20

As at
3 1 st March

2019

Discount rate 6.92%-7.48% 6.88%-7.43%

:xpected rate of increase in compensation tevel of covered employees
5.00% 5.00%

he Dresent value of the defined

of aphic assumptions:

Particulars
As at

3 1 st March
2020

As at
31 st March

7019

$ortality Rate (as % of IALM (2006-08) (Mod.) Utt. Mortatity Tabte)
1 00.00% 1 00.00%

)isabitity Rate (as % of above mortatity rate) 0.00% 0.00%

WithdrawaI Rate

Upto 30 Years 3.00% 3.00%

J1 to 44 Years 2.00% 2.00%

Above 44 Years 1.00% 1.00%

NormaI Retirement Ase 70 years 70 vears

Adiusted Averase Future Service 26.75 -41 Years 7-1 1 Years

Lnanges ln tne present value ol tne delrned benetrt oDlrgatron are, as lollows
tarticu lars Amount
)efined benefit obtigation at 1 Aprit 2018 80.85

nterest cost 6- rt
Current service cost 8s.98

Benefits Daid

Remeasurement (gain)/ toss (1.75

lemeasurement (gain)/ toss- FinanciaI 2.38

lemeasurement (qain)/ toss - Demoqraphic

Remeasurement (gain)/ toss- Experience -3.63

Return on Ptan Assets

Defined benefit obtigation at 31 March 2019 171.U
lnterest cost 1 2.80

:urrent service cost 193.78

Benefits paid

Remeasurement (gain)/ toss (1 20.03 )

lemeasurement (gain)/ toss- Financial 15.62

lemeasurement (qain)/ loss - Demoqraphic

lemeasurement (eain)/ toss- ExDerience (1 35.65

Return on Ptan Assets

Defined benefit obtigation at 31 March 2020 258.39



in the defined benefit

Particulars
As at

3 1 st March

2020

As at
31st March

2019

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 171.84 80.85

:urrent service cost 193.78 85.98
)ast service coat

Net lnterest cost 12.80 6.27

Sub-total included in Drofit or loss 206.58 92.24

Benefits paid

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts inctuded in net interest
exoense)

\ctuarial chanqes arising from chanqes in financial assumptions 15.62 2.38

\ctuariaI changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions

Experience adjustments (1 35.65) -3.63

Subtotal inctuded in OCI ( 1 20.03 ) t1.75)
Contributions by emptoyer

Defined benefit oblisation at the end of the vear 258.39 171.84

lnternational Constructions Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ending march 31 , 2020

The sensitivity anatyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapotates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a resutt

of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars
As at

31st March
2020

As at
3 1 st l{arch

2019

#ithin the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 2.63 2.90

Between2and5years a1 77 20.53

Eetween 5 vears 693.90 268.93

Total expected payments 718.31 292.36

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 7-11years (3'1 March 2019: 7 years )

Changes in the fair value of plan assets:

Particulars

As at
3'lst March

2020

As at
3 1 st March

2019

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning NA NA

Interest Income NA NA

:ontributions bv emotover NA NA

lenefit Pavments from Ptan Assets NA NA

iemeasurements - Return on Assets (Exctudinq Interest Income) NA NA

air Value of Ptan Assets at the end NA NA

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for si ion for defined benefit oblieations are as shown below:

Particulars
As at 31st lr{arch, 2020 As at 3lst March. 2019

0.5% increase 0.5% decrease 0.5% increase 0.5% decrease

Discount rate
Expected rate of increase in compensation [eve[ of covered employees

WithdrawaI Rate

5.18-143.67 6.34-1 58.33 42.74-123.96 46.22-131 .48

7.06-166.89 4.69-136.9 48.44-135.56 40.29-120.18

5.77-149.13 5.58-151.82 42.71-125.52 45.67-129.98
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40 Fair values

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by category:

Assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost

Assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through the profit and loss account.

The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a Net Aset Vatue approach. The vatuation requires management to
make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and votatility. The probabitities
of the various estimates within the range can be reasonabty assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair vatue for these
unquoted equity investments.

The fair vatues of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that
reftects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own nonperformance risk as at 31 March 2020 was assessed to
be insignificant.

There details of assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through the other comprehenssive

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current liabitities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair vatues of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a DCF modet. The valuation requires management to make certain
assumptions about the model inputs, inctuding forecast cash ftows, discount rate, credit risk and votatitity. The probabilities of the various
estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair value for these unquoted equity
investments.

Fair value hierarchy
Level 'l: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or tiabitities
Levet 2: Significant observable inputs other than quoted prices inctuded in [eve[ 'l that are observable for the asset or
Level 3: Sienificant unobservable inouts for the assets or liabitities that are not based on observable market data

(Amount in '0O0)

Particu lars
Carrying Value Fair Value

As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March,
2019

As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March,
20 19

Financial assets

Investments

Trade Recievables

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other current financiaI Assets

I qA 7\1

574.73

1,477.09

6,644.18

8,441 .37

2,24,109

32,665

429

29,410

7,651

1,56,751

574.73

1,477 .09

6,644.18

8,441.37

2,74,109

32,665.20

429.34

79,410.00

7,651 .37

Total 1,73,888.64 2,94,265.O3 '17,137.37 2,94,265.O3

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Trade Payabtes

89,654.00

35,137.22

1,02,472.69

48,088.43

89,654.00

35,137.22

1,Q2,472.69

48,088.43

Total 1,24,791.22 1,50,561.12 1.24.791.22 1,50,561.12

(Amount in'000)

Particulars
Carrying Value Fair Value

As at 31st March
2020

As at 31st March
2019

As at 31st March
2020

As at 31st March
2019

Financial assets

Investments 1 2,000.00 1 2,000.00 1 2,000.00 1 2,000.00

lotal 12.000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00

Particu lars
Carrying Value Fair Value

As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March,
2019

As at 3'lst March,
2070

As at 31st March,
2019

Financial assets

Investments 21,494.44 42,343.92 21,494.44 42,343.97

TotaI 21,494.44 a1 1A1 q') 11 AqA AA a) 141 A)

41
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42 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principaI financiat tiabitities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payabtes, and financiat
guarantee contracts, The main purpose of these financiaI tiabitities is to finance the Group's operations and to provide guarantees to support its
operations. The Company principat financial assets include toans, trade and other receivabtes, and cash and cash equivatents that derive directty
from its oo€rations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks.

The Company's senior management is supported by a financiaI risk committee that advises on financiat risks and the appropriate financiaI risk
governance framework for the company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the company's senior management that the company's

financiaI risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financiat risk are identified, measured and rnanaged in

accordance with the company's poticies and risk objectives.

A{arket risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financiaI instrument witt ftuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments

affected by market risk inctude loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and derivative financiat instruments.

The fottowing assumptions have been made in catculating the sensitivity anatyses:

i. The sensitivity of the retevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial

assets and financial liabilities hetd at 3'l March 2020 , 31 March 2019 inctuding the effect of hedge accounting.

ii. The sensitivity of equity is calcutated by considering the effect of any associated cash ftow hedges and hedges of a net investment in a subsidiary

at 31 March 2020 for the effects of the assumed changes of the undertying risk.

lnterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vatue or future cash ftows of a financiaI instrument witt ftuctuate because of changes in market interest

rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarity to the company's long-term debt obtigations with

floating interest rates. The company manages its interest rate risk by having a batanced portfolio of fixed and variabte rate loans and borrowings.

The company's poticy is to keep between 40% and 60% of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest, exctuding borrowings that retate to discontinued

operations, To manage this, the company enters into interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervats, the difference

between fixed and variabte rate interest amounts catculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount.

Interest rate sensitivity

The fottowing table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonabty possibte change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected,
after the impact of hedge accounting. With att other variabtes hetd constant, the company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on

ftoating rate borrowings, as fottows:

Particu lars

For the year ended 31st March 2020 For the year ended 31st l'larch 2019

Increase/decrease in
basis points

Effect on profit
before tax

(Amount in Rs.)

lncrease/decrease
in basis points

Effect on profit
before tax (Amount

in Rs.)

Indian Rupees

lndian Rupees

+50

-50

(4,445.40)

4,445.40

+50

-50

(8,704.43)

8,704.43

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity anatysis is based on the currentty observabte market environment, showing a

significantly higher votatitity than in prior years.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty witt not meet jts obtigations under a financial instrument or customer contract, teading to a financial loss.

The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarity trade receivables) and from its financing activities, inctuding deposits
with banks and financiaI institutions and other financiat instruments.

Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a tiquidity planning toot.

The Company's objective is to maintain a batance between continuity of funding and ftexibitity through the use of bank loans and group company
loans. The Company's poticy is that not more than 25% of borrowings shoutd mature in the next 1z-month period. Att the borrowings are from group
companies and they are payabte on demand. As on date no toan has been demanded for repayment, accordingty the % of borrowing to be repaid
during the year has not been provided. The company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and conctuded it to be
medium.
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lnternational Constructions Limited
The tabte betow summarises the maturity profite of the Company's financiat tiabitities based on contractuat undiscounted payments

Excessive risk concentration
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in simitar business activities, or activities in the same geographicat region, or
have economic features that woutd cause their abitity to meet contractuat obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, potiticat or
other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to devetopments affecting a particutar industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's poticies and procedures inctude specific guidetines to focus on the maintenance
of a diversified portfolio. ldentified concentrations of credit risks are controtted and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the
Group to manage risk concentrations at both the relationship and industry levets.

Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capitat management, capital inctudes issued equity capitat and att other equity reserves attributable to the
equity hotders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder vatue. The company

manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in tight of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Gcompany may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The company monitors capitat using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital ptus net debt. The Company's
poticy is to keep the gearing ratio between 20% and 50%. The Company inctudes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and

other payabtes, less cash and cash equivatents.

(Amount in'000)

Particulars As at 31st March

7019
As at 31st March

201 8

Borrowings

Trade payables

Other Non current Liabitty

Other current Uabitity

Provisions

Less: cash and cash equivalents

89,654.00

35,137.27

59,116.77

13,173.44

211 .68
(1,477.10).

1,Q2,472.69

48,088.43

72,718.01

1 8,735.89
171 .84

(479.341

Net Debt 1 ,95,8 1 5.5 1 2,41,757.53

rquitY

)ther equity
36,339.60

2,30,498.01

36,339.60
3,44,751.76

Total Equity 2,66,837.61 3,8 1,09 1 .36

Gearing ratio 4 l"/ 39%

ln order to achieve this overatl objective, the Company's capitat management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call toans and borrowings.

No changes were made in the objectives, poticies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

44 GROUP INFORMATION

Particulars As at 31st March,
2020

As at 31st March,
2019

lsuBSrDrARtES
I

IADD Reattv Limited

lnaa tnarrtr,"l Park (Tamilnadu) Limrreo
I

Add Elcina Electronics Park Private Limited

Ratnatray Mega Food Park Private Limited

ASSOCIATES

Dethi Waste Management Limited

ADD Technologies Limited

SJA Devtopers Pvt Limited

sPM Engineers Limited

Suraksha Insurance Brokers private Limited

Leonis Austin Town Devtopers Private Limited

Leonis HSR Devtopers Private Limited

Leonis Kormangata Complex Private Limited

Leonis R T Nagar Devlopers Private Limited

Leonis Sadashivanagar Devtopers Private Limited

Leonis Vijaynagar Devlopers Private Limited

79.44

63.85

67.96

78.60

47.95

47.95

47.95

45.33

19.4Q

47.50

47.50

47.50

47.50

47.50

47.50

70.15

56.41

55.63

18.24

46.30

46.30

46.30

45.33

24.40

As at 31st March 2020 On Demand -ess than 3 month:
Less than 3 months

to 1 2 months
More than 1 year Total

Borrowings

frade Payabte

47,406.67

35,1 37 .?7

42,747.33 89,654.00

35,137.22

As at 31st March 2019 On Demand Less than 3 months Less than 3 months
to 12 months

More than 1 vear More than 1 year

Borrowings

Trade Payabte

47,716.95

35,137.2?

47 247 l3 89,964.28

35.137.72
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lnternational Constructions Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ending march 31,2O2O

46 The amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements of the previous year have been rectassified and regrouped whereever necessary.

As Der our ReDort of even date.

For G.L.KOTHARI & Co., For and on behatf of the board

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.001445 S

'),.) AJ ' 
't 

t''t
CA G.L.KOTHARI (Om Prakash Sharma) (Nitesh Kumar Jain) (Anil Kumar Sethi) (Priti Devi Sethi)
Proprietor Chief Financiat Officer Company Secretary Director Director
Membership No. 02548'1 FCS:54402 DIN : 00035800 DIN : 00635&6

Ptace: Bengaturu Place: Bengaturu

Date: 24th Juty 2020 Date: 24th Juty 2020


